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Financial Highlights

MBRE

The Group has achieved outstanding results in the
past five years:

. Sales increased to HKD2,366 million for the current year from
HKD779 million for the year ended 31 March 2006 with a
CAGR of approximately 32.0%

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
increased to HKD1,340 million for the current year from
HKD283 million for the year ended 31 March 2006 with a
CAGR of approximately 47.5%

Diluted earnings per share increased to HK42.58 cents for the
current year from HK9.53 cents for the year ended 31 March
2006 with a CAGR of approximately 45.4%

Net cash generated from operating activities increased to
HKD 1,386 million for the current year from HKD320 million for
the year ended 31 March 2006 with a CAGR of approximately
44.3%
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Sales

Gross profit

Gross profit margin

Operating profit

Operating profit margin (EBIT margin)

Selling and marketing expenses to
sales

Administration expenses to sales

Profit before income tax

Profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company

Earnings per share (HK cents)
— Basic
— Diluted

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Net cash*

Total equity

Aggregated dividends per share
for the whole year (HK cents)

Aggregated special dividends per
share for the whole year (HK cents)

Dividend payout ratio

Debt ratio*

Current ratio (times)

Liquidity ratio (times)

Inventory turnover (days)

Trade receivables turnover (days)

Trade payables turnover (days)

* Equals to

LER

EF

ER=

LERT
SEENE (EBITE)
HERTEHERY
HIHELL X
THRFAXEHEL =X
B 5 A 22 )

AREIEmTE ARG
& F
FRAEF (BIL)
— &R
-8
REEHEEZFRE

HERE*
Bk
BREFRFBE
GEAD
BREFRFIFHRE
(&AL
E2ERENIRE
BERE
BN (15
RENLLE (15
FERAEX (R/)
FEY R R = (H)
FERBRRAE R (B)

)
)

“Short-term time deposits” plus “Cash and cash

equivalents” minus “Short-term borrowings”.

# Equals to

“Total borrowing (include current & non-current

borrowings” divided by “Total Equity (exclude minority interest)”.

#

2010
—Z-2F
HKD’000
BT T

2,366,403
1,786,835
75.5%
1,516,689
64.1%

3.1%
9.9%
1,531,649

1,340,085

43.15
42.58

1,385,960
1,659,290
3,918,207

12.78

8.3
49%
6.6%
3.5
3.2
139
71
121

ER[EHEHFH M HEERE2ESEY]

Financial Highlights
iR E

2009
—ETNF
HKD'000
EEETFIT
(restate) (%))
1,938,443
1,462,515
75.4%
1,195,452
61.7%

4.1%
11.6%
1,207,499

1,110,324

36.08
35.62

1,110,736
1,126,735
2,929,606

10.8

3.0
38%
Nil
2.5
2.2
132
73
119

B [ERITE ) °

ER[HBER (EBARBRIFRGER)] K

Change in
percentage
BOLLEH

%

+22.1
+22.2

+26.9

+26.8

+20.7

+19.6
+19.5

+24.8

+33.7

+18.3

+176.7

W [#4 (T B LB TMR)] -

Huabao International Holdings Limited # % Bl 1ZEARBR A F] ¢ 2009-2010 Annual Report 3R

5



Company Profile

SEET

Huabao Group is a market leader in China’s flavours and fragrances
industry. The Group has been the leading producer in terms of sales
revenue among competitors, maintained a significant position within
the flavours and fragrances industry in China. The Group is primarily
engaged in the R&D, production and sales of flavours and fragrances.
The Group possesses an integrated core value chain, established
upstream raw material extraction bases in Botswana, southern
Africa, Qingdao, and Wuxi, and in total of 19 manufacturing bases
in Shanghai, Yunnan, Guangdong, Jiangsu, Fujian and Hong Kong
etc., and has established a R&D centre in Holzminden, Germany, a
State-recognized technical centre in Shanghai and R&D departments
in Guangzhou, Yunnan and Fujian. The technical centre of Huabao
Shanghai, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is currently
the only State-recognized technical centre in China‘s flavours and
fragrances industry. The Group takes on leadership roles in a number
of industry associations, including the Deputy Director of CAFFCI,
Deputy Director of China Food Additives & Ingredients Association

and Chairman of Shanghai Food Additive Industry Association.

By leveraging on its excellent management model, a team of high-

calibre talents with international perspective, outstanding quality
of customer services and its high growing momentum, the Group
is committed to continuously creating value for the society and
bringing fruitful return to its Shareholders!
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEMT
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEBN - EEXEREFAFL

Corporate Culture

PEXLE
TR B
VISIOn Striving to be No. 1
= FE—
Core Value Adhere to the “market driven and client first” philosophy and achieve

RO EEE

®

mutual growth for both the Group and its staff

TS REE BREFELWRA EREENS THAKE

| Spirit
5 1

Innovative, pragmatic, loyal and cooperative

BIFT - BBE - B WE

Strategy
B Bg

Multi-pronged with focus on flavours and fragrances as core value

Accelerate the development of flavours business, actively develop
fragrances business

Proactively expand into the new cigarette materials and food
ingredients businesses

Expand upstream aromatic raw materials business and strive to form
an integrated core value chain

Expand through organic growth and M&A
Leverage on China’s market to grow into a globally leading player in
the flavours and fragrances industry and tasty life

BEUEFEHRZOHELZ T ERE
MRRBEEEHNERINL  BRARBBEREH

MBI R BT R A AR SR 56 75

BRI R D ERMER - BT ER L — B ERE

KA S ERAFERGESNI
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Key Events for the Year
EFERER

Mr. Yu Zhengsheng,
member of the Political
Bureau of the CPC
Central Committee and
Secretary of the CPC
Shanghai Municipal
Committee, visited
Shanghai Huabao and
is very positive on its
future development;

tt REARER |
ISCIES SnE
=GR - AR
FRFTEED ;

@ %

Acquired Maoming

position within our
major customer;

AL

Kebi, further enhanced

WigxaRL -
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

B

“Year 2009 State
Recognized Enterprise
Technology Center
Innovation Ability
Construction Project”
passed the approval of
National Development
and Reform Commission
and was awarded RMB5
million of subsidy from
the State;

[2009B R R E B ER
firsp L BIFTBE D RS IR
B@BTERRERE
HELZEEMNBEMNLT
LA TE  WHSESER
B EE500& T

XN

>
40@ J&

Huabao Shanghai
achieved two State-
recognized patents,
which represent

that Huabao's R&D
capability has reached
international standards
in terms of tobacco
chemistry, enzyme
engineering, Maillard
Reaction and emulsive
stability technology;

28 LSRHARSES
BRI - EEAE

ERER - IR
il ~ SRR R AE ST
FUALTRRE 14 Bl < el
B AR B R OK
I

B,  EEXEREFART

The Group promoted
the setup of the joint-
venture — Yunnan Qing
Tian Xiang, for the
development of new
cigarette materials
business;

KERY A BATER
BUE - ENBREE
HbtH

Acquired F&G Group,
representing the
establishment of the
Group’s first overseas
raw material base, was
another major step in
achieving an integrated
core value chain;

WHEFRGERE - 255
REEE—EEINRES
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D ELEXEERESR
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEBN - EEXEREFAFL

10

Guangzhao Huabao’s
6,000 square-meter
Phase two factory
expansion was
completed ahead of
schedule, symbolizing
the Group’s business in
the savory flavours and
food ingredients will
enter a rapid growing
stage;

BN 2 — HRHE5E6,000
R AKMEIER {RATE
T EREEEmRKE
BB R B RELE TS
HARRERERRE

A

Y
s -/
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Reconstituted tobacco
leaf put into pilot run
production, representing
the Group’s another
major breakthroughs

in the new cigarette
materials business;

The Group subscribed
for the controlling stake
in Qingdao Qingda,

to develop business in
natural raw material.

It further enhances

our development in

the upstream aromatic
raw materials and food
ingredients business;

AEEREZERESE
R BERRARRE
— S LR RA
BEHRICHEBNER -

L
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SRkl ARTEMTRRET
£ ERERARS
PR B,

Guangdong Zhaoging
won the titles of
“Pioneer of Innovation
and Development

in Guangdong Food
Industry” and “Pioneer
of Food Safety in
Guangdong Province”;

Key Events for the Year

Xiamen Amber won

the title of “The Most
Potential SME"” from the
Economic Development
Bureau of Xiamen City
with its strong growth
momentum;

EFIFRIAAR S &
PRER [EFIT&RA
PRI ERE ]

N, 2 90 %
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The Group signed a
strategic partnership
agreement with China
National Food Industry
(Group) Company,
enabling both parties
to work alongside
comprehensively on
business, technology
and joint-venture
projects in the future.
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Chairman's Statement

EREWE

Dear Shareholders,

During the financial year of 2009/2010, the Group
recorded excellent operational results. In the
past five years, despite of global financial crisis,
we maintained a rapid growth of operational
result while the profit attributable to equity
holders delivered a CAGR of 47.5% and the CAGR
of the dividends per share also rose by 55.5%,
which reflected our efforts to maximize the
return for our Shareholders.

FUBRR :

2009/201081 F » AEBHEENS T RFHKEXE
ZEoONEBENLIFE  HAKETZRMENERSE
B BEREENKREEERAREERERRENIE
R BRELEANEESERER47.5% B
BRIKEFESEREE55.5% ' BRARE MO HK
ERBRER o
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Chairman's Statement
FERE

In my opinion, innovation is the key factor of the Group’s
continuous rapid growth. With the backdrop of the changing global
environment, the only thing stays still is innovation. Only by adhering
to the principle of constant innovation can we meet changes with
constancy. | always believe that successful experience in the past
is prone to be the cause of failure in the future because success
will hinder one from progressing in tandem with times. Ever since
its establishment, the Group has upheld innovation as the pillar of
corporate development, which penetrates through its development
history.

Corporate innovation means innovation in every aspects. The
awareness of innovation among the management, particularly
middle to high level management, and their leading role in pursuing
innovation is the key to mobilize employees’ enthusiasm for creativity
because during the course of innovation, we will not only face
with difficulties but also frustrations, and the support from the
management is crucial to preserve innovators’ initiative. At the same
time, due to the imperfect nature of novelties, the management
should pay more attention and tolerance to foster innovations.
Therefore, management at all levels should not only pioneer in the
pursuit of innovation by themselves, but also guide and encourage
the whole team in the proper direction.

I'm gratified to find out that the Group is incorporated with a strong
sense of innovation, reflected by the fact that management at all
levels excels in promoting the concept of corporate innovation which
from my perception is the momentum of the Group’s continuous
development. I'm assured that the Group will continue to reinforce
the idea of innovation and maintain the dynamics to surpass other
competitors in the Group’s future development.

I would like to express my gratitude to the marvelous work
contributed by our management team and all staff members. | would
also like to express my gratitude to all of our Shareholders for their
continuous support.

CHU Lam Yiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June 2010

BRRRAFERASENSGHEREIEENEEZR
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SRLRERMENEEL - A - AREIFNF
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased
to present to the Shareholders the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

In 2009, the global economy entered into a phase of steady recovery
after bottoming out. The Chinese economy maintained a robust
growth of more than 8% (in terms of Gross Domestic Product), and
the Chinese consumer products market continued to sustain a speedy
growth momentum, becoming a spotlight of the global economy.
As the Group continues to implement a “multi-pronged, focus-
growth” development strategy, it has accomplished various business
development goals with its excellent management and execution
capability. Sales revenue amounted to HKD2,366 million, representing
a growth of approximately 22.1% from last year; profit attributable
to equity holders amounted to HKD1,340 million, representing an
increase of 20.7% from last year. The Group’s financial position
remained sound and strong, and the capital management has been
improving continuously. The proposed total dividend payout ratio
for the year reached 49%, further enhancing the return for our
Shareholders.

Outstanding Operating Results

For the year ended 31 March 2010, sales revenue of the
Group increased by approximately 22.1% to approximately
HKD2,366million, out-performing the management’s expected
growth target; gross profit margin remained stable at 75.5%; EBIT
margin reached approximately 64.1%, elevated by approximately

CEO’s Statement

REWE
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CEQ’s Statement

2.4 percentage points from last year; profit attributable to equity
holders was approximately HKD1,340 million, representing an
increase of approximately 20.7%; and basic earnings per share was
approximately HK43.15 cents, representing an increase of about
19.6%. All of these representing an excellent operating results.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group's net cash flow
generated from operating activities amounted to approximately
HKD1,386 million, a strong increase of approximately 24.8% from
last year. Net cash amounted to approximately HKD1,659million,
maintaining a very healthy financial position. To reward our
Shareholders, after taking into account the excellent operating
results and strong cash flows, the Board recommended the payment
of a final dividend for the year of HK6.78 cents per share (2009: HK
5.8 cents) plus a special dividend of HK5.5 cents per share (2009:
HK3.0 cents). For the year ended 31 March 2010, the accumulated
proposed dividends declared by the Group for the year amounted to
approximately HKD660 million or HK21.08 cents per Share (2009:
HK13.8 cents), dividend payout ratio reached approximately 49%.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group achieved a rapid sales
revenue growth of 21.7% in the flavours business, where operating
margin is further elevated.

Regarding the tobacco flavours business, the long-term commitment
to the “Big Customers, Big Brands” development strategy has
enabled the Group to successfully capitalize on the opportunities
arising from the consolidation of the tobacco industry in China,
and therefore continuously benefited from the development trend
of tobacco products with higher quality and lower tar and harmful
content, and maintained a rapid growth momentum. For flavours
used in food and beverages, the Group continued to develop natural
and healthy innovative products that fitted local tastes, offered
product plus comprehensive technology value-added services for the
development of key direct customers, and implemented an overall
strategy by fully leveraging its strengths in having a nationwide
network for the development of local small- and medium-sized
customers. After several years of rapid development, the Group has
become one of the largest local flavours and fragrances providers
in China. Regarding the product mix, the Group has been heavily
developing on the foundation of the two traditional lines, namely
sweet and savory series, exploring into the area of food ingredients
with local China taste profile. The results have been obvious and the
Group achieved rapid growth.

R49207%; SBRERAEFNBELI S BEYH
19.6% ' BUS TIEEMEEERS -

HEZZT-—ZTF=A=+—"HLFE FTEEAL
EEHELEMNFRSMELNBE13.861ET ' LbEAF
38 S IE AN T 4924.8% o FIR S IEH B H16.59
TL AR IER R - TR RTASEEERN
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AR5 8Ml) WK FRAES SILERIRE (==
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=+ —HIFE  2FRFAERELBE6. 68T
FRBE21.08L (ZZZT N4 BEB13.8M) - &
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‘ 3.2%

As to the fragrances business, the Group remains committed to
establishing a good working relationship with a group of renowned
and quality daily chemical enterprises in the Chinese market.
Through relentless product innovations and sound technical servicing
capabilities, Xiamen Amber’s reputation and significance was further
elevated in the fragrances industry, its business achieved a continuous
rapid growth. The sales revenue of Xiamen Amber amounted to
approximately HKD75.49 million, representing a growth of 35.4%
from last year, which is in line with management’s target.

As to raw materials, following the establishment of the Wuxi Huahai
raw materials base, the Group has taken another important step in
the overseas raw materials development plan through the acquisition
of F&G Group in the Republic of Botswana, southern Africa. F&G
employs high extraction technologies in the exploitation of unique
natural raw materials which have enhanced the competitiveness of
their products significantly.

The Group continued to increase spending on R&D by employing top
international R&D professionals, fully leveraging on the advantages
of the domestic and overseas R&D centers and conducting
application and fundamental researches, and therefore reaping
fruitful R&D achievements. During the year, the Group has applied,
obtained in aggregate of 50 patents for its inventions. | am pleased
to see Huabao's R&D team is promising with fruitful results, which
will translate into strong competitiveness of Huabao for future
development.

[T FlavoursE &R ER - 96.8%
B FragrancesH AERER -3.2%

CEQO’s Statement
wETRE

increasedi & 21.7%
increasedi & 35.4%
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CEQ’s Statement

| am very pleased with the achievements made by the M&A and
integration team of the Group. Maoming Kebi acquired by the Group
in August 2009 is undergoing a comprehensive integration and is in
line with our integration targets. For the 8 months ended 31 March
2010, unaudited sales revenue (net of value-added tax) of Maoming
Kebi amounted to approximately HKD34.02 million, profit after tax
reached approximately 17.96 million, representing a substantial rise
in profitability. For the year ended 31 March 2010, Xiamen Amber’s
revenue amounted to approximately HKD75.49 million. Operating
profit amounted to approximately HKD18.67 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 39.2%. Wealthy King Group
and Win New Group, which have been previously acquired by the
Group, have completed their integration process and achieved a
rapid organic growth, where both companies’ profitability have
improved substantially to catch up with the Group’s level.

The management has mapped out future development plans
pursuant to which Huabao, whilst maintaining the existing flavours
and fragrances business as its core, will gradually move into three
new key areas, namely new cigarette materials, food ingredients and
aromatic raw materials.

Firstly, setting targets as “532" and “461", the Chinese Government
has stipulated the brand development for the Chinese tobacco
industry in the next Twelfth Five-Year Plan, to further enhance
brand concentration and build up world-class brands. It has also
set a new target for reducing the tar content and harm by limiting
tar content per cigarette to below 10 mg per stick from 1 January
2015, to be gradually in line with international standards (Sources:
China Tobacco). The Group has been insisting in the development
strategy of “Big customers, Big brands” and to promote a long term
and stable business relationship with core customers, we expect the
current rapid growth momentum in the flavours business will be
sustained. In the mean time, one of Huabao’s key strengths is the
ability to accurately grasp of the core of the quality and the future
popular trends of Chinese-style cigarettes. Under the trend of higher
quality and lower tar and harmful content of the tobacco products, it
will present the Group with huge space for the development of new
cigarette materials. | am also pleased to announce that the Group’s
joint-venture company, Yunnan Qing Tian Xiang, will be exploring
into new cigarette materials and representing the Group’s inception
into such area and implementation stage.

AAEEEHBENEREEERNTIEREETHE
RZZEZNFNAKRENKEGRLL  EEERE A
UMES  BAISEESEREHEIER -#HEZT
—ZEF=ZA=+—HILFESER  EABILRLER
AR CRE18ER) HE W AEREE3,4028 T
TRIERFEEE1,7968 T - BFEEH KB © &
EE-EFEZ-A=Z+—HLEFE  BERFERANK
AEFIBT 5498 T IKERFDCERBELY
1,8678 7T » AL RA39.2% - ZAIHENEEE
EMYFEE  LBES B TMRERZFMESE
ABIRSEAEBKT > MEXEBIR T RENE K
BE -

EEBOEHE T RRNERAE - AEERKHK
ERERBRREREBT  BLEAZKRFNE
1 BNEERMEL - BRECR AR E REL R -

Bk ERBEEETE BRET—@I+=8] &
SRR T 5 [532) 461 EAREEREBEZ
NE—SPREMEETE  ITEERARNRE - [
B RBERETRETHNERE BA=22— %
F—A—Bi BREEEHEEZSEEKKT
BH - WAESIEI0Z R AT (BHIR « (hEE
BH)) o REBERBUREIEN [ KEF - KR H
ERREIESHEFRPEBTNAIEREZR - B
TEHIARKREER N EBE R EBHGRFRRA Y
R2E - R AEENZLEZZ —HEHPX
BEMEZODARERRRITEBENERLE - £
FEETEERRESEBELREERENABET -
e AAEESEHNMENERESIIRE XM
B2 - BMSEEFAR  AEBRINEE
PNE > EEBHE  BENEBREBENME B4
EREEETSETM B ERBNEHE  EATE
MEREER o
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Secondly, we expect the quickened pace of life and consumers’
ongoing pursuit of better quality lifestyle will trigger a new round
of revolution in cooking methods in the Chinese catering industry.
A new breed of more natural, safer and faster composite cooking
seasonings are anticipated to become the trend and should hold
enormous space for development in the food ingredients segment
in the future. Huabao's core strength in this area is the possession
of technological advantages in product development, and the
advantages in having a nationwide network as well as the accurate
grasp of the domestic market. Following the investment in Qingdao
Qingda and the completion of Guangzhao Huabao’s Phase two
factory, | believe that Huabao will be able to achieve good results in
this sector.

In the upstream aromatic raw materials sector, the Chinese consumer
products market is growing to a higher level, and the per capita
value of the consumption of flavours and fragrances will increase
significantly. The focus of the global flavours and fragrances
market is gradually shifting towards Asia. Huabao has always been
committed to the strategic development of the upstream aromatic
raw materials business to create an integrated core value chain and
enhance its overall competitiveness. Following the establishment
of the bases of Wuxi Huahai and Botswana's F&G, the Group has
achieved appealing success in the development of the aromatic raw
materials sector. Next step, the Group will aggressively develop a
number of distinctive aromatic raw materials in order to seize this
enormous market space. Huabao’s core strength in this area is the
ability in understanding downstream market resources and the
marketing network to generate benefits rapidly from the integration.

These new segments are closely linked to the existing flavours
and fragrances businesses, enabling Huabao to better strength its
competitive edge in the flavours and fragrances industry, and to
create greater coordination efficiency and greater value in line with
its strategic planning in the past few years.

CEQO’s Statement
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CEQ’s Statement

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to implement the “multi-
pronged, focus-growth” development strategy. In line with its
prudent corporate management approach, the Group will also
develop its businesses by way of the combination of organic growth
and M&As so as to create an integrated core value chain and fully
capitalize on the enormous business opportunities arising from the
Chinese consumer products market as a result of the next round
of China’s economic boom and the wealth effect. Through organic
and M&A development, the Group will grow rapidly into a globally
leading player in the flavours and fragrances industry and tasty life!
The management and | are confident in the future of Huabao, and
will work together diligently to create an optimal value and return
for our Shareholders.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our
Shareholders, customers and suppliers for their continuous shepherd
and support. | truly express my appreciation to the Directors,
the management and all staff members of the Group for their
loyalty, diligence and hard-working in the past year. Together with
the Directors and the staff, we will uphold the spirit of Huabao:
“innovative, pragmatic, loyal and cooperative”, to strive for the
best of Huabao and to deliver more prosperous returns for all
Shareholders!

LAU Chi Tak
CEO

Hong Kong, 18 June 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Production capacity of flavour and fragrance of major subsidiaries

as at 31 March 2010

M2010F3A31BFETEB AR BRER I ERE

(tons M&)

Shanghai tiE
Huabao Shanghai EE B 3,000
Huabao Kongque EEILE 4,500
Huashun Shanghai ZE|E L 1,300
Shanghai Yinghua s 1,500

Jiangsu SLE
Taicang Wenhua RNEXE 800
Wuxi Fuhua AR 1,500
Wuxi Jiahua migEE 1,200
Wuxi Huaxin miER 600
Wuxi Huahai EHER 500

Guangdong BR
Feijia Additive (Wealthy King Group) R=ElZE (EEEE) 500
Guangdong Zhaoging BEREE 1,000
Guangzhou Huabao EEE 4,000
Guangzhou Huafang/Owada (Wealthy King Group) BINES S REE (EEEE) 2,000

Others Hity
F&G F&G 150
Huabao Hong Kong EEEE 300
Qingdao Huabao EEEE 1,000
Qingdao Qingda E5EFX 650
Xiamen Amber I=1ibi$is 800
Yunnan Tianhong EmAE 2,500
Approximately
#
Total production capacity 1EEERE 27,800

Existing Manufacturing Bases and R&D Centres
SERELEEEMERABEHRL—F

Germany

A
Holzminden
EWRAE

H Production base %:EE#
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B M

The Group remains committed to its development strategy by
combining organic growth plus M&A in carrying out consolidation
in the Chinese flavours and fragrances industry on an ongoing basis,
which has reaped very good results. During the reporting period, the
Group completed the acquisition of Maoming Kebi and F&G Group as
well as the investment in Qingdao Qingda, making dynamic progress
in implementing the strategic planning of constructing an integrated
core value chain. As a result, the Group’s overall competitiveness had
further been enhanced.

In August 2009, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Maoming Kebi from independent third parties at a consideration
of approximately HKD117,209,000. Maoming Kebi is a medium-
sized tobacco flavours supplier in the PRC and its customer is China
Tobacco Zhejiang. As the products that Maoming Kebi supplies to
its customer can be highly integrated with the existing products
provided to the same customer by the Group, the acquisition of
Maoming Kebi will further increase the Group’s market share of key
customers, which is in line with the Group’s “Big Customers, Big
Brands” development strategy.

As one of the terms of the transaction, the vendor guaranteed sales
revenue (inclusive of value-added tax) of not less than RMB50 million
in the next 12 months (i.e. from August 2009 to July 2010). For the
eight months ended 31 March 2010, Maoming Kebi’s unaudited
sales revenue (net of value-added tax) amounted to approximately
HKD34.02million, while its profit after tax reached approximately
HKD17.96million, which met with the management’s expectations.

In November 2009, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement
with Chairman Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (“Ms. CHU") to acquire 100%
equity interest in F&G Group at a consideration of HKD29,267,000
based on F&G Group's net asset value. F&G is located in the Republic
of Botswana in southern Africa and is engaged in the production
and sales of natural extracts. The acquisition was an integral part
of the Group’s strategy of constructing an integrated core value
chain, under which F&G will work together with the Group in the
future business development of new cigarette materials and the
development of new products primarily made of natural materials so
as to capture the enormous business opportunities in the Chinese
tobacco industry arising from the policy of lowering tar content and
harm reduction.

20 Huabao International Holdings Limited FEE BRI AR A
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Equity investment in Qingdao Qingda - aggressive
development of the upstream natural materials
and food ingredients business

In March 2010, the Group subscribed for 51% controlling stake
in Qingdao Qingda, an independent third party, at a consideration
of approximately HKD11.60 million by way of injecting additional
capital. Qingdao Qingda is a professional natural extracts producer
in the PRC, currently its major products are various natural pepper
essences, which have development potential in the domestic and
overseas markets. Its customers include Japan’s lkeda Corporation
and McCormick, etc. After this investment, the Group’s capability
in natural spices extraction is further enhanced. The management
believes the equity investment in Qindao Qingda is part of the
Group's strategic planning for constructing an integrated core value
chain, and will help accelerate the Group's development in the savory
flavours and food ingredients segment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of Flavours Business
1.  Review of operating results

For the year ended 31 March 2010, sales revenue of
the flavours business amounted to HKD2,290,910,000,
representing an increase of about 21.7% from the
corresponding period last year and maintaining a speedy
growth momentum. The EBIT ratio of the flavours segment
was 66.3%, representing an increase of 1.1 percentage points
as compared to 65.2% for the corresponding period last year.
The continuous rapid growth in the flavours business was
primarily attributable to the ongoing rapid rise in the demand
from tobacco customers and the speedy development in the
food and beverage business. The increase in operating profit
margin was primarily attributable to the rapid growth in the
tobacco flavours business and the fast organic growth in the
food and beverage flavours businesses, and enabled the Group
to achieve economies of scale.

Major financial indicators of flavours

BRAEREHZEENKIEE

HKD thousand BT T 2010 2009
EBIT EBIT 1,519,994 1,227,421
EBIT rate EBIT=X 66.3% 65.2%
EBITDA EBITDA 1,577,208 1,281,818
EBITDA rate EBITDAZR 68.8% 68.1%

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Sales revenue review of
flavours for the past 3 years

BEIFRATRENHEDRE

HKD thousand
BT

2,290,910

1,882,695

1,410,984

2008 2009 2010
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The Group continued to apply the “Big Customers, Big Brands”
development strategy by establishing long-term working
relationships with the majority of domestic tobacco enterprises
and by providing customers with comprehensive technical
services, making itself a dominant player in the flavours
market for high-quality domestic cigarettes. In recent years,
the Group has been growing rapidly along with its customers
and steadily increasing its market share. During the year, the
Group acquired 100% equity interest in Maoming Kebi from
independent third parties, further increasing the Group's
market share of certain key customers and brands. Currently,
the integration of Maoming Kebi is progressing smoothly. The
management expects the acquisition will generate good returns
for the Shareholders.

For flavours used in food and beverages, the Group continued
to develop natural and healthy innovative products that fitted
local tastes, offered comprehensive technology value-added
services for the development of key direct sales customers, and
implemented an overall strategy by fully leveraging its strengths
in having a nationwide network for the development of local
small- and medium-sized customers. After several years of
rapid development, the Group has become one of the largest
local flavours and fragrances providers in China. Regarding the
product mix, on the foundation of the two traditional lines,
namely sweet and savory series, the Group has been heavily
developing the area of food ingredients with a localized taste
profile. The results have been obvious and achieved rapid
growth.

In addition, the Group’s major subsidiaries achieved marvelous
results on daily operations during the year.

° The “Year 2009 State Recognized Enterprise Technology
Center Innovation Ability Construction Project” of
Huabao Shanghai was recognized and approved
by National Development and Reform Commission,
indicating that the Group is equipped with capabilities to
take up national major scientific and research projects.
Huabao Shanghai was also granted several honorary
titles including “2009 Top Ten Enterprises of the Flavors
& Fragrance Sector in Chinese Light Industry”, “Top
Overseas Chinese Enterprises in Shanghai”, “Scientific
and Technological Innovation Award of Jiading District”
and “Super Enterprise of Jiading District” while its
trademark “Hedon” once again won the title of
“Shanghai Famous Brand Product”.

AEBERF [KEP - KAmhE] 13 RRR -
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Yunnan Tianhong successfully obtained the W a

environmental management system and
occupational health and safety management
system certification. Its “Tianhong” trademark
was recognized as a famous trademark in
Yunnan. In addition, Yunnan Tianhong was

s EMARZRIBFEBRIE R
BRANBXERLZ2EERR

Pmwmamde || opm 2 X2 BERAAE
i s v | | AR ZZE  BERRER
R eh R | BTEEeES R ERE

Y LY Y Y

R AR LB R -

also granted the Yunnan Province High-Tech
Enterprises Certification and duly approved by
municipal-level enterprise technology centre.

After obtaining the Guangdong Province High-Tech o
Enterprises Certification, Owada was certified as a “Grade

A Labor Protection and Integrity Enterprise”.

Wuxi Jiahua was certified as one of the first innovative .

and high technology products of Jiangsu Province in

2009.

Huashun Shanghai’s self-developed “emulsified
milk flavor (19943) preserved with the natural
food preservative chitosan” product was approved
by experts and granted the title of “Shanghai
Key New Product” by Science and Technology
Commission of Shanghai Municipality. Huashun
Shanghai was also granted the Gold Medal of
“Jiading 2009 Advanced Manufacturing Industry”
and “Year 2009 Super Enterprise in Jiading
District”.
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Wuxi Huahai was recognized as innovative and high o
technology products of Jiangsu Province and certified by
Enterprise Technology Development Institution of Wuxi

New District.

EHEBSRIHASHRMERMED
TR (b 3R BB E -

Huabao Kongque was accredited the title
of “Shanghai Technology Advance Foreign-
invested Enterprise” for five consecutive years.
To comply with the implementation of The
Food Safety Law of the PRC, Huabao Kongque
took initiative to announce its Food Safety

L bbb d g )

CERTIFICATE -
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Declaration within food additives industry

in Shanghai and organized the Second Compliance
Training Program of National Nuts and Roasted Seeds
Industry, which was extensively welcomed by the
industry. The sensory evaluation chamber, market
samples and technology information chamber of Huabao
Kongque commenced operation upon completion of

reconstruction, signifying the further improvement of the

management hardware and the further enhancement of

Huabao Kongque's fundamental management.
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Guangdong Zhaoging successfully completed
the technological self-improvement
project and brought the post-acquisition
consolidation to a new stage to further
enhance its productivity. During the year,

Guangdong Zhaoqing participated in the ~

o EREEBEF 5TA2009F
EEERREETIE  BHFEE

<k B A TIEHESMARER - £

ERFIE -SRI -FR &

o | REESSNEERFAFM

BN RES E£—FSEET

Autumn Food Additives and Ingredients
Exhibition of China and strengthened the sound
reputation of its brand “Star Lake” and the outcome was
appealing. Guangdong Zhaoging was also granted the
Guangdong Province High-Tech Enterprises Certification.

Recent developments and prospects of the downstream

sectors

a.

Recent developments in the tobacco industry

We note that China is the world’s largest cigarettes
consumption country, accounting for approximately one-
third of the total annual consumption in the world. China
has approximately 350 million smokers, consuming over
2.2 trillion sticks of cigarette each year. In recent years,
China’s tobacco industry has been growing steadily and
reflected several characteristics:

Firstly, the total sales volume of the tobacco industry
has maintained a steady growth at an annual CAGR of
around 4% since 2002;

Secondly, Chinese style cigarettes made up a substantial
proportion of the total consumption, while imported
cigarettes only accounted for approximately 0.1% of the
market share in the PRC over the previous years (Source:
Euromonitor);

Thirdly, with the steady improvement in the living
standards of Chinese residents, the demand for high-
end consumer products has been growing gradually,
CAGR of sales in the tobacco industry has remained at
approximately 8% since 2002. Of these sales, there is
a rapid increase in the demand for middle to high-end
premium cigarettes;

2.
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Fourthly, the tobacco industry continues to play a
significant role in the Chinese economy, contributing
industrial and commercial profit tax of approximately
RMB513.1 billion in 2009, and representing an increase
of approximately 14.3% from RMB449.1 billion of the
previous year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Tobacco industry will enter the post-consolidation era

The Chinese tobacco industry has entered into the era
of consolidation since 2005. In 2008, the consolidation
evolved into a new stage in which cross-provincial
and large scale industrial restructuring took place and
brand concentration enhanced substantially. The market
share of the top ten brands in terms of sales volume
has increased by more than 50% over the past five
years, and the top ten brands in terms of sales revenue
have posted a double-digit rapid growth in CAGR. For
example, the sales volume of Zhonghua cigarettes has
doubled over the past few years. The China National
Tobacco Corporation has precisely proposed that the
quality of cigarettes must attain a higher standard and
that key brands will be further cultivated. The “532" and
“461" targets were set as the direction of development
for tobacco brands under the next five-year plan. Brand
concentration will be further improved to build up more
than ten world-class brands of cigarettes. “532" means
to have 5 major cigarette brands producing over 2
million Cases each per year, 3 major brands producing
over 3 million Cases each, and 2 substantially bigger
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brands producing over 5 million master Cases each.
“461" means to have 6 major cigarette brands achieving
over RMB40 billion in sales revenue each per year, 4

) o FEALBER - RAIB/TEHE
BETEBEAREART  TEERE
RAEETETIRS -

major brands achieving over RMB60 billion each, and 1
substantially bigger brand achieving over RMB100 billion.
(Sources for the above: TobaccoChina Online). Based on
the above, we believe that China‘s tobacco industry will
enter into a post-consolidation era, giving rise to higher
degree of concentration in the industry.

“532” and “461” consolidation target
(5321 % [461 | EEEHE

Target production Number of  Target sales Number of
per brand SEREEEER brands  per brand SED A EE brands
(Cases) (K%8) miEEE  (RMB billion) (BTAR®) miE B E
5 million+ S5HS+ 2 100+ 1,000+ 1
3 million+ 3EE+ 3 60+ 600+
2 million+ 2EB+ 5 40+ 400+

The State sets new standards for tar content in the next
five years

It is apparent that Chinese style cigarettes contain a
relatively higher level of tar content than the standards
prescribed by developed countries. In 2009, the average
tar content per cigarette in China was approximately
12.1 mg, while the tar content of major cigarette brands
in Europe and US was normally below 8 mg per cigarette
and that of major cigarette brands in Japan was below
5 mg per cigarette. The Chinese Government introduced
new regulations governing tar content in 2010, under
which the tar content per cigarette shall not exceed 12
mg from 1 January 2011, and shall be further reduced to
less than 10 mg from 1 January 2015 (sources: Tobacco
Science & Technology). The management believes that
following the development trend of healthier Chinese
style cigarettes and new products, there will be more
new cigarette materials used in products gradually. The
new cigarette materials business will become the Group’s
potential room for development.
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New food safety law raises industry thresholds

The new Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China was promulgated in June 2009, setting out higher
requirements for all players in the food industry and
further raising the industry thresholds. The Group has
always been rigid about product quality and food safety.
All major subsidiaries of the Group have obtained quality
certifications from both domestic and international
institutions. In recent years, the Group has increased
spending and efforts on establishing and implementing
a set of stringent control procedures as an aggressive
move to align with the high international standards.
A set of strict quality control system for raw materials
procurement, production and finished products has been
set up. We expect a higher degree of concentration in
the food and beverage industry and its related sectors
in the future. As a local leading flavours and fragrances
company, we believe there will be broader space for
development of the Group in the future.

Localized, natural and healthy tastes of food and
beverages are becoming the main theme

The Chinese consumer products sector is advancing to
a higher level, characterized by higher product quality
demand from consumers. We expect Chinese consumers’
demand for localized, natural and healthy tastes of
food and beverages is becoming the main theme. The
Group has focused its R&D efforts and emphasized the
contemporary needs of “natural, healthy, trendy and
classic”, successfully developed several new products and
has achieved good results. Looking forward, the Group
will expand the upstream natural materials sector to
further enhance the competitiveness of our products.

Development strategy for the food flavours business

Tobacco sector

- To continuously pursue the “Big Customers, Big
Brands” development strategy and capitalize on the
industry consolidation to capture greater market
share;

- To further step up technological exchange and
cooperation with leading players in the tobacco
industry, seize the opportunity from the lowering
of tar content and harm reduction as well as
constantly explore new ideas and launch new
products;
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To continue the consolidation of the tobacco
flavours industry via M&As so as to maintain the
Group's strategic position in the sector.

Food and beverage sector

To continue carrying out the two-thronged
approach of distribution and direct sales, further
consolidate and improve the distribution network
as well as fully utilize the market recognition and
network advantages of “Kongque” brand;

To focus on developing direct sales, foster key
customers in the industry, establish all-round
working relationship and strive to secure an
ongoing rapid growth in the business with major
direct sales customers;

To accelerate the development of savory flavours
and to provide local customers in the food and
beverage industry and catering industry with more
personalized products based on high standards,
specialization and localization;

To increase spending on R&D and bring in
international top-notch R&D personnel continuously
to upgrade the R&D standards of our products;

To ensure food safety and prevent food hazards
by focusing on food security, and to seize business
opportunities in this aspect;

To monitor industry development, seek opportunity
to carry out M&As, establish an integrated value
chain and accelerate the development of the
upstream natural materials and downstream food
ingredients business.

AR
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Business Review

In May 2008, the Group successfully acquired 51%
equity interests in Xiamen Amber and entered into the
fragrances industry. Upon acquisition, the Group carried out
comprehensive integration of Xiamen Amber. Xiamen Amber
out-ranked ten-thousands of small to medium sized enterprises
and won the title of “The Most Potential SME” during the year.
In addition, following the honorable recognition as a well-
known trademark in Xiamen, “Amber” was recognized as a
famous trademark in Fujian province. This symbolized that the
brand construction of Xiamen Amber has reached a new stage.
Xiamen Amber elevated its reputation by participated in the
likes of the 14th “China Beauty Expo” during the year. Xiamen
Amber conferred with famous daily chemical enterprises in
the Pearl River Delta and Yangtze River Delta area to get a
better understanding of each other and established a positive
corporate image, laying a solid foundation for the future
cooperation with key customers in the fragrance business. In
addition, Xiamen Amber was granted the title of “High-tech
Enterprise”. Other than demonstrating the consolidation ability
of the Group, these outstanding performances also boosted
the overall competitiveness of Xiamen Amber.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, sales revenue from
Xiamen Amber amounted to HKD75,493,000, increased by
approximately 35.4% from the previous year, and operating
profit amounted to HKD 18,669,000, increased by approximately
39.2% from the previous year. EBIT margin reached 24.7%,
which maintained a steady growth. Through the integration of
Xiamen Amber, the Group has recognized a robust growth in
revenue and operating efficiency was highly elevated.

Major financial indicators of fragrances

HASRERZEEMKIER

HKD thousand BT T
EBIT EBIT
EBIT rate EBIT=
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA rate EBITDAXR

Xiamen Amber is dedicated to establishing good partnerships
with a batch of quality and renowned customers in the
Chinese market, such as Liby (:2H), Lanju (1%5), Lonkey (R
27), Sanxiao (=%5), Rainbow Group (FUI%E), Ador (fEE)
and some domestic leading daily chemical manufacturers. For
the year ended 31 March 2010, Xiamen Amber has developed
more than 70 new products and made major breakthroughs in
fragrances used in fresheners, detergents, perfumed soaps and

personal care products.
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2. Development strategy for the fragrances business

- To fully utilize Xiamen Amber as a platform and the
robust composite R&D capability of the Group’s State-
recognized technology centre and overseas R&D centre,
specialize in expanding and developing localized products
and business, establish a foothold in the field of aromatic
and detergent products, and step up the development
of new products such as shampoo, foam bath and air
fresheners as well as the penetration of new customers;

- To capitalize on the relatively high regional concentration
of the PRC fragrances market, set a foothold in Xiamen
and further expand into the key markets in the Pearl River
Delta and Yangtze River Delta to further enhance the size
and strength of the Group;

- To seek opportunities for M&As and identify the right
opportunity to acquire and merge with those enterprises
whose products and markets are complementary with the
Group so as to further enhance the size and strength of
the Group.

The R&D capability of a flavours and fragrances company reflects
its overall strength. After continuous investment, the Group has
set up a leading R&D team which is top-notch in China and up to
international standards. The State-recognized technology centre,
the overseas R&D centre in Germany and the professional R&D
departments in Yunnan, Guangdong and Fujian together formed
a vertically integrated platform for R&D in areas ranging from
fundamental researches to applications. The R&D strategy of the
Group is market-driven so as to closely follow the latest global
industry trends and to accelerate the mastering of technologies
in key raw materials. With such strengths, the Group is able to
develop products and technologies that meet market demands,
deliver comprehensive technical services to customers and remain
dedicated to maximizing value for clients, while the Group’s overall
competitiveness is greatly elevated.
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Increase input to build an internationalized R&D team

The Group has been continuously increasing input into R&D in
order to achieve a top-notch R&D team in the industry and to
sustain a long-term R&D advantage. This year the Group’s R&D cost
amounted to HKD83,071,000, representing approximately 3.5%
of sales revenue, compared with 2.7% of corresponding period
last year. In the mean time, Huabao has been emphasizing on the
internationalization of its talented staff. Over the years, Huabao
has embarked on setting up an internationalized R&D team, whose
R&D capability is directly in line with the advanced international
level. The Group closely monitors changes in the human resources
market from time to time and is keen on building a diversified and
internationalized team. Currently, the Group employed a total of 238
R&D personnel in various aspects, assembling a respectable team
with strong R&D capabilities.

R&D Achievements

During the year, the Group accomplished fruitful achievements in
fundamental R&D and in the area of applications. These included:

o Developed more than 500 new products in total

o Applied, obtained in aggregate of 50 patents

o “Year 2009 State Recognized Enterprise Technology Center
Innovation Ability Construction Project” passed the approval
of National Development and Reform Commission and was
awarded RMB5 million of subsidy

List of major patents

1 One method of extracting flavor components from Chinese
herbs and medicine and their application

2 Compound Chinese herbs and medicine additives in tobacco
and its application

3 A new style technology of microencapsulated flavour

4 The separation and the tobacco flavor application of Glucoside
from loquat leaves

5 The separation and the tobacco flavor application of the
aromatic component from sour oranges

6 One synthesis method of bromo-tetra-o-acetyl-B-D-
glucopyranose and its application

7  Off-taste masking powdered tobacco flavour

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group remained committed to corporate culture construction
and established a clear vision, as well as a common goal for all
employees, of combining corporate development and individual
growth to achieve common development of the Company and its
employees. Adhering to its core value of for years to
maximize client values, the Group also constituted a code of conduct

“client first”

for each employee on the basis of this concept. The Group organized
corporate culture promotion activities, including articles and speeches
delivered by the management, publication of Huabao Monthly and
essay competition. The Group enriched employees’
through various recreational and sports activities including sports
contests and outward bound training to reinforce cohesion of

leisure time

Huabao people and their sense of identity.

The Group placed substantial emphasis on talent training. The
Group stepped up its efforts in creating a scientific and flexible
management environment and institutional mechanism in terms of
policy, system and culture development, empowering each employee
to make full use of his expertise and specialties and maintaining
joint force of its staff to create more values for the Group. The
Group established sound training scheme for its reserve talents on
the basis of external recruitment. The selection procedures applied
to reserve talents include five stages, namely public nomination and
selection, work units review, verification by headquarter, approval
and result announcement. Reserve talents management mainly
comprises regular inspection, dynamic adjustment, training and
profile management. Through its annual examination and assessment
on reserve talents, the result of which is to be recorded into personal
profile, the Group will promote those with excellent appraisal
performance and eliminate those with unsatisfactory results. During
inspection period, reserve talents are under direct coaching and
supervision of mentors. The Group organized reserve talents selection
and review from April to May every year to guarantee healthy and
orderly development of reserve talents. The continuous construction
of our talent team guarantees new momentum for corporate
expansion and development.

The Group established a multi-level comprehensive staff training
system, comprising special training program for middle to high level
employees, intensive training for reserve talents, as well as business
skills and industrial know-how coaching for front-line staff. External
experts and internal management and professionals were invited to
act as program trainers. Through these successive training programs,
the initiatives of employees were mobilized while their professional
knowledge and technical competency were enhanced.
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As at 31 March 2010, the Group employed a total of 1,316employees
in the PRC, Hong Kong, Germany and Botswana, representing
an increase of approximately 5.7% or 71 employees from 1,245
employees of last year. The labour costs of the year (including
pension costs) amounted to HKD128,497,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 11.2% or HKD16,184,000 from
HKD144,681,000 for the previous year. For details, please refer to
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements headed under
“Employment Benefit Expenses”. The decrease in the labour costs
was primarily attributable to the decrease of staff's share option
compensation expenses. The Group has launched a share option
scheme as an incentive to those employees and directors who have
made significant contributions to the business development of the
Group. For the period from year 2006 to 2008, the Group granted
share options to 79 persons including directors, senior management,
technical and business executives.

Analysis of annual results for the year ended 31 March 2010
Sales revenue

The Group’s sales revenue amounted to HKD2,366,403,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2010, representing an increase of about 22.1%
as compared with HKD1,938,443,000 for the corresponding period
last year. The rapid growth in sales revenue was mainly attributable
to a substantial increase in the sales of flavours and fragrances. For
the year ended 31 March 2010, sales revenue from flavours increased
by about 21.7% to HKD2,290,910,000, contributing about 96.8%
of total sales revenue, while sales revenue from fragrances increased
approximately 35.4% to HKD75,493,000, contributing about 3.2%
of total sales revenue.

Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold amounted to HKD579,568,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2010, representing an increase of about
21.8% as compared with HKD475,928,000 for the corresponding
period last year. The percentage increase in cost of goods sold being
slightly lower than the percentage increase in sales revenue was
mainly attributable to the slight increase in gross profit margin of the
Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit of the Group increased from HKD1,462,515,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2009 to HKD1,786,835,000 for the year ended
31 March 2010, representing an increase of about 22.2%, while
gross profit margin of the Group slightly increased from 75.4% of
last financial year to 75.5% of the current financial year. Gross profit
margin continues to remain stable. The remarkable increase in gross
profit was mainly attributable to the substantial increase in sales
revenue of the Group.

Other income

Other income of the Group was HKD36,237,000 for the year ended
31 March 2010, representing a slight increase of HKD31,000 as
compared with HKD36,206,000 for the year ended 31 March 2009.
Other income remains stable.

Selling and marketing expenses

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group mainly comprised
of traveling expenses, transportation cost, salaries and office
expenses. The selling and marketing expenses of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2010 were HKD73,057,000, representing
a decrease of about 7.5% as compared with HKD78,984,000 for
the corresponding period last year. Selling and marketing expenses
to total sales revenue during the years under review amounted to
approximately 3.1% and 4.1% respectively, representing a decrease
of approximately 1 percentage point. The decrease in the ratio
of selling and marketing expenses to sales revenue was mainly
attributable to cost saving, higher efficiency and economies of scale.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses amounted to HKD233,326,000
for the year ended 31 March 2010, representing an increase of
approximately 4.0% as compared with HKD224,285,000 for the
corresponding period last year. Administrative expenses to total sales
revenue during the current financial year amounted to approximately
9.9%, representing a decrease of approximately 1.7 percentage
points as compared with 11.6% for the corresponding period last
year. Among the total sales revenue during the current financial
year, R&D expenses amounted to approximately 3.5%, an increase
of approximately 0.8 percentage point compared with last year. The
decrease in ratio of administrative expenses to total sales revenue
was mainly attributable to the higher management efficiency and to
aggressively control expenses.
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Operating profit

Operating profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010
was HKD1,516,689,000, representing an increase of approximately
26.9% as compared with HKD1,195,452,000 for the corresponding
period last year, while the operating profit margin reached 64.1%,
increased by 2.4 percentage points comparing with last year. The
increase in operating profit margin is mainly attributable to the
decrease in selling and marketing expenses.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010
was HKD162,236,000, it was increased substantially as compared
with HKD82,157,000 for the corresponding period last year, with the
income tax rates were approximately 10.6% and approximately 6.8%
respectively. The substantial increase in the income tax expenses was
mainly attributable to the growth of the profit and the increase in
income tax rate of certain PRC subsidiaries due to their preferential
tax periods (two-year exemption and three-year half rate) were
expired; the latter represents the main factor in the increase of the
income tax rate during this year.

Net current asset value and financial resources

As at 31 March 2010, the net current asset value of the Group was
HKD1,998,156,000 (2009: HKD1,127,616,000). The Group generates
its working capital mainly through its operating activities to maintain
a sound financial position. As at 31 March 2010, the Group had
short-term time deposit of HKD230,886,000 (2009: nil). The Group’s
cash and cash equivalents amounted to HKD1,678,640,000 (2009:
HKD1,126,735,000), over 96% of which was held in RMB. The Group
neither held any forex hedging products nor structured investment
products or financial derivatives.

Bank borrowings and gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had bank borrowings of
HKD250,236,000, out of which HKD240,000,000 is clean loan with
interest calculated based on HK dollars inter-banks borrowings rate.
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the average annual interest
rate was 1.63% (2009: nil). All bank borrowings are due within 1
year and the gearing ratio (total borrowings, include current and
non-current borrowings, divided by total equity (excludes minority
interest)) was about 6.6% (2009: nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Investing activities

The Group's investing activities were mainly incurred for the purchase
of fixed assets and the strategically development strategies for
M&As. For the year ended 31 March 2010, the net cash used in
investing activities amounted to HKD357,650,000, mainly incurred
for the acquisition of F&G Group and Maoming Kebi, as well as the
short-time time deposits. For the year ended 31 March 2009, the net
cash used in investing activities amounted to HKD677,953,000.

Financing activities

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the net cash used in financing
activities amounted to HKD476,591,000, mainly used for dividend
distribution to shareholders and repayment of Shareholders’ loan.
For the year ended 31 March 2009, the net cash used in financing
activities amounted to HKD281,930,000.

Debtors’ turnover period

Debtors’ turnover period is calculated on the basis of the average
amount of trade receivables as at the beginning and the end of
a relevant financial year divided by the total sales revenue for
the corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days. The Group
generally offers its customers a credit period of approximately
0-180 days, depending on the business volume of, and the length
of business relationship with, the customers. For the year ended 31
March 2010, the Group’'s average debtors’ turnover period was 71
days, representing a decrease of 2 days as compared with 73 days for
the last financial year ended 31 March 2009. The debtors’ turnover
period decreased as a result of enhancing credit management and
control measures undertaken by the Group.

Creditors " turnover period

Creditors’ turnover period is calculated on the basis of the average
amount of trade payables as at the beginning and the end of a
relevant financial year divided by the cost of goods sold for the
corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days. Credit periods
granted by suppliers to the Group ranged from 0-180 days. For the
year ended 31 March 2010, the Group's average creditors’ turnover
period was 121 days, representing an increase of 2 days as compared
with 119 days for the last financial year ended 31 March 2009. The
creditors’ turnover period remains stable.
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Inventory and inventory turnover period

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s inventory balance amounted to
HKD235,294,000 (2009: HKD211,820,000). For the year ended 31
March 2010, the inventory turnover period (calculated on the basis
of the average amount of inventory balances as at the beginning
and the end of a relevant financial year divided by the total cost of
goods sold for the corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days)
was 139 days, representing an increase of 7 days as compared with
132 days for the last financial year. The longer inventory turnover
period for the year was a result of inventory storage adjustment of
the Group in order to fulfill the production requirement and shorter
supply cycle of customers.

Foreign exchange and exchange rate risk

The principal businesses of the Group are located in the Mainland
China and the majority of the business transactions are denominated
in RMB. The Board is of the view that the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk is insignificant. There is insignificant pressure
for the depreciation of RMB and thus the Group's exposure to
exchange rate risk is relatively low.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2010, the secured bank loan of the Group amounted
to RMB9,000,000.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of the purchase of property, plant and equipment contracted for but
not provided in the financial statements amounting to approximately
HKD4,234,000 (2009: HKD5,671,000).

Contingent liabilities

According to the information available to the Board, the Group had
no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2010.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FUTURE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLANS

New Materials for Cigarettes

New materials for cigarette refer to the application of advanced
technology to re-utilize some of the residues created during tobacco
processing such as sesame chips, fragments and leaf stems, in order
to reduce the tar content in cigarettes, stabilize cigarette taste
and lower production costs. After nearly 20 years of development,
new materials for cigarettes have been widely applied in the global
tobacco industry. Based on the analysis on the current mainland
tobacco industry, the management expects new materials for
cigarettes will have very broad development potential in the coming
cycle primarily due to the fact that lowering of tar content for harm
reduction will have an impact on the quality of tobacco products, the
structural imbalance between the persistent rapid rise in the market
demand for high-end Chinese style cigarettes as well as the supply of
upstream materials, etc.

Several years ago, Huabao has already aimed at this potentially huge
market and initiated its strategic planning and positioning in China’s
future market for new cigarette materials. Proceeding aggressively
with the upstream materials, team building, research projects, pre-
stage pilot schemes and so forth, Huabao has made a breakthrough
progress in reducing tar content and harm over the past several
years. It has employed the core technology in tobacco flavours as
a good starting point, and having mastered customer resources by
means of the successful implementation of the “Big Customers, Big
Brands” strategy over the years, supplemented by the availability
of unique overseas upstream raw material resources. All of these
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have established the stronger core competitiveness of Huabao. The
management is confident in developing the new cigarette materials
into one of the new strong growth drivers in the next several years.
During the year, the Group established the joint-venture company,
Yunnan Qing Tian Xiang, which will be focused on developing new
cigarette materials; the commencement of such project symbolizes
the Group’s inception into such area and implementation stage.
(Please refer to the third point of the Mergers and Acquisitions
section in page 64 of this report)

Food ingredients

We note that the quickened pace of life and consumers’ ongoing
pursuit of quality lifestyle will trigger a new round of revolution in
cooking methods in the Chinese catering industry. A new breed
of more natural, safer, and faster composite cooking seasonings
are anticipated to become the trend and should hold enormous
space for development in the food ingredients area in the future.
Huabao has identified this historic opportunity for development and
is determined to become an expert in the quality of service in the
Chinese fast food industry. Over the past several years, the strategic
planning was basically completed by moving into the food sector
with the acquisition of Huabao Kongque, followed by the success of
Guangzhou Huabao in the separation of sweet and savory products.
As one of the top ten local flavours companies in the PRC, Huabao
has established advantages in terms of research team, product
development and distribution channel. Last year, the Group launched
the products of “Hanfo Cooking Secret” in Yunnan, Guizhou,
Sichuan and Chongging provinces, applying traditional Sichuan taste
as an entry point in the fast food industry, which was well-received in
the market. This year, the Group’s new Muslim food ingredients line
will commence production, its target market is mainland China and
Southeast Asia regions. The management is confident in developing
the food ingredients into one of the strong growth drivers of Huabao
in the next several years.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Aromatic raw materials business

Raw materials are one of the core competitive edges of flavours and
fragrances enterprises. Huabao has always been committed to the
strategic development of the upstream flavouring materials business
to create an integrated core value chain and enhance its overall
competitiveness. The Group plans to further develop the flavour
materials segment by establishing an international raw materials base
and a special high-quality raw materials processing centre, through
acquisition in order to obtain certain distinctive raw materials. In
2007, the Group established Wuxi Huahai in Wuxi to materialize
its own scientific research achievements. Wuxi Huahai, which is
engaged in the separation, purification and fine processing of
natural fragrance products and Chinese herbal products, contributed
to the Group by reducing costs and substantially improving the
competitiveness of our products. The Group acquired F&G, the
production base in Botswana in southern Africa, in November 2009.
The exceptional abundance of local natural resources in Botswana
has provided an important support for the upcoming development
of new cigarette materials. During the year, the Group subscribed
for the controlling stake in Qingdao Qingda for the development of
natural spices extracts. Such development is largely in line with the
Group's savory flavours and food ingredients business, thus laying a
strong foundation for the long-term development of Huabao.
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With a population of 1.4 billion, the Chinese economy is embracing
an enormous consumption potential and will soon become the
second largest economy in the world. The Chinese consumer
products market will continue to grow rapidly in terms of coverage
and product quality. With the flavours and fragrances business
as its core, the Group will adhere to its “multi-pronged, focus-
growth” development strategy by capitalizing on the advantages of
our technology, marketing, management and network to provide
downstream customers with more personalized products and
technical services, and diversifying into a new business segment that
focuses on new cigarette materials, food ingredients and aromatic
raw materials in the future to establish an integrated core value
chain. Through organic and M&A development, the Group will grow
rapidly into a globally leading player in the flavours and fragrances
industry and tasty life.

Our future development strategy remains to seize the great
opportunities arising from the Chinese economic development:

o Multi-pronged with focus on flavours and fragrances as core
value

o Accelerate the development of flavours business, actively
develop fragrances business

o Proactively expand into the new cigarette materials and food
ingredients businesses

o Expand upstream aromatic raw materials business and strive to
form an integrated core value chain

o Expand through organic growth and M&A

o Leverage on China’s market to grow into a globally leading
player in the flavours and fragrances industry and tasty life

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management (Note)

EENRSREERRE ()

Executive Directors H{T==

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu, aged 40, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company. Ms.
Chu is also a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “C1"” and
the legal representative of those companies marked with “C2" as set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. Ms. Chu is experienced in formulating strategies
and making executive decisions on business operation, investments and market
development. Ms. Chu is currently the Deputy Director of CAFFCI and a member of
the Fourth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee (Shenzhen,
Guangdong province). Ms. Chu, through the corporations controlled by her, is the
— beneficial owner of Shares of the Company as set out in note (a) in page 70 headed under
Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures.
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Mr. LAU Chi Tak, aged 53, CEO and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lau
is also a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “L1” and the
legal representative of those companies marked with “L2” as set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor’s degree in chemistry
and has over 20 years' experience in the international flavour and fragrance industry.

He held a managerial position in a leading international flavour and fragrance
company before joining the Company. Mr. Lau possesses in-depth knowledge of

the Asian market and is particularly experienced in the business development in the
greater China area.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Note)

EERSREREREE (1)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwolc, aged 47, an Executive Director and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Poon was awarded the postgraduate certificate in laws by the University of
London. He holds a bachelor degree in laws and a bachelor degree in business studies and

a master degree in international accounting. He is a member and an Associate Instructor

of the Hong Kong Securities Institute and its Professional Education Committee, an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Poon worked as a regulator, commercial
and investment banker and has broad experience in finance and securities regulations. He
retired as an independent non-executive director of CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited upon

expiry of term in June 2009 and now serves as an independent non-executive director of Tsingtao
Brewery Company Limited, listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. WANG Guang Yu, aged 46, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wang is
also the Chief Technical Officer of the Company and a director of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries marked with “W1" and the legal representative of those
companies marked with “W2" as set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. He holds a master’s degree in chemical analysis and has a qualification

of senior engineer. Mr. Wang was an expert with special allowance by the State
Council of the PRC government in recognition of his outstanding contribution to the
engineering technology sector of China. Mr. Wang previously worked in management
positions of large-scale chemical company in China. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of R&D
and management experiences in the chemical industry and is currently the Deputy Director of
CAFFCI, a Member of Laws Committee of China Flavours & Fragrances Committee and a Member
of Jiading Science Technology Committee of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park.

THRFMEE - 4658 RNAFMITES - TRENMBAEBEIMARE MBI ERE M HRA M 5337 5l
B Wil R W2 fERZARBEZZMBRANERIEERRA « BFHEOILBBLTEM
SRTIZENER - REBRERRURER  WREEHTETERMERMMOREER - SER
RPBEA AR TERERRA - TAEHFBB T AF I TRINMAERER I HAR - TE4E
RECHFHEELCHEEEER  TEEREMGSERZBEeR BN R ISRKERZED BRI
BRMBEERE -

Huabao International Holdings Limited # % B 1ZEARBR A F] ¢ 2009-2010 Annual Report 4F 43



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Note)

EEREREREREE ()

Mr. XIA Li Qun, aged 43, an Executive Director, the Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company since September 2006. Mr. Xia is a director of the Company’s

principal subsidiaries marked with “X1” and the legal representative of those companies

marked with “X2" as set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Xia

is also responsible for the Group's finance, administration and human resources. Mr. Xia

holds a bachelor of arts in economics and is a certified accountant, certified tax specialist

and certified appraiser in China. Mr. Xia has over 20 years of financial and corporate

management experience. Mr. Xia previously worked in domestic accounting firms in China

and was a senior management member of a foreign invested enterprise in China. He is currently
the Honorary Chairman of the Shanghai Food Additive Association.

ERFSLE 435 ARRMITES - SEBGERNVBRE  BERETREANGA M BRRME
337351 [X1] R [X2] FRZADREEMBARNEEIEERRA - EXRENDEREEH
% ITBRRASTE - BEEKESEL U RPBEMSEED - MRG0 REMFEmER o
BRABER _+FUBREOXEETELR - WEERRNPEAL S EHMNSEZ MR
BrEREEERM - BEALREE EESTRAMBHEEESR -

Mr. XIONG Qing, aged 33, an Executive Director of the Company since February
2008. Mr. Xiong majored in international accounting in Tsinghua University School of
Economics and Management, and graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
He is also an EMBA degree holder of INSEAD in France. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Xiong previously worked in several international investment banks for years. Mr.
Xiong has extensive experiences with Chinese enterprises and international capital
market.

FRIISEAE - 335 0 ARAMITES - RALEXNFEASKEEEERHBEREFHX
BEEBET BT o RRIEETNFHEEBINSEADRI 2B EMBASR L o RRIEEFEIMAREE Z AT -
LEZHREFRERTERZF  HhEREZEEURBREATS T ERGEE 285 -
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Independent Non-Executive Directors B k#HITESE

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu, aged 52, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Lee is a fellow member of ACCA and an associate member of HKICPA. Mr. Lee is the
senior consultant of an investment bank. Mr. Lee has about 25 years of ample experience
in commercial accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Lee has principally engaged in
corporate finance and regulatory aspects in the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee was an Assistant
Vice President of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange, and his duties included
regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed companies in relation to their compliance
with the Listing Rules and processing new listing applications.

FRREE 528 ARBBUFNTES - FEERKBFHALNRGTMAGERGERER
BRI AEEE FELREREARTHNSLER - FAEEHESHREERETEERLD
T RFEELR  FTALEEIENERIMIOEMEREESE - FREGEBB R EHH
s HRESERENEERELTARAMET LMRRIKEEH EHERGIZRF -

Ms. MA Yun Yan, aged 49, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. She
graduated from the Law School of Peking University in 1984 and qualified as a lawyer in

China in 1986. Ms. Ma has been dedicated to teaching and doing research in the Law

School in relation to international commerce and investment aspects for 10 years. She is

now the Partner of Shu Jin Law Firm. Ms. Ma has extensive experience in the legal field

in relation to the capital markets, including investments, acquisition and mergers, issu-

ance of securities etc, and has lead-managed the issuance of shares and convertible bonds

and major restructuring of numerous listed companies such as China Vanke Co., Ltd., China
Petroleum Jilin Chemical Engineering Construction Co. Ltd., China Merchants Property Devel-
opment Co., Ltd., Wisesoft Co., Ltd., shares of which are listed on the PRC stock exchanges, and
also AAC Acoustic Technologies Holdings Inc., Vital BioTech Holdings Limited and Shenzhen High-Tech
Holdings Limited, shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Ma was a
members of the Fourth Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Ms. Ma is now a member of
First Growth Enterprises Board Public Offering Review Committee of China Securities Regulatory Com-
mittee and an Independent Non-executive Director of Shenzhen Laibao High Technology Co. Ltd., the
shares of which are listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

JREFRZ L - 4958  ARBBUIERITES - BRI N\ELERERNILERREZRR - — AR
FRPEAESERIER - M T QLR EEFEEREEERAEE2HNE AR TIELXTFi
M- BRETERAEREEZMEBMEEA - MALTZFREBRE - WHERN  BHFBTEELRMS
RUEARER - ST RETFERE LM ARERCERNERAR - FHEMEREIERO AR
Al BEEERROBERAF - BIIKEBEROERAR : HBEREMAFAAC Acoustic
Technologies Holdings Inc. » #BAMBHRIERER AT RANEHIZRBERATEEZR LM AT
fRE - AIRREHFFITUREATHE - EEBEERYESFRIMFNELTEZEESEE - MixtR
FHRBFLEEEREEZESF EAIERBITEZZESZE MY LT ARRIIHE s RHEAR D
BRABIMNBIIIENITES -
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Mr. MAK Kin Kwong, aged 48, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Mak is a graduate of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and a fellow member of

HKICPA and ACCA, and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, in England

and Wales. Mr. Mak is the managing director of Venfund Investment, a Shenzhen based

mid-market M&A investment banking firm specializing in cross-border mergers and

acquisitions, corporate restructuring, capital raising and international financial advisory

services for Chinese privately-owned clients, which he co-founded in late 2001. Prior to

that, Mr. Mak spent 17 years at Arthur Andersen Worldwide where he was a Firm partner

and served as the managing partner of Arthur Andersen Southern China in his last position
with the Firm.

Mr. Mak serves as an independent non-executive director and audit committee chairman of
Trina Solar Limited, China GrenTech Corp. Ltd., Dragon Pharmaceutical Inc. and China Security
& Surveillance Technology, Inc. all of which are companies listed in the U.S.; Shenzhen Fiyata
Holdings Limited, listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, 361 Degrees International Limited, China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., Pou Sheng International (Holdings) Limited and Real Gold Mining
Limited, all listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Mak resigned as the
non-executive director of Bright World Precision Machinery Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of the Republic of Singapore in December 2009 and as the non-executive director of
Vinda International Holdings Ltd., a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
December 2008 and as the independent director of Network CN Inc., a listed company in the U.S.
in December 2009 and ceased to be an independent non-executive director of Gemdale Industries,
Inc., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in April 2009.
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Senior Management S EEE

Mr. ZHANG Yong, aged 49, is the Vice President of the Group and is responsible for
marketing and sales. He holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He served in local
governments and large enterprises in the Mainland China. Mr. Zhang has nearly 20
years' experience in marketing and management.

CRECAE 4958 BIARE - DEMISEEETE o RIETREELEM - BERRT
B A T B MARLI R - SREAEB L — +HFNEHERER T ELR °

Mr. Alan DAVIES, aged 62, is the Chief Technical Officer of tobacco flavour and Head of
Aromascape Development Centre in Germany. Mr. Davies holds a Higher National Diploma
in Food Science of Grimsby College of Technology, UK. Mr. Davies served as a senior
flavourist in charge of creation and applications in a number of world renowned flavours
and fragrances companies and tobacco factory, including Bush Boake Allen, Carreras
Rothmans, Dragoco and Symrise. Mr. Davies has over 35 years’ experience in tobacco
flavouring.

Mr. Alan DAVIES » 625% * ERBBEREITEE « fEEAromascapeBHFFLEE © Mr. Davies
B A B Grimsby College of Technology®I B mEIZ R HERICE + WEFBAZREBENAHNER
HRVATMIER -+ B 3EBush Boake Allen * Carreras Rothmans * Dragoco and Symrise * R HFAE
R EEFMEFIER + Mr. DavieslE B BB =T AFRERERELESR
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Mr. Helmut GEHLE, aged 52, is the Chief Technical Officer of food flavour, and
holds Chemical Technology Certificate of Industrial Vocational School, Holzminden,
Germany. Mr. Gehle served as a senior flavourist and senior technical officer in a
number of world renowned flavours and fragrances companies including Dragoco,
Quest and Symrise. Mr. Gehle has more than 20 years’ experience in flavouring and
management.

Mr. Helmut GEHLE » 525% - RFASRBERRINAE - FA2ZEIndustrial Vocational
School, Holzminden#){L 225 fiT &2 - Mr. Gehle & {TE M Dragoco * Quest * SymriseZ% R
RHMEBREEHAE EEREABTMNS R ERRA - Mr. GehleliB —+2FMH
ENEIR L8 o

Mr. LIN Chang Kui, aged 47, is the Administrative and Personnel Director of the Group.
Mr. Lin is a doctor graduate student of enterprise management and holds an MBA degree;
he served as a senior executive in a large enterprise group and has years of experience in
operations management of enterprise group, proficient in corporate strategy planning,
group strategy management, design of standard corporate governance, and well
experienced in capital operations including project planning and enterprise M&A.

MEZESLE 475 KRETBRASFAE -MELRCEEEBRLIHARL  REHEEIEHER

BB GRERENS T EEERHESRERERY  AAZFRELELLEERER

Koy - BBERBERAE  KRERREEEMABERNAEREIRG - £ RERENERHE
FENBEIHAEAESENER -

Note: Information contained in this section was up to 31 March 2010.
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Corporate governance refers to the rules and incentives by which the
management of a company is directed and controlled to maximize the
profitability and long-term value of the firm for shareholders while
taking into account the interest of other legitimate stakeholders (UK
Cadbury Report 1992). The Board recognizes the importance and
benefits of good corporate governance practices and has adopted
certain corporate governance and disclosure practices aiming at
a high level of transparency and accountability. The Company is
committed to continuously improving its corporate governance
practices as part of its own corporate culture.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code on
corporate governance practices except for the deviation from the
code provision A.4.1 in respect of the terms of INEDs mentioned
below. In addition, the Company complied with the code provisions
as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2010. The applications of the CG Code are set out below:

1.  Board of Directors
Responsibilities of Directors

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
formulation of the business strategy of the Company and
setting objectives for management, overseeing its performance
and assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.

The Executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day
management of the Company’s operations and conduct
meetings with senior management of the Group at which
operational issues and financial performance are evaluated.

The Bye-laws of the Company set out the responsibilities and
proceedings of the Board. Significant operational policies
have to be discussed and approved by the Board. To enable
the Directors to meet their obligations, an appropriate
organizational structure is in place with clearly defined
responsibilities and limits of authority.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its
powers that it may think fit to a director or member of senior
management of the Company. The Board has formulated clear
and specific rules and policies on such delegation of power to
facilitate efficient operation of the Company and is supported
by two committees which are Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee.

Board Composition

The Company has a well-balanced Board. As at the date of
this annual report, the Board comprises six Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The Chairman
of the Board is Ms. CHU Lam Yiu and the CEO is Mr. LAU
Chi Tak. The role of Chairman and CEO of the Company has
been segregated to allow a balance of power and delegation.
All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to manage the Board including
the following:

o To provide leadership for the Board and ensure that
the Directors meet regularly and whenever necessary to
consider all key and appropriate issues in a timely manner
and thus ensure the Board functions effectively and
discharges its responsibilities;

J With the supports of the CFO, the Qualified Accountant
(“QA") and the Company Secretary, to ensure all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings and receive adequate, complete, reliable and
timely information for making decisions;

. To lead and set the strategic plan of the Company and
supervise the implementation of resolutions approved
by the Board. Each Executive Director is to oversee and
monitor different functions of the Group according to
their respective profession skills and expertise;

o To play a leading role in maintaining the balanced
composition of the Board and sub-board committees, so
as to make the Board an effective team that works with
high degree of harmony;
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. The Chairman has delegated to the designated director(s)
and the Company Secretary the responsibilities of
drawing up and approving the agenda for each board
meeting and contacting other directors for any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda before each board
meeting; and

o To ensure good corporate governance practices and
procedures are in place. In the Company, the Chairman,
through the CFO, the QA and the Company Secretary,
oversees the implementation of the practices and
procedures set out in the CG Code.

The CEQ's responsibility is to manage the Company’s business
including the following:

o To provide leadership for the management;

o To implement the strategic planning and business
development;

° To supervise the business and operational management
of the Company;

. To cooperate closely with management teams from all
function to ensure the Company’s smooth operation and
development and to report regularly to the Board on
major business development; and

o To establish and maintain proper internal controls and
systems with the assistance of the CFO.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between any members of the
Board. Biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 42 to
48 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one INED
possessing appropriate qualification, or accounting or related
financial management expertise (in compliance with Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules). The Company has received, from each of
the INEDs, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all the INEDs are considered
to be independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, INEDs
should be appointed for a specific terms, subject to re-election.
Although the INEDs were not appointed for a specific term
which deviates from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code,
pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation no later than the third AGM of
the Company since their last appointment or re-election and
are eligible for re-election.

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
New director is sought mainly through referrals, internal
promotions or from the management of any acquired
businesses. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable
to act as a Director, the Board will review the independence,
experience and skills of the appointee as well as personal
ethics, integrity and time commitment of the appointee.
Appointment of a new director requires the unanimous
approval of the Board members. All directors appointed by
the Board are subject to election by Shareholders at the
forthcoming general meeting.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year to consider
operational reports of the Company and policies. Details of
attendance of the Directors at the physical regular meetings are
set out in paragraph 5 of this report.

Notice of regular board meeting are given to each member of
the Board at least fourteen days prior to the meeting, whereby
the director can put forward his proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant board papers are then
circulated to the directors three days before a Board meeting to
enable them to make informed decisions at the meeting. Drafts
of the Board minutes and Board committee meeting minutes
are circulated to all directors and the relevant Board committee
members respectively for their review before finalization, and
the final version of these minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available for inspection by the Board and
auditors of the Company. If a director has an interest in a
matter to be considered at a Board meeting, the Board will
ensure that an adequate number of independent directors are
involved in the consideration of the relevant resolutions, and
the interest directors will abstain from voting.
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Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
relevant materials and have unrestricted access to advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuing that
board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed and is able to seek independent professional advice as
and when required at the Company’s expense. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors and
senior management of the Company in respect of legal action
against them in the course of execution of their duties in good
faith.

Board Committees
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two INEDs, namely
Mr. MAK Kin Kwong (the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Ms. MA Yun Yan and an Executive Director, Mr.
XIA Li Qun.

The term of reference of the Remuneration Committee has
been adopted by the Board and is posted on the Company’s
website www.huabao.com.hk. The Remuneration Committee’s
responsibilities include making recommendations for
approval by the Board with respect to matters relating to
the remuneration of Executive Directors. In discharging its
responsibilities, the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following works:

o To make recommendations on the Company’s policies
and structure for all the remuneration of the Executive
Directors;

o To evaluate remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors, and make recommendations on the
remuneration of the INEDs for the Board's approval
by reference to market conditions, performance of
the Group and the individual and corporate goals and
objectives as set by the Board from time to time; and

o To review and evaluate the Company’s share option
scheme.

Directors abstain from voting in determining their own
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met at least once during the
year and the attendance record is set out in paragraph 5 of this
report.
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Details of the emolument of each Director are set out in note
23(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Details of the
Share Options Scheme and the share options granted to the
Directors and senior management are set out on pages 66 to
68 of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. MAK
Kin Kwong (the Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. MA
Yun Yan and Mr. LEE Luk Shiu.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to review
and supervise the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and to maintain good and independent
communications with the management as well as auditors
of the Company. In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit
Committee has performed the following work:

. To review the annual and interim financial statements and
results announcements during the year;

o To discuss with the external auditors and the
management on possible accounting risks;

o To review the effectiveness of the Group’s financial
controls, internal controls and risk management systems;

o To review the sufficiency of manpower for financial
reporting purposes;

o To approve the audit fees and terms of engagement of
the external auditors; and

o To review the independence of the external auditors
and make recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditors to discuss various accounting issues, and
reviews the effectiveness of internal controls. Written term of
reference has been adopted and are posted on the Company’s
website www.huabao.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Audit Committee
met twice and individual attendance of Audit Committee
members is set out in paragraph 5 of this report. Members of
the Audit Committee have been satisfied with the Company’s
internal control procedures with the financial reporting
disclosures.

BREEZ2HSHBEHRYBRRME230) -
BREAIHBERTEENSREREZE
A BN A FREC6EFCIE -

ERZR®
BERZH-RBEIIFRTES AL

(RERZEGXRE) MERZLMFRKE
HHERK

%V?EAEEH&fﬁﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁ*ﬂ REITE

SRR NEEZERERF LERARFEEE
&V@&Eﬁﬂ%%—riﬂ&ﬁizxﬁi_ c REITHE
BN BREBEECET IIITE:

s FEHFANZFERTHUBHRRLES
NG

o HIMNBERHBAMRERENEESRAR
(R

o MuTKEIZEM%EE%? © A ERES YR I B
BESZ2HIE

c RABREMBEERNEMAFEER
B

o HIENBERBEEMIZHBBRRREMLE
B &

o EBISMNEREED 2B KB EINE
REBMMEESFLOEBER -

“ZBeEH

EQ R INEZ BRI E - &

%fﬁ@%ﬂrﬁ DR800 WEH A IBE I E A
cRREBEBEEHW  EREEEMNBEERSIE
VAN

A Ewww.huabao.com.hk

><r 2 B

¥
FER A

BERZERFARTMREHE B 2;%%5%’2
HRAREFR - BERZERZEBHAR
Z BB RS fﬂﬁﬁ%#&imﬁﬁgi‘%mﬁa °

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZEEEIRZEARBIRAF] ¢ 2009-2010 Annual Report F



Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain a sound
internal system of control and considers internal control system
and risk management functions are highly essential.

In this regard, the Board has further strengthened corporate
governance practices, including formalization of the reporting
practice throughout the Group in monitoring the operation
and business developments of the Company so as to capture
potentially price-sensitive information on an on-going basis,
monitoring the continuing disclosure obligation. In addition,
Herbert Smith, the retained legal counsel of the Company, has
provided the Directors and the relevant senior executives with
training on Listing Rules, regulatory requirements and cases of
enforcement at least twice a year.

During the reporting period, the Board has carried out a review
on the internal control system including financial, operational
and compliance control, and risk management functions. The
review includes:

(i)  To follow up the enhancement progress pursuant to the
previous recommendations from an external independent
expert in respect of internal control system;

(i)  To carry out a high level review on the internal control
system of new members/businesses of the Group under
the principles set out by The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Committee (“COSO")
covering major control aspects; and

(i) To arrange site visit and perform focused walk through
test on the internal control system of members of the
Group on a selective basis pursuant to the principles of
COSO.

In general, the Board considers that the internal controls
systems (including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the accounting and financial reporting
function) of the Company are effective.
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Accountability and Audit

Directors’ Responsibility in Preparing Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation and timely
publication of financial statements. In preparing the financial
statements, relevant statutory requirements have been
complied, applicable accounting standards in force in Hong
Kong have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies
have been applied on a consistent basis, going concern basis
has been adopted and reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made.

Auditors’ statement and remuneration

The external auditors have a primary responsibility for auditing
and reporting on the financial statements and the Auditors’
Report to the Shareholders is set out on pages 75 to 76 of this
annual report.

During the reporting period, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditors (including statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries) in relation to audit services and non-audit services
are as follows:

Nature of Services RS
Audit services =R
Non-audit services IERZBARTS

— interim results review — E P EIELE

Accessible and Transparent Communication with
Shareholders

In addition to the on-going investor relation efforts to
mention in the next section, the Board values the importance
of communications with the shareholders. The Company
uses a range of communications tools, such as AGM, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars, to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives.

The Company has maintained a website at www.huabao.com.hk
which serves as a forum for corporate communication
with its shareholders and the general public. All corporate
communications required under the Listing Rules are displayed
and can be achieved (for documents published in the previous
7 years) on the Company's website and there is established
procedure to ensure timely update in compliance with the
Listing Rules.
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Amount
&8
(HK$'000)
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Shareholders’ Meetings

The general meeting provides a forum for the Board to

communicate with the Shareholders.

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company may deposit a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to request a special general
meeting for transaction of any business specified in such

requisition.

To facilitate enforcement of the Shareholders’ rights, significant
issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at the general
meeting, including the election and re-election of individual

Director.

Details of general meeting(s) held during reporting period are

summarized as follows:

Meeting
23

The Chairman and representative(s) from the Audit Committee
were present and available to answer questions raised by the

Date
HE

7 Aug 2009
—ETNF
ANAtH

Venue

h 24

Suite 1103, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong
%fi/%/ 1¥/E/gL’| SEJ;
HIRES1103%

Shareholders at the AGM or other general meeting(s).

To facilitate communication further, Shareholders may send
their enquiries which require the Board’s attention to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong. Relevant contact information is set out
on page 63 of this annual report and is also available on the

Company’s website www.huabao.com.hk.
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Resolutions

REBR

1. To receive the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2009;
EEHE-TTNF-A=T—HLEFELEZ

AR

2. To declare final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2009;
ERBE_ZETNEF=A=T—BILFENHRHA
RS

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorize the Board
to fix their remuneration;
EREFUREESFEERE2HS

4. To re-appoint the auditors; and
BNEEZEED &

5. To grant general mandates to repurchase shares
and to issue shares.

BT — R EAB R AR () BT

ARBEFERBERZB G ZRRBHERBR
BERE - WHEE AR PR H A0 &R A SR Ak
RBEBRRKE -

BEBRER  BRRABAQRFTRESHETE
EEMMONTWMER R WEFSRLERE
- BRAMEENENAFRFECSEH - WHIH
AR B #8uwww.huabao.com.hk °

Huabao International Holdings Limited # % B 1ZEARBR A F] ¢ 2009-2010 Annual Report 4F 57



Corporate Governance Report

TEERME
6. Attendance Record

58

Attendance Record of Board regular meetings and Board
Committees meeting held during the reporting period are set
out below. The average attendance rate of Directors of the
Board Meetings during the period was 93% (2009: 97 %).

Executive Directors HITES

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu KB+
Mr. LAU Chi Tak BlEEELE
Mr. POON Chiu Kwok BB A
Mr. WANG Guang Yu FHMEE
Mr. XIA Li Qun BB AE
Mr. XIONG Qing ARIED S A

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTEE

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu TR EE
Ms. MA Yun Yan i 22 3 2 £
Mr. MAK Kin Kwong BENEE
* One of the Board Meetings is related to transaction in which

Ms. CHU has material interests, she did not attend and hence
abstained from voting at the meeting.

HE R 8

CERNFE NFR EENEFCTSHT
YIHE R 593% (20094F : 97%) ©

Board Audit Remuneration
regular Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings
B ERERS FMEES
EHEE e 23
4/5* N/AT 5 N/AiE

5/5 N/AT 3 A N/AAiE

5/5 N/AAT 3 N/A i3

3/5 N/AATE N/AiE

5/5 N/AT 5 R 11

5/5 N/AT 5 A N/AT 3 A

5/5 2/2 N/AT3E

5/5 2/2 11

5/5 2/2 1/1

* Ep-—REZZeAEAAARARLIIRER
MmN —IBR S FIHR A B FEEH IR
BRR -
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The Company is committed to upholding an open and proactive
investor relations strategy with an aim at optimizing the knowledge
and understanding of the investment community with respect to the
Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategies,
competitive position in the industry and operating and financial
performance, so as to enable public investors to make informed
decisions on their investments. The Company fulfils the above-
mentioned through a designated Investor Relations Department.

The Investor Relations Department acts as an intermediary
between the Company and public investors. The Group abides
by fair disclosure guidelines to ensure that communication with
Shareholders, investors and media is conducted in a fair manner and
that no material non-public information is made available to any
individual on a selective basis.

Investor Relations Review

During this reporting period, in order to develop continuously and
maintain investor relations communications to ensure that the most
updated information would be transmitted to investors in an accurate
and fair manner, the Group organized various activities proactively
and aggressively through different channels to conduct effective and
satisfactory communications under stringent expenses. Details of
these activities during the previous year are as follows:

Investor Relations Report

REEBERRE

RRBBOBFARLEBOREERERRE 5
EERSREMBANENEREUARRZEER
RS  BRERE  ZEABRFIARNREENTH
KB NBREARE/BEENREFLABR
E o ARPEBFRNBEERBERIMPIARGE -

BREEBRAPIERET AR RIREARNBR - K
SERBRTFRERS  AEREARR REER
BHRZBBAERTITET  REUEEEN
ERAEFERNALREERIFIRES °

REEBRIEDRE

EABRERN  AEBABEERRBEFREERH
FAR  NERSMABRERAFHERERE
EF AKEEIHEAEBBEBIFAREETERE
B BREHHRAINBER TEEELINEORE
B LFEEREFBNAT

Number of participations (approximately)

Details of the activities SEENRETE ZERE (K)
Non-deal roadshows in R B A b LA K2 g A 6 (including Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Singapore,
Mainland and overseas R FHEE Tokyo, New York, Boston and London, etc.)
(BEEA bR B8 I - "R - #45 -
WU - RfmBEM)
Investment conferences wEEEE 13
One-on-one and —HW—RNEeH 119

group meetings
Teleconferencing ER 42

BELE &R AR 14

Plant visits and reverse roadshows

s REABFKE

HERMS  EANGEMEEIREETHE
2 AR BRUER - MIEMSH
ARRER c RRABRARBZRE - RRE
B ERBRRAFREREREIAGK T
FiR ZEDRZRFEIR D AR R R
FR - ARBEIFERERZZEGZRRELRE
BRFBFAE  LHREMREAORE -

o Annual General Meetings

It is important that the Shareholders have access to clear and
meaningful data which enables them to have a constructive
dialogue with, and increases their engagement in, the
Company. Shareholders can raise any questions and comments
on the performance or future business directions of the
Company and on any resolutions to be considered at the AGM
and SGM. The Chairman and representatives from the Audit
Committee were present and available to answer questions
raised at the AGM during the year.
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REEBERRS
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Press and Analysts’ Conference

Press and analysts’ conference was held after the interim results
announcement in December 2009, at which the Executive
Directors availed themselves to answer questions such as
regarding the Group's operational and financial performances.

International Roadshows and Investment Forums

The Company treasures every opportunity to communicate with
and explain its strategies to investors and Shareholders through
active participation in global investor roadshows and investors’
conferences hosted by reputable investment banks, securities
houses and research institutes.

Ongoing Communication with the Investment Community

Regular face-to-face meetings and an ongoing schedule
of teleconferencing calls with institutional investors and
research analysts were held throughout the year. Questions
and comments on the Company raised at the meetings were
summarized and reported to the senior management team after
the meetings. Regular meetings with research analysts were
organized which provided a different channel for the analysts
to communicate with the members of the Board. All these
serve the multi purposes of maintaining market surveillance and
close contact with investors as well as gathering constructive
suggestions from the capital market.

Company'’s Site Visits and Reverse Roadshows

Site visits to the Company’s major customers, R&D centres
and production bases had been arranged for investors and
analysts during the year which provided them on one hand the
opportunities to have better understanding of the Company’s
businesses, technology and daily operations, and independent
market surveillance on the other.

E-Communication via Websites of the Company and
Professional Investor Relations

The Company’s website at www.huabao.com.hk contains
information like important corporate data, biographical details
of Directors, organizational structure and press releases, while
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars are
published on its professional investor relations website at
http://huabao.todayir.com/html/ir.php, which enables the
Company’s Shareholders and members of the investor
community to have timely access to the most updated
information about the Group.
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Other Communication Channels

Shareholders and members of the investor community are
welcome to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong or via the “Enquiry Form” on the Company
website. Designated personnel are assigned for this task to
ensure that all data is disclosed on a fair and non-selective
basis and in compliance with the Company’s policy and the
relevant regulatory requirements.

Media Communications

During the announcement of its annual results, the Group
held a press conference to facilitate the access of the most
updated information of the Company by media, investors and
the public in a fair, open and timely manner. In addition, to
strengthen the interactions between the Group and the media,
it voluntarily issued press releases and arranged interviews with
the management on a regular basis.

Analysts Coverage

Subject to the compliance of relevant regulatory requirements,
the Company is committed to continuous communications with
research institutes in a proactive manner for transparency sake.
During the reporting period, the Company was covered by 15
established and reputable research institutes as follows:

o BOC International
o China International Capital Corporation Limited
° Citigroup Investment Research

. CLSA Research Limited
o Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited
. DBS Vickers Securities

° Deutsche Bank

o First Shanghai Group

. Goldman Sachs Gao Hua Securities Company Limited
o HSBC

. JP Morgan

° Macquarie Securities

° Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited

. SWS Research Co., Ltd.
o UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd.

(shown in alphabetical order in English)

Investor Relations Report
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WEEBERE
Information for investors (as at 31 March 2010) BREZER (Ht—ZT—=ZFF=A=+—8H)
Board Lot Size 1,000 shares BEFEEBMURH 1,0000%
Number of shares issued 3,128,820,961 shares BEITROEEB 3,128,820,961 %
Market capitalization (based on HKD29.192 billion HE (LZE—TF B#291.9218 7T
the closing price of HKD9.33 on =A=+—H
31 March 2010) U B8 H9 33Tt )
Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of 00336 BERBER S 00336
Hong Kong Limited stock code BIR D ARG K5
Reuters ticker 336.HK FEE LR AR 336.HK
Bloomberg ticker 336HK FIERG R 336HK

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2009-10 2 December 2009 —EZENE—TF —EZNF

Interim Results (Wednesday) REIZEE N +=—A=H
(EH=)

Announcement of 2009-10 18 June 2010 (Friday) “EThE-THF —E-ZF

Final Results HARZEE N NATAH
E2HA)

Closing date for transfer From 2 August 2010 to Wi & L@~ B AR —E-TF

of shares 5 August 2010 ANAZBZEHRH
(Monday to Thursday, (BB —= 25"
both days inclusive) PREEEWH)

Annual General Meeting 5 August 2010 R R EFAE —ZE-FTF)\HEH

(Thursday) (2H5m)

Date of Payment of 2009-10 18 October 2010 (Monday) REEZSTRK _ZZNE —E—T4F
proposed Final Dividend and on or about —EFE R RER +A+N\H
Special Dividend & 5 B EA (28—) =xaig

Financial Year End Date 31 March BHRFEEEEH —A=+—H
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Investor Relations Contacts

For inquiries, please contact:

Investor Relations Department
Huabao International Holdings Limited
Suite 1103

Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2185 1233

Fax: (852) 2511 8229

E-mail: jason.wong@huabao.com.hk

Investor Relations website: http://huabao.todayir.com/html/ir.php

Investor Relations Report
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Board presents its report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Mergers & Acquisitions

In August 2009, the Group completed an acquisition of 100%
equity interest of Maoming Kebi, a tobacco flavour supplier in PRC,
at a consideration of approximately HKD117,209,000 in cash, from
independent third parties.

In November 2009, the Group completed an acquisition of
100% equity interests of F&G Group, which mainly engages in
the production and sales of natural extracts, at a consideration
of HKD29,267,000 in cash from Ms. CHU who is a director and
controlling shareholder of the Company. The acquisition constituted
a connected transaction of the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Details of the acquisition were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 20 November 2009.

In December 2009, the Group established a joint venture Company,
Yunnan Qing Tian Xiang, in which the Group holds 49% equity
interest. As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s total investment was
approximately HKD5,016,000.

In March 2010, the Company completed an investment of 51%
equity interest of Qingdao Qingda, a professional natural extracts
producer in PRC, at a cash consideration of approximately
HKD11,600,000 from independent party.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 79 of the annual
report.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HK6.0 cents (2009: HK5.0
cents) per share together with a special dividend of HK2.8 cents per
share (2009: nil), amounting to a total of about HKD274,954,000,
were paid on 26 February 2010.

EEeRNREERENBE_TTF=-A=1
—HIEFEZEEBRABERE

W kg & Bf

RZZFZAFENA  AEBTREERFBEEAND
ERERMEEREARIE Z2100%#E - REARSE
475%117,209,0007T ©
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R AIFRGEEM100%E - REARES B
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RZBZNGF+_R AEBEERYTEREH
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AREBMEIT AL ABES,016,0007T °
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BELCHRARDIYAER S S S KH51%ME
REBEARE4HE%11,600,0007T °
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BT MAR M S

o)

EEBERKRE
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Hﬁ%ﬁ’ie.oﬁ&{m (ZZBTNF :5.0810) RIBELE
B ER28EW (ZETNGFE : 8)  LAEBE
274,954,0007T ©
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The Board proposed the declaration of a final dividend of HK6.78
cents (2009: HK5.8 cents) per share together with a special dividend
of HK5.5 cents (2009: HK3.0 cents) per share both in cash, about
HKD384 million in aggregate, for the year ended 31 March 2010,
are expected to be paid on or about 18 October 2010 (Monday) to
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company as at 5 August 2010 (Thursday), subject to Shareholders’
approval in the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 5
August 2010 (Thursday) (for notice of annual general meeting please
refer to the relevant circular). Together with the interim dividend and
special dividend declared, the total dividend distribution for the year
amounted to HK21.08 cents (2009: HK13.8 cents) per share.

Shareholders are reminded that in order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend and special dividend and be entitled to attend and
vote at the 2010 AGM, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from 2 August 2010 (Monday) to 5 August 2010
(Thursday), both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares
will be effected, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, 26/
F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 30 July 2010 (Thursday).

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 81 and in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2010, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HKD1,481,138,000 (2009: HKD1,496,575,000).

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HKD136,000.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 165.

As per a resolution passed at the special general meeting held on
22 September 2006, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”). As at 31 March 2010, the share options
granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
which are valid and outstanding amounted to 62,220,000 shares,
represents approximately 1.99% of the ordinary Shares issued. The
following is a summary of the Share Option Scheme:

(@) Purpose of the Scheme

The Share Option Scheme aims at encouraging the participants
to make contributions to and promote benefits of the Group
and developing and maintaining business relationships with
participants for the benefit of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

The Board has absolute discretion to grant share option to any
participant.

() Maximum number of shares issuable under the Scheme

The total number of share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as at 22 September
2006. Upon approval by the Shareholders, the Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit, provided that each renewal
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of approval by the Shareholders, and a circular
regarding the proposed renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit has been dispatched to the Shareholders in a manner
complying with, and containing the matters specified in, the
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
aggregate maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
Shares in issue from time to time.

ARBZBABEFBEHNERE W HERERMEES -

ARBz AR AASBEREEVPREERELE
BRZIGX  REARRERLOIMRAREREE
FAAD ©
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HNFHRE1658 °
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Shares (issued and to be issued)
upon exercise of options (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) granted to any participants in any 12-month
period under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of ordinary Shares in issue from time to time. Any
excess over 1% requires the formal approval by Shareholders
through an ordinary resolution at a general meeting at which
the relevant participant and his associates shall abstain from
voting and the Company shall issue a circular pursuant to
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Time for exercise of options

The grantee may subscribe for ordinary Shares during such
period as may be determined by the Board (the said period
shall not in whatever case be later than the last day of the
10-year period after the day on which the offer relating to the
option is duly approved by the Board in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme (subject to early termination)).

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

Unless the Directors determine otherwise and state in the
offer of the grant of option to the grantee, the Share Option
Scheme does not provide for any minimum period for which
share options must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance of option offer and payment

The grantee may accept the offer of the share option within 21
days from the date of the offer letter issued by the Company.
The grantee shall pay HKD1 as consideration for accepting the
offer of the share option.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price of share option granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board and
shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares.

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)
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(i) The life of the Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
starting from 22 September 2006.

The details of share options granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed
during the year under the Share Option Scheme are set out as

follows:

Grantee

ARA

Executive Directors
HiTEE

Mr. LAU Chi Tak

E bt

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok
ERERE

Mr. WANG Guang Yu
TRWEE

Mr. XIA Li Qun
EFlEEE

Mr. XIONG Qing
LA

Grant Date
RLAH

14 April 2008
ZZE\EREFRA
25 October 2006
ZEENFTAZTRA
25 October 2006
ZEEAETAZTRA
25 October 2006
ZEERETAZTRA
17 October 2007
ZEELETATEA
14 April 2008
ZET\FEATIA

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BU#HTEE
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu
Ficksik

Ms. MA Yun Yan
MERLL

Mr. MAK Kin Kwong
FRRRE

Other employees
AftES

Total
&t

25 October 2006
ZEENETAZTRA
25 October 2006
3T E+AZTHA
25 October 2006
“E2ERETAZTHA

10 October 2006
ZZTREHATA

25 October 2006
25 F+AZTHA
17 October 2007
“E+F+ATLH

Exercise

Price
e

HKD
¥

6.

w

9

3.09

3.09

3.09

6.65

6.39

3.09

3.09

3.09

3.09

3.09

6.65

Exercisable Period

A{TERH

14/4/2008-13/4/2018
25/10/2006-24/10/2016
25/10/2006-24/10/2016
25/10/2006-24/10/2016

17/4/2008-16/10/2017

14/4/2008-13/4/2018

25/10/2006-24/10/2016
25/10/2006-24/10/2016

25/10/2006-24/10/2016

10/10/2006-9/10/2016
25/10/2006-24/10/2016

17/4/2008-16/10/2017

(i) FrEINESREXRH
BRAEAIN_TTNFAA-tT BB+
FRNB -

RER - RBBAAETEIRE - 176 - FHEERN

BB AT
Number of Share Options
BREHA
Balance
Balance as at
as at 31 March
1April  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2010
2009  during  during  during  during R=E-F%
W=ZZENE theyear theyear theyear theyear =A=1-H
MA-B&EH FAlk  FATR FREE  ER%R )
7,000,000 - - - - 7,000,000
5,000,000 - 1,700,000 - - 3,300,000
4,500,000 - 800,000 - - 3,700,000
5,250,000 - - - - 5,250,000
3,600,000 - - - - 3,600,000
3,400,000 - - - - 3,400,000
800,000 - 400,000 - - 400,000
800,000 - - - - 800,000
800,000 - 800,000 - - -
58,135,000 - 39,015,000 - 2,200,000 16,920,000
5,250,000 - - - - 5,250,000
13,900,000 - 1,300,000 - - 12,600,000
108,435,000 - 44,015,000 - 2,200,000 62,220,000
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The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairman)
Mr. LAU Chi Tak (CEO)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok

Mr. WANG Guang Yu

Mr. XIA Li Qun (CFO)

Mr. XIONG Qing

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu
Ms. MA Yun Yan
Mr. MAK Kin Kwong

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s bye-laws,
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu, Messrs. LAU Chi Tak and LEE Luk Shiu shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Other than disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

None of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) has an interest in any business which completes or
may complete with the business of the Group.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out
on pages 42 to 48 of the annual report.

At 31 March 2010, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each of the
Company

EEREREEENBERESNTFMEI2EELI8E -

RIE-ZF=-A=1+—H EFRREZHBEA
ITRARFREABEE (E&LE 5 RS EA
EXVER) 2Bty - HERO REFPHEEARFR
BREFMBIRIIFEIS2EREMFE 2 BRMATR
oz s EBRE TR AMEMEETRIM
AHGARRRI LB R EHMT

(a) ZARAREREEBBIOTZEERER

Number of Percentage of
issued the issued
Shares held Share capital
Name of Directors Capacity BEERT HE BT
EEnR 514 RHEE RAEBDLE
CHU Lam Yiu Held through controlled corporation* 1,591,679,415 50.872%
RIREE BRI RARRFEY
POON Chiu Kwok Beneficial Owner 1,160,000 0.037%
& A EnBA
XIA Li Qun Beneficial Owner 1,750,000 0.056%
BMEE EmFBA
XIONG Qing Beneficial Owner 100,000 0.003%
il EmfFE A

* 1,591,679,415 ordinary shares of the Company are respectively
held by Mogul Enterprises Limited, Resourceful Link International
Limited, Power Nation International Limited, Jumbo Elite Limited
and Real Elite Investments Limited. Ms. CHU Lam Yiu is the sole
beneficial owner of the aforesaid five companies.

(b) Interests in share options of the Company

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are detailed in the “Share Options” section stated
above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the Directors
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or associated companies as defined in the SFO.

* A A A 21,591,679,4150% J5 % Bl AMogul
Enterprises Limited, Resourceful Link
International Limited, Power Nation

International Limited, Jumbo Elite Limited

and Real Elite Investments Limitedt [A 3

e AMELTANAMARNKE —EaH

BA -

(b) ARFBREzHES
EECBREESCFHINAL TBRE] —
EiA -

BEXETEREIN WZZET—ZTF=A=1+—0"
EEREFIHBEAIHERAR R S E MK E
NEIREEEE (EERES LRGN ZEFK
0~ RO RELFPEAEMEEIASR
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Other than disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
ultimate holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

As at 31 March 2010, other than the interests disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
following persons Company held interests or short positions in 5%
or more issued share capital of the Company.

Long position in ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each of the
Company

Name of Substantial Shareholders Capacity

FTERRER 5%

FMR LLC Investment manager
REKIE

Wellington Management Company, LLP Investment manager
REKE

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 53% and the largest customer contributed
approximately 29% to the turnover of the Group, and the
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 28% and the largest supplier
contributed approximately 19% to the purchases of the Group.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Sale of tobacco flavour products to Hongta Tobacco Group and
its associates

On 18 February 2009, the Group and Hongta Tobacco Group entered
into a framework agreement (2009 Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group shall continually sell tobacco flavour
products to Hongta Tobacco Group and its associates. The 2009
Framework Agreement is valid from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2012,
and all the transactions conducted between the Group and Hongta
Tobacco Group under the 2009 Framework Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The upper limits
of annual amounts of continuing connected transactions under the
2009 Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 March
2012 are RMB66,000,000, RMB86,000,000 and RMB112,000,000
("Annual Caps”) respectively. The Company has obtained a waiver
from the Stock Exchange to approve the entering into of the 2009
Framework Agreement, the conduct of the continuing connected
transactions and the Annual Caps on the basis of a written
independent shareholders’ approval in lieu of holding a shareholders’
meeting of the Company under Rule 14A.43 of the Listing Rules.

Raw materials purchase from F&G Group and its associates

On 4 November 2008, the Group entered into a framework
agreement (“2008 Framework Agreement”) with F&G Group
pursuant to which F&G Group and its associates will supply natural
extracts on an on-going basis for a 30-month period from 9 October
2008 to 31 March 2011. F&G was incorporated in the Republic
of Botswana in southern Africa and is principally engaged in the
production and sales of natural extracts. Prior to the completion
of the acquisition of F&G Group as mentioned below, F&G Group
was owned by the Company’s controlling shareholder and Director,
Ms. Chu. Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, F&G and
its subsidiaries and associates were the connected persons of the
Company. Hence, the transactions contemplated under the 2008
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
subject to reporting and announcement requirement but are
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval. The upper
limits of annual amounts of the continuing connected transactions
under the 2008 Framework Agreement for the three years
ending 31 March 2011 are HKD13,000,000, HKD21,500,000 and
HKD21,500,000 respectively. On 20 November 2009, Right Source
Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into sale and purchase agreement with Ms. Chu to acquire
100% equity interest of F&G Group (“Acquisition of F&G Group”).
The Acquisition of F&G Group was completed in November 2009 and
the continuing connected transactions with F&G Group were ceased
then.
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The Board also confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements as required by the Listing Rules in relation to
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions.

Annual review of continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the tobacco flavour products
sold by the Group to the associates of Hongta Tobacco Group and
the natural extracts purchased by the Group from F&G Group before
the completion of the Acquisition of F&G Group amounted to
approximately RMB36,550,000 and HKD5,177,000, respectively.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed

by the INEDs of the Company. The INEDs confirm that the aforesaid
connected transactions have been entered into:

(

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to independent third parties;
and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement, and
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board appointed
the auditors of the Company to make sample inspections on the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400,
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information”, issued
by HKICPA. The auditors have reported to the Board the findings
and conclusions concerning the transactions as per the agreed-upon
procedures.

“Engagements to Perform

Based on the agreed-upon procedures carried out, the auditor of
the Company submitted to the Board a letter confirming that the
continuing connected transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Board;

(i) are in accordance with the pricing/procurement policies of the
Company;

(iii)  have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the aforesaid annual limits.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Legal Proceedings

As at 31 March 2010, the members of the Group was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or
claim was pending or threatened or made against any member of the
Group.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best belief and knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of the Company’s
securities during the reporting period and up to the date of this
report as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board
CHU Lam Yiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June 2010
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Independent Auditor's Report

B AR

BERKES TSR AT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUABAO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 164, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor's Report
VR GlE S

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 June 2010
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

e M BIRR R

As at 31 March 2010 RZE—ZF=A=+—
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB AEEREEIN Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi’]%%ﬁg?mﬁ\]m)
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTTNEF
Restated
el
Note (Note 34)
I E . (MizE34)
ASSETS gE i
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - IR MR E 6 301,798 289,849
Land use rights T AR 7 67,684 58,515
Intangible assets M EE 8 1,602,659 1,507,151
Investments in associates FH@‘%%’RTZ&Q 10 6,236 9,233
Deferred income tax assets BIEFMEHEE 11 50,544 31,055
2,028,921 1,895,803
Current assets Iﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
Inventories FE 12 235,294 211,820
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E eI 13 660,117 531,298
Short-term time deposits RHIE TR 14 230,886 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIBEEED 14 1,678,640 1,126,735
2,804,937 1,869,853
Total assets BmEE 4,833,858 3,765,656
EQUITY %
Capital and reserves attributable to  Z A A HHH AL
the Company’s equity holders BAR&HE
Share capital [N 15 312,882 308,480
Reserves (54 17 410,403 248,458
Retained earnings REBAF
— Proposed final dividend —BRARHR S 27 212,134 179,731
— Proposed special dividend — BRI AR E. 27 172,085 92,964
- Others — Hfth 18 2,682,600 2,006,184
3,790,104 2,835,817
Minority interest DR RER 128,103 93,789
Total equity MR 3,918,207 2,929,606
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities #ﬁEbE{’
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEMEHas 11 108,870 93,813
Current liabilities REAE
Short-term borrowings mHE 19 250,236 -
Trade and other payables %’%&E‘r@ﬁgﬁmlﬁ 20 486,242 702,243
Current income tax liabilities EHfEHAaE 70,303 39,994
806,781 742,237
Total liabilities weE 915,651 836,050
Total equity and liabilities HBEZREE 4,833,858 3,765,656
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,998,156 1,127,616
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBDAR 4,027,077 3,023,419

The notes on pages 83 to 164 are an integral part of these $83ZF164E MM ARG E M IEIRFTHEELE S -
consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board REESTS
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu Mr. XIA Li Qun
KMELZ L BEREE
Chairman Director
E EE
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Statement of Financial Position

B F IR LR

As at 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

K-F-TF=A=1—A
(B SEHEPES - FESEEUEE TR

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
Note 2010 2009
BfsE | —2-FF —ZTENF
ASSETS a5 (
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RINB AR ZIEE 9(a) 1,245,083 1,245,083
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWRIE 13 473 478
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE ] 9(b) 1,280,246 889,849
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEEY 14 35,503 11,809
1,316,222 902,136
Total assets wEE 2,561,305 2,147,219
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable &2 TR IEE AL
to the Company’s equity holders BAR #E
Share capital %N 15 312,882 308,480
Reserves EX 17 655,017 506,179
Retained earnings REBEF
— Proposed final dividend —BURAREAR S 27 212,134 179,731
— Proposed special dividend — BUREFRIRE 27 172,085 92,964
— Others — E A 18 808,728 935,689
Total equity BREs 2,160,846 2,023,043
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities FEBAE
Short-term borrowings ISR =F 19 240,000 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries R NGIE ] 9(b) 140,356 122,095
Trade and other payables E 5 REMERFRIE 20 20,103 2,081
400,459 124,176
Total liabilities waeE 400,459 124,176
Total equity and liabilities HEZRAE 2,561,305 2,147,219

The notes on pages 83 to 164 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu

KMEL LT

Chairman

TR

FBIE64AEMMERNGZ A M EIHRRNERD -

RREFS

Mr. XIA Li Qun
EAELE

Director

EF
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Consolidated Income Statement

mElER

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE-F-FE=A=+—AILFE
(B SHHBES - FESBEABET HITR)

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —EThEF
Restated
vl
Note (Note 34)
s | ), (MI5%34)
Sales g 5 2,366,403 1,938,443
Cost of goods sold SHE A AR 22 (579,568) (475,928)
Gross profit EF 1,786,835 1,462,515
Other income HAth Uz 21 36,237 36,206
Selling and marketing expenses HERMIBHEREMX 22 (73,057) (78,984)
Administrative expenses 1TERE A 22 (233,326) (224,285)
Operating profit EERR 1,516,689 1,195,452
Finance income B U A 15,761 19,555
Finance costs A A (1,508) (7,934)
Finance income — net BRI — F 58 24 14,253 11,621
Share of profit of associates FEAG B & R R A 10 707 426
Profit before income tax BRELATE R 1,531,649 1,207,499
Income tax expense FriS#t 25 (162,236) (82,157)
Profit for the year KEERF 1,369,413 1,125,342
Attributable to: FE4h
Equity holders of the Company RArE=FAA 1,340,085 1,110,324
Minority interest DEUR R 29,328 15,018
1,369,413 1,125,342
Earnings per share for profit FRAXRARERSTE ARG
attributable to the Company’s HEREF
equity holders for the year
(expressed in HK cents per share) (ARG
- Basic — HR 26(a) 43.15 36.08
— Diluted — s 26(b) 42.58 35.62
Interim and final dividends A HR K R B AR B 27 399,603 333,831
Special dividend FERIRE 27 259,570 92,964
659,173 426,795

The notes on pages 83 to 164 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F8IE164AMM A RALRE M B MR OEBEAD
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Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income

mERmERmR

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_T--ZTFE=-A=1+—HItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BIEREEI » AL UBETITIR)

Year ended 31 March
BZE=RA=1+—HLFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNEF
Restated
£7
Note (Note 34)
P EE (PFF5E34)
D
Profit for the year TEERF 5 1,369,413 1,125,342
Other comprehensive income: Htt 2wk -
Exchange differences on TEHNEETS 2 BB N = ER
translating foreign operations 13,174 52,475
Total comprehensive income for REERBEZERSLE
the year, net of tax 1,382,587 1,177,817
Total comprehensive income EEEERRELE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company KAREEFEA 1,352,907 1,160,167
Minority interest DB RS 29,680 17,650
1,382,587 1,177,817

The notes on pages 83 to 164 are an integral part of these H83E164E MM ANIZE M EMERAEEEIMD
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity
mEEREEHR

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE_Z-ZF-_A=+—HILFE
(B%ﬁ*ﬁ‘%‘éﬁﬁﬁﬁl\ - AR LEE TITIR)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADARERAARE
Share Retained Minority Total
Note capital Reserves earnings Total interest equity
fizk B i ] REEA B SURREER BRi
Balance at 1 April 2008 R-FENEMA-A 306,911 130,748 1,514,512 1,952,231 69,746 2,021.911
Exchange differences EiA% - 49,843 - 49,843 2632 52475
Profit for the year RERRT - - 1,110,324 1,110,324 15,018 1,125,342
Total comprehensive income for HE-ZEAEZA=T-ALEEN
the year ended 31 March 2009 2EUEAE - 49,883 1,110,324 1,160,167 17,650 1,177,817
Dividends paid to minority sharefolders mOSRREANRE - - - - (5,651) (5,651)
Appropriations from net profi Rl 17,18 - 5,432 (5432) - - -
Combination of Wealthy King Investments Ltd AFEERERRLT
("Wealthy King") and its subsidiaries ([EE]) RENBAF
("Wealthy King Group") ([£228)) - (15,382) - (15,382) - (15,382)
Combination of Faraway International Limited and aFEFARARLAR
Long State International Limited and FUARERAAR
their subsidiary F&G Botswana EHEBLT
(Proprietary) Limited ("F&G Group”) (IraG£E)) 18 - - (1,945) (1,945) - (1,945)
Acquisition of Profit Fortune Holdings Ltd., WErlEERERLY
("Profit Fortune”) and its subsiciaries (78] REANEAA
("Profit Fortune Group") il Wé &l) - - - - 12,084 12,044
Final dividend for the year ended Ei SEN\EZAT-ALEEL
31 March 2008 Hﬁ - - (184,540) (184,540) - (184,540)
Interim dividend for the 6 months ended HECZE\EAR=TRIEAEAZ
30 September 2008 BT 7 - - (154,100) (154,100) - (154,100)
Employee share option scheme ESERE
- Value of employee semvices -ERESREER 2 - 30,889 - 30,889 - 30,889
- Exercise of share options -11BERE 16 1,569 46,928 - 43,497 - 48,497
1,569 67,867 (346,017) (276,581) 6,393 (270,188)
Balance at 31 March 2009 (Restated, Note 34) RZEEAEZA=1-R (B Hi3e) 308,480 248,458 2,218,819 2,835,817 93,789 2,929,606
Balance at 1 April 2009 R-BEAEMA-R 308,480 uBLSH 2208819 2835807 9789 299606
Bichange differences EdiEE - 12,822 - 12,822 35 13,174
Prfi for the year RERRA - - 13008 1,300,085 838 13609413
Total comprehensive income for HE-T-TEA=T-ALEEN
the year ended 31 March 2010 PENEEE - 12822 1,340,085 1,352,907 29,680 1,382,587
Dividends paid to minority shareholders AOERERARRE - - - - (6,287) (6,287)
Appropriations from net profit R 1718 - 4,49 (4,496) - - -
Combination of F&G Group AHF8CER - (#211) - (a211) - (4211)
Acquisition of Qingdao Qingda Product Co., Inc,, WBEEEANERR
("Qingdao Qingda") ([E&8EA) i} - - - - 10,921 10,921
Final and special dividend for the year ended HE-SENE-A-T-HILFEZ
31 March 2009 X%&%EJH&E 7 = = (272,695) (272,695) = (272,695)
Interim and special dividend for the 6 months ended BEEENENAZTRLAERL
30 September 2009 SEREHRS il - - (%58 (27a950) - (274,954)
Employee share option scheme ESEREE
- Value of employee services - ENEERHEE 2 - 12,605 - 12,605 - 12,605
- Exercise of share options ~friE e 16 4,402 136,233 - 140,635 - 140,635
4,402 149123 (552,145) (398,620) 4,634 (393,986)
Balance at 31 March 2010 R-E-EE=B=1-A 312,882 410,403 3,066,819 3,790,104 128,103 3,918,207

The notes on pages 83 to 164 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FEBIE64AMME ARG M B IMERNER L)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HRERTRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-_Z-ZEF=A=+—HILFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (B3 T %’,VI\ BB UABE TR
Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—-BLFE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
Restated
Exdl
Note (Note 34)
BEE | (F3E34)
Cash flows from operating activities g%%iﬂlziﬁﬁﬁi
Cash generated from operations BEECZHES 29 1,538,570 1,142,786
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ S (152,610) (32,050)
Net cash generated from EEEBHELEZ
operating activities bzl pes 1,385,960 1,110,736
Cash flows from investing activities REFHNRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT 8 1 &) 28 (112,170) (599,237)
Purchases of property, plant and BAYIZ - MR RE
equipment (32,061) (91,558)
Purchases of land use right B A 1 3h (5 P A - (2,027)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WS RBRBEMEHIEA
plant and equipment 29 606 459
Proceeds from disposal of an associate uﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬂ%?ﬂ 3,911 -
Short-term time deposits placed DN SE: R VER (230,886) -
Purchases of intangible assets BARTLEE (1,168) (323)
Interests received 2 W& 13,606 14,733
Dividends received B U F 512 -
Net cash used in investing activities R EEBFFA 2R EFHE (357,650) (677,953)
Cash flows from financing activities @@ EEEHNBEERE
Dividends paid to shareholders BEESENEs) (547,649) (338,554)
Proceeds from issue of shares in 77150 e A 1 39T 27 AR A P45 308
connection with exercise of
share options 159,485 48,498
Repayment of short-term borrowings (BB EHER - (13,135)
Short-term bank borrowings RARRITIEE 240,000 -
Interest paid BERFLE (1,508) (65)
Proceeds from prior shareholder of BEEMRIKREZEE
Wealthy King - 91,229
Shareholders’ loan REREE - 27,169
Repayments to a shareholder BB E (326,919) (97,072)
Net cash used in financing activities & EBfFA R & FHE (476,591) (281,930)
Net increase in cash and RERBREEEWEMFE
cash equivalents 551,719 150,853
Cash and cash equivalents at FYHeRACEED
beginning of the year 1,126,735 972,887
Effects of exchange rate changes on [EXZEHWR S MRS EEYNTE
cash and cash equivalents 186 2,995
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRRERKRE
the year SEY 14 1,678,640 1,126,735

The notes on pages 83 to 164 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FE8IE164B MM AL S MIEHMER BB IMD -
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Huabao International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) are mainly engaged in the
production, distribution and sale of flavours and fragrances in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company’s
holding companies are five limited companies incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, namely Mogul Enterprises
Limited, Resourceful Link International Limited, Power Nation
International Limited, Jumbo Elite Limited and Real Elite
Investments Limited, which are solely beneficially owned by
Ms. Chu Lam Yiu (“Ms. Chu"), who is the Company’s ultimate
controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Pursuant to an acquisition agreement dated 20 November
2009, the Company acquired F&G Group from Ms. Chu (the
“Acquisition”) at a consideration of HKD29,267,000 satisfied
by cash payment. The Acquisition was a connected transaction
pursuant to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Details
of the transaction were set out in the announcement dated 20
November 2009 issued by the Company. The Acquisition was
completed on 30 November 2009.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of HK dollars (“HKD'000") unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 June 2010.

Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

RE MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI T

AN
AN

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

84

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA'). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  Application of merger accounting

Since the Company and F&G Group were both
controlled by Ms. Chu before and after the
completion of the transaction as mentioned in
Note 1, the Acquisition has been accounted for
using the principles of merger accounting, as
prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
("AG 5") '‘Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations’ issued by the HKICPA.

F&G Group has been effectively controlled by Ms.
Chu since 6 October 2008.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
in which the common control combination occurs
on the basis that they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities first came under
the control of the controlling party.

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLBET IIR)

BENRAMBRRAMEANTIES AR
RTX - BBERBEIN  HEBREMER
MEFENERER -

ARBEAMBHRRIREFTE ST
NEEMNBERVBREER ([FAEY
BRELER ) - WIRE L AER ) o

2.1

I & BB B REERN I FRE
AERETHRREIEE  EEENTA
RERAEESHBEBIEFTEESA
B MphksENHERSEEMEZ
5 S REGEMBRRIEFHEKR
BRI E L - EMEAhHKE -

B EEZ B
MRARZTEM TR S K
AR IIEHI AR R MFRGEE - &
RAEHKABEGHMAGES
Bl ER [R—EZHTaHNA
HEE| ZHEZBRE -

(a)

REEIR-_ZFZENFE+ARAR
Pt B R ZHIFRGEE -

BEHRAEG XS BER - &
EUBHREERAHERNEY
BHEK  sLERS O B EERN
A BN EGIPT A H R HFES T
WA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Application of merger accounting (continued)

The net assets of the combining entities are
combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
is recognized for goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the
results of each of the combining entities from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities first came under the common
control, where there is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented on the basis that
the entities had been combined at the previous
balance sheet date or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealized gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses,
etc., incurred in relation to the common control
combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting is recognized as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising
from the Acquisition on the consolidated statement
of financial position under AG 5.

HEZ
(Bx

wﬁ:\/

2.1

T2E=

EHN

iR e R Rk MY L

A=t—BItFE
P £ FELABE T ITIIR)

mREE ()

(a)

BOEEHEZ B (B)
TEHTMAE  REFNER

BREENREEAN - EHF
EHIEXAHPELENHEN
RWET BEREETAHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE BITE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@)  Application of merger accounting (continued)

The consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2010:

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLBET IIR)

mREE ()
(a) BHEIZZER (&)
RZB-—EBF=A=+—-HzZ&

2.1

Investment in F&G Group
Other assets — net

RENFRGEE
HipEE—FE

Net assets BEFE
Share capital RN
Merger reserve BPHEE 17
Retained earnings and REB RN R
other reserves Hith
Minority interest 2 CEX T

Note: It represents an adjustment to eliminate the share
capital, share premium, retained earnings and
other reserves of the combining entities against the
investment cost. The difference of approximately
HKD4,211,000 has been debited to merger reserve
in the consolidated financial statements.

As Ms. Chu’s control of F&G Group commenced
on 6 October 2008, the financial statements of the
Group as at 31 March 2009 have been restated.

No significant adjustments were made to the net
assets and net profit or loss of any entities as
a result of the common control combination to
achieve consistency of accounting policies.

Merger accounting as depicted above has been
adopted by the Group as one of its principal
accounting policies.

B IBARREK -
The Group
(excluding
F&G Group) F&G Group Adjustments Consolidated
FEE
(F&F&G
£8) FRGEE AE &bt
(Note)
GES)

29,267 - (29,267) -
3,888,238 29,969 - 3,918,207
3,917,505 29,969 (29,267) 3,918,207

312,882 - - 312,882
(612,949) - 4,211) (617,160)
4,089,469 29,969 (25,056) 4,094,382
128,103 - - 128,103
3,917,505 29,969 (29,267) 3,918,207

MisE : AR TIEAHERORAE - &
ARE - RETAF R EAmGFEER
AR Z E8E - HEFELOAN
4,211,0007C B Y| RN A BT 15
HwEZEHRBENESA -

MAARZETE-_ZEENET AN
ARRIEHIFRGER » AEER
TZEAE=ZF =+ BT LR
rxEEY -

BERARZESSHFRERG K
RH—HM - MUBEFEERE
BHEFEENFRSEFELERNS

o

Nz & HEFHERBEA
SERAREIBEHERRZ— -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (H)
(b) The following new standards and amendments (b) T BIBIFTET RASET2E R B )X 9% 1
to standards are mandatory for the first time for ERARZFZNFMA—HRFHLE
the financial year beginning 1 April 2009 and are B8] B A BN E A -

relevant to the Group:

o HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14,
“Segment Reporting”. The new standard
requires a “management approach”, under
which segment information is presented
on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. This has resulted in
a decrease in the number of reportable
segments presented. In addition, the
segments are reported in a manner that is
more consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. Following the adoption of HKFRS 8,
the presentation of the segment results and
segment assets has changed (see Note 5 for
details). Comparatives have been restated
in the note disclosure. However, such
restatement in note disclosure does not have
any impact on the financial statements.

° HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The
revised standard prohibits the presentation of
items of income and expenses (that is “non-
owner changes in equity”) in the statement
of changes in equity, requiring “non-owner
changes in equity” to be presented separately
from owner changes in equity in a statement
of comprehensive income. As a result, the
Group presents in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity all owner changes in
equity, whereas all non-owner changes in
equity are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The
consolidated financial statements have
been prepared and comparative information
has been re-presented under the revised
disclosure requirements. Since the change in
accounting policy only impacts presentation
aspects, there is no impact on earnings per
share.

Huabao International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
AN

For the Year ended 31 March 2010

BRI T

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHEAEI  FTESTEUABETITIIR)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEXE (E)
(b) The following new standards and amendments (b) TR FTET RAZFTER B X 9% %1

88

to standards are mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2009 and are

AR _-_FEZENFMA—HH
18 79 A1 B 4F JE A 817K 5 B 1A B

relevant to the Group (continued): (&) :

. Amendment to HKFRS 7, “Financial o  BEMBWMEENETR €
instruments: disclosures” (effective for annual BT A -HEE e
periods beginning on or after 1 January —EThF—HA— A5t
2009). The amendment requires enhanced Hia 2 FEBEER - LA
disclosures about fair value measurement and BREREREBALEE
liquidity risk. In particular, the amendment STEMRBMERKRAETE -
requires disclosure of fair value measurements IHEBRFRZSIZ AR EE
by level of a fair value measurement WErERBREEA R EER
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy B ARGHBEMNNRER
only results in additional disclosures, there is BYEEINEE - WL E SR
no impact on earnings per share. BRI mEE o

e HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based o EBMBMELERIE2R (&
payment” (effective for annual periods FTAS) TR R 10 7% EE 5 9 A
beginning on or after 1 January 2009). HI(BZZEZENF—-H—H
The amended standard deals with vesting REET R 46 2 FF E B R AR R0
conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that BT B IR A B & & 1 1F &Y
vesting conditions are service conditions and i BIFRBIERHEER
performance conditions only. Other features IR RIBIGHE - ARHD
of a share-based payment are not vesting BEBONFTOEAMSTHDT
conditions. These features would need to EEB GG - LFEREER
be included in the grant date fair value for L REEHEEBMEMIEMH
transactions with employees and others HURBATHRZGRET
providing similar services; they would not BRAREBERN  LFEHH
impact the number of awards expected to B ERTRAREREE
vest or valuation thereof subsequent to the BRI ERNEN B S EAEHE - FT
grant date. All cancellations, whether by Bertd TwmBEESHEAM
the entity or by other parties, should receive FEL - MBKRMERMEE
the same accounting treatment. The Group BRIBEARR - REBEHZ
has adopted HKFRS 2 (Amendment) from 1 TTZNFIUA —HERAE
April 2009. The amendment does not have BB HREERE25 (BET
a material impact on the Group’s financial K)o BRI T B E REE
statements. W BHmRAEERATE -

The adoption of other standards or amendments has no AN E MR SE ] T g WA S B /Bt
significant effects to the Group’s financial statements. BWMERBERNTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-"ZT-TZFE=FA=+—HItEE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RBEZE ()
() Standards, amendments and interpretations to () IAREMTAFEE T AEIE R IR

existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2010, but the Group has not early adopted them:

. HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and
separate financial statements”, (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009). The revised standard requires the
effects of all transactions with non-controlling
interests to be recorded in equity if there is
no change in control and these transactions
will no longer result in goodwill or gains
and losses. The standard also specifies
the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured
to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in income statement. There is also additional
guidance on linked transactions. The Group
will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) prospectively to
transactions with non-controlling interests
from 1 April 2010.

Huabao International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
AN

BRI T

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

()

Standards, amendments and interpretations

to existing standards that are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the Group

(continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), "“Business combinations”
(effective for periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009). The revised standard continues
to apply the acquisition method to business
combinations, with some significant changes.
For example, all payments to purchase a
business are to be recorded at fair value at the
acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured
through the income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
to measure the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. When a
business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquirer should remeasure its previously
held interest in the acquiree at its fair value
at the date of control is obtained, recognising
a gain/loss in the income statement. All
acquisition-related costs should be expensed.
The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
prospectively to all business combinations
from 1 April 2010.

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE
(Bm=EHBEH -

PA FELABE T TIIR)

2.1 mEEX (E)
(c) DREMTAEE IR IR
BZER (55T R #5155 2E R 89 2
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ARNIBE RN AR EER
B Mo BREHHHARN
RERAEBDRR BN
B o SRR BI M e
B AEEZAAEESR
FEYR I MR 2 PG BB 7T
FEEMLPIETE - ETE
AU OREBETT  WEBTIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (H)
() Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) DK 4 24 ] 7K 5 3] I 4% 12 P AR A
to existing standards that are not yet effective HIZERY - (55T ¥ 3 £ R ) 22
and have not been early adopted by the Group (')
(continued)

° HKAS 38 (Amendment), “Intangible Assets”
(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009). The amendment is part of
the HKICPA’s annual improvements project
published in May 2009. The amendment
clarifies guidance in measuring the fair value
of an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination and it permits the grouping of
intangible assets as a single asset if each
asset has similar useful economic lives. The
amendment will not result in a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
The Group will apply HKAS 38 (Amendment)
from 1 April 2010.

. HKFRS 5 (Amendment), “Measurement
of non-current assets (or disposal groups)
classified as held for sale” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010). The amendment provides
clarification that HKFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required in respect of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held
for sale or discontinued operations. It also
clarifies that the general requirement of HKAS
1 still apply, particularly paragraph 15 (to
achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph
125 (sources of estimation uncertainty)
of HKAS 1. The Group will apply HKFRS 5
(Amendment) from 1 April 2010.
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AN
AN

BRI T

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Presentation of
financial statements” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010). The amendment is part of the HKICPA's
annual improvements project published
in May 2009. The amendment provides
clarification that the potential settlement of
a liability component by the issue of equity
is not relevant to its classification as current
or non-current. By amending the definition
of current liability, the amendment permits
a liability to be classified as non-current
(provided that the entity has an unconditional
right to defer settlement by transfer of cash
or other assets for at least 12 months after
the accounting period) notwithstanding the
fact that the entity could be required by the
counterparty to settle in shares at any time.
The Group will apply HKAS 1 (Amendment)
from 1 April 2010. It is not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Group cash-
settled share-based payment transactions”
(effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2010). In addition to
incorporating HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, “Scope of
HKFRS 2", and HK(IFRIC)-Int 11, “HKFRS 2
— group and treasury share transactions”,
the amendments expand on the guidance in
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 to address the classification
of group arrangements that were not covered
by the interpretation. The Group will apply
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) from 1 April 2010.
The amendments are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (H)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations () IR EX AL E I #EIEE R
to existing standards that are not yet effective I ER - EET R # 5 5 2ER)
and have not been early adopted by the Group B2 ()

(continued)
. HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective BB WS R E95%

for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013). Financial assets are required to be
classified into two measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair
value, and those to be measured subsequently
at amortised cost. The decision is to be
made at initial recognition. The classification
depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. Management does not anticipate
that the application will result in a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

o There are a number of amendments to HKFRS
1 (Revised) “First-time adoption of HKFRSs”,
HKAS 39 (Amendment) “Eligible hedge
items”, HKFRS 1 (Amendment) “Additional
exemptions for first-time adopters”,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 “Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments”, HKAS
24 (Revised) “Related party disclosures”,
HKAS 32 (Amendment) “Classification of
rights issue”, Amendment to HK(IFRIC)-
Int 14 “Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement” and HK(IFRIC)-Int 17
“Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to owners”,
which are not addressed above. These
amendments are unlikely to have an impact
on the Group’s financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detail.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
AN

For the Year ended 31 March 2010

BRI T

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHEAEI  FTESTEUABETITIIR)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 HREEE (F)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) 13K 4 3 iy 7K 5 B I #E 12 B R A

94

to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

o Annual improvement project published in
2008 and 2009 to amend the following
standards:

- HKFRS 5 (Amendment) “Non-current
assets held for sales or discontinued
operations”

- HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of
financial statements”

- HKAS 7 (Amendment) “Cash flow
statements”

- HKAS 17 (Amendment) “Leases”

- HKAS 18 (Amendment) “Revenue”

- HKAS 36 (Amendment) “Impairment of
assets”

- HKAS 38 (Amendment) “Intangible
assets”

- HKAS 39 (Amendment) “Financial
instruments: Recognition and
measurement”

- HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based
Payment”

- HKFRS 8 (Amendment) “Disclosure of
information about segment assets”

- HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 (Amendment)
“"Reassessment of embedded
derivatives”

- HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 (Amendment) “Hedges
of a net investment in a foreign
operation”

The amendments are not expected to have

a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Apart from the application of merger accounting
on those common control combinations, the
purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill (Note 2.7(a)). If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognized directly in the consolidated income
statement.
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2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses (Note 2.8).
The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Transactions with minority interest

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interest as transactions with equity
holders of the Group. For purchases from minority
interest, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to minority
interest are also recorded in equity.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognized at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment losses)
identified on acquisition (Note 2.7(a)).
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2.2 Consolidation (continued) 2.2 #AERE (&)

(c)  Associates (continued) () BERE (&)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognized in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interests
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Jointly controlled entity

The Group's interests in the jointly controlled entity
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the jointly
controlled entity’s individual income and expenses,
assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-
line basis with similar items in the Group's financial
statements. The Group recognises the portion of
gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group
to the jointly controlled entity that is attributable
to the other venturers. The Group does not
recognise its share of profits or losses from the
jointly controlled entity that result from the Group's
purchase of assets from the jointly controlled entity
until it re-sells the assets to an independent party.
However, a loss on the transaction is recognised
immediately if the loss provides evidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current
assets, or an impairment loss.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-Z—ZTF=A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) ( ,\wﬁﬁ” BRESN - BB BB T THR)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the ‘functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar ("HKD’), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances of individual companies

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c)  Group companies (continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognized in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction of property, plant and equipment incurred
plus interest capitalized less any impairment losses. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time the relevant assets are completed
and available for their intended use.

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-10 years

Leasehold improvements 2-5 years or over
the lease term,

whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within other income/loss, in the
consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-
term interests in the usage of land. They are stated at
cost and charged to the consolidated income statement
over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-line
basis, net of any impairment losses.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-"ZT-TZFE=FA=+—HItEE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBEEE
(a)  Goodwill (a) BHE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible
assets’. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
(‘CGUs’) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.

Customer relationships and non-competition
agreement

Customer relationships and non-competition
agreement acquired as part of a business
combination are capitalized separately from
goodwill and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the intangible assets
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Trademarks

Acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10
to 20 years.
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2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (continued)

(d)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortized over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5
years.
(e)  Patent
Patent includes purchased technology and skills
acquired from third parties. They have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of the
technology over their estimated useful life 10 years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, jointly controlled entity and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example

are not subject to amortization and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed

goodwill,

for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entity is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity in the period in
which the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.9

2.10

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. During the year, the Group only had loans
and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified
as “trade and other receivables”, “short-term time
deposits”, “cash and cash equivalents” and “amounts
due from subsidiaries” in the statement of financial
position (Note 2.11 and 2.12).

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. For all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, they are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment testing
of trade receivables is described in Note 2.11.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the losses
or subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off is recognized in the consolidated income statement
within ‘administrative expenses’. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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106

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entity operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entity and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is within the control
of the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.17 EEFFEH (&)
EAETARITENBERRBEESR
EHRIBaEIEYE  BETEMEHEE
MaESRkmE—HEKREYERRE
B IREREEEEERNFERESE

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the HESTAARE - BRI IRT ST
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is BEHRABELAKE -

an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits 2.18 EEEF

(a)  Pension obligations (a) RUZEMT
FEBRESREREIMERES
B (BB A &eE
—REBBBEETHEHRRIMRE A

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (‘MPF Scheme’) in Hong Kong which is
generally funded through payments to insurance

companies under defined contribution plan. It pays
contributions to administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. Moreover, all the employees of the Group’s
entities incorporated in the Mainland China of the
PRC (the 'Mainland China’) participate in employee
social security plans, including pension, medical,
housing and other welfare benefits, organized and
administered by the local governments. The Group
also makes defined contribution to retirement
schemes managed by the insurance company in
accordance with German regulation and rules for
the employees of the subsidiary located in Germany.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once these contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognized as employees benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Huabao International Holdings Limited

AfRMEE - AKEBERETEIER
RIRERETBIfEHEH - 54K A
FEMEE K - o FRE S RA
SN EAR LM EMAK L
ERZES HO2EAMITR
FAEBNEEZRBRELGRE
3 RmERNKE BE FER
Hit /A -  ARERERE
HEERIERBRINEED
MEARZAEREEREER
HHERAKRFEREBRRARME
R - REBHEE AR K
BRI REERE-FPNRE
T HERENERIASEER
MFASZ - 3R e 55 R A R B AT 3
B & B AT IR E 1 2 B FROHORL
FER R IR IR IR R R OR KK
ERAOMERREE °

FEEIENRAR AR » 2009-2010 Annual Report &R 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE BT RRMITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions and the impact of any
non-vesting conditions, excluding the impact of
any service and non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognizes
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.

2.19 Revenue recognition

108

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
rebates and

is shown, net of value-added tax, returns,

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.20

(@) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and
collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably
assumed.

Delivery does not occur until the products have
been shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flows discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Research and development costs

Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognized as intangible assets when the following
criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) the management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(c)  there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Research and development costs (continued)

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life,
not exceeding five years.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense
are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Development assets are tested for impairment annually.

Operating lease

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.22

2.23

3.1

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the final
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
and interim dividends are approved by the Company’'s
Board of Directors.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not have any
significant price risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under the policies
approved by the Board of Directors (the ‘Board’). The
Group identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operations with its operating units. The Board provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and investing of excess
liquidity.

(a)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily with respect
to Renminbi (‘RMB’). The exchange rate
of HKD against RMB is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. The
Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk as the entities of the
Group mainly earn their profits in RMB and
the value of RMB has been appreciating
against HKD.
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RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASHLBET IIR)

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEERBEZ (&)
(a) WEEE (&)
(i) EB%ERER (&)

HE-_Z—ZF=A=1+—
HIEFE  BEARELE
MAHEZES% MAA
HiEAERERFTE - BIEER

the year and equity would be affected as MEeEBMNEERZDZED

follows: N

(a)  Market risk (continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)
Should RMB be strengthened/weakened by
5% against HKD during the year ended 31

March 2010, with all other factors remaining
unchanged, the profit after income tax for

Change of profit after
income tax for the year

112

increase/(decrease)
HBRHEEINEE
®gim, CGRd)
2010 2009
—Z-EF —EThEF
Group rEE
- Strengthened by 5% — FE5% 9,431 7,805
— Weakened by 5% — B21B5% (9.431) (7,805)
Company FN/N|
— Strengthened by 5% — FHE5% - -
- Weakened by 5% — 2{85% - -
Change of equity as at 31 March
increase/(decrease)
REZA=+—HHERNE
g, Chd)
2010 2009
Z2-FF —ZEThF
Group rEH
— Strengthened by 5% — FHE5% 90,759 42,086
— Weakened by 5% — B7E5% (90,759) (42,086)
Company FiN/NE|
— Strengthened by 5% — FHBE5% - -
— Weakened by 5% — B21E5% - -
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE B ISR M

RE-T-TF=A=+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLUBET AIIR)

3.1 HERBEZ (&)
(a) WEERE (4E)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BERERQAABZANER

Other than deposits held in banks, the Group
does not have significant interest-bearing
assets. Fluctuation of market rates does not

Ak
B A7 B 4B 7T IV SR BASD -
AEBYEEATLAE -
B GELE DRSS

have a significant impact to the Group's KEmEATE o

performance.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings
which are at floating rates, and expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.

As at 31 March 2010, if interest rates on
short-term borrowings had been 2 percentage
points higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, there would be no material
impact to the profit for the year.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and financial institutions, credit exposure to
customers arising from outstanding receivables.

As at the balance sheet dates, all the Group’s
bank deposits are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to credit

risk.

The Group currently sells substantially all its flavours
and fragrances products in the PRC domestic
market. Credit is granted for a period up to 6
months to the major customers. The credit period
is determined according to an assessment made on
the financial conditions and past payment history of
these customers with the approval obtained from
senior management. As at 31 March 2010, the 5
largest debtors accounted for 35% (2009: 28%) of
total trade receivables balance of the Group.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE— SFE=-A=+—HLFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (B 7775:" EIN 0 FTBSEUNBETTYIR)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HERREZE (&)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) 1EEREE (,fi%’f)
The directors are of the view that the customers EERRNZE—FTF=HA=+
with outstanding balances as at 31 March 2010 —BENGFEREEEBRNETL,R
are either existing customers with long cooperation HAREHEE BB RS ERRE
history with the Group and/or reputable companies WBRBRERPR /SREITEAE

in the industry. The risk of credit default is
considered to be low and accordingly, the
provision for doubtful debts as at 31 March 2010
amounting to approximately HKD2,215,000 (2009:
HKD1,989,000) is considered adequate to cover any
significant potential credit risk.

The Company also recorded some balances due
from subsidiaries. The directors do not consider
that there is significant credit risk arising from these
balances in light of the past repayment history and
operations of these subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating
entities of the Group. The Company monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs and that the Group
does not breach any borrowing covenants on its
borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debt financing plans,
covenant compliance, compliance with internal
statement of financial position ratio targets and if
applicable, external regulatory or legal requirements
— for example, currency restrictions.

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, all the borrowings
and trade and other payables of the Group and the
Company were with maturity dates within 1 year.
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3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

issue new

The operating cash inflows of the Group are sufficient
for investing activities including acquisition of new
businesses.

Fair value estimation

The Group adopts the amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial
Statements: disclosures” for financial instruments that
are measured in the consolidated statements of financial
position at fair value, which requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

- Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group did not
have any financial assets or financial liabilities that were
subsequently measured at fair value.

HEZ
(B&

wﬁﬁ%%%’

3.3

—ZF=A=1+—HIFE
PrA £ FELABE T LIIR)

ETRBER
AEENECERRRANEREEE
BRMEEZE  UABRRREHEHRMAE
A ARG  ANERRE
BV E AL AOREE A »

RTHRBRABERERS  RNEBETRE
FHEXNTRENRSEE - MR
DIKMERRE  BITHRILEEE
PUREAETS -

AEBRDEPHELNRERACHA
RRE R BRI E

A REME
REBRMNBEMBMEERNETR (&
BTE-HE]MET ERTERE
BBARRARANITETEZ AR EEG
BUHERTIWARBEFEEERER
REEFEEX

- BRIF-EMBROHREN A7
BENEERENRAEBTE
& (B ER) k% (hER
) (F=E) -

- EBEEHREMNHAELIFKEA
Bam5EE (AT AEREA
B)(£=F) -

Eé:? TERFTNF=ZA=1+—
CAEBERBEEANAABERE
u+5-;E’J§F‘$ZE\Tﬁ°
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

Should the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-
use calculation for the CGUs of flavours and fragrances
be 10% lower than management’s estimates at 31 March
2010 respectively, the Group will not need to recognise
impairment of goodwill.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flows of the CGUs had been 1% higher than
management’s estimates, the Group will not need to
recognise an impairment of goodwill.

Dividends policy of subsidiaries

On 16 March 2007, National People’s Congress approved
the Corporate Income Tax Laws of the PRC (hereinafter
“the New CIT Laws”) which has become effective from
1 January 2008. According to the relevant regulations of
the new CIT Laws, when a foreign investment enterprise
distributes dividends out of the profits earned from 1
January 2008 onwards to its overseas investors, it will
be subject to withholding income tax. The applicable
withholding income tax rate varies with the origin of the
overseas investors.

Huabao International Holdings Limited
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FERNBELHERARB ZEF RERFROT

(a) FPEREZMEE
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A m e RIRREREEFEME
E o WEFEBFMNAGE (HEE8)

WRRANARERENNACELS
frrfE BEEERMERNEFTERN
EREREE_T-FTF=-_A=1—H
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(b) Dividends policy of subsidiaries (continued)

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries have accumulated significant
distributable profits from 1 January 2008. The directors
of the Company estimated that a portion of profits
generated by the PRC subsidiaries would be distributed to
their Hong Kong immediate holding companies. Deferred
income tax liabilities had been provided based on 5% of
the estimated profits to be remitted to Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2010, deferred income tax liabilities
of HKD43,246,000 (31 March 2009: HKD28,532,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax that
would be payable on the unremitted profits of certain
PRC subsidiaries. The directors of the Company have
determined not to distribute these earnings in the
foreseeable future.

The directors of the Company will regularly review the
fund requirements of the Group and thus revise the
dividend distribution policy of its subsidiaries from time
to time.

The Group has reassessed its operations and organized them
into two main operating segments:

(1) Flavours; and
(2)  Fragrances.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”). The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from the
operation perspective and assess the performance of flavours
and fragrances segments. Flavours include research and
development, production and sale of flavours products.
Fragrances include research and development, production and
sale of fragrances products. The Executive Directors assesses
the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of operating profit, which is determined by using the
accounting policies which are the same as those disclosed in
Note 2.

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE
(Bm=EHBEH -

PA FELABE T TIIR)

(b) MIBELRZREHE ()
AEBRTEKRNENHBARCD MER
SIERAINEE —TTNF—H—HE
EHREDEF - ARAEFEAEH
KU AETF AR Z BN RER ST
HRBENEESAR - ERBIEFIR
HEREBORE N5 %MERIRELT SR
BE-

R B AENB AR 2 BFRELEZ
T-ZEF-A=F+—HULEFERKER
BREANEES AR AIELNIELT
FriS™ & (& BB 143,246,000 (= F
T N4 : B #28,532,0007T) ° £ A 7
REER  ARRIESRTE TSI

BB AR -

ARAEEHIHRIAEEZEST
SR R EE A B 2 IR B KRR

AEESHTEELZEL D AMATRLED

% -
() AREREH R
) BREREN -

TERERREARASRTEE ((A1TE
2] BITEERIAKRENREERE AT
RELDEER - EREBRRULIRELORTE L

DR o

WITEEREE R AEEREKLIARA
BRAMKAREREMZIOBEHRR - R
REREHERBRENE  LERHEERASE

BEMNEM - EABARENEXBERENE £

ERHERRBREN HITESRELER
MFHEEED B2 RE - ML H2RHE2H
VEETERIFTRIE °
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The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2010 is

presented below:

Total turnover
Inter-segment sales

Net turnover/Segment sales SH& %8 /D EFUTA

Segment result

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income — net

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

» B

s e
W

=

(=S
=

Share of results of associates &1 B4~ 5] & F)

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment items
Depreciation (Note 6)

Amortization (Notes 7 and 8)

Capital expenditure
(Notes 6, 7 and 8)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE ISR R MITE

RE-T-TF=A=+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLUBET AIIR)

BE-T-TF-A=+—BLEEIHHE
B25mT :

Year ended 31 March 2010
BE-Z—ZTFE=-A=+—HILEE

Total
Flavours Fragrances segments Corporate Total
®HA BHA
EREN BREEH WA R Ast
2,291,077 75,499 2,366,576 - 2,366,576
(167) (6) (173) - (173)
2,290,910 75,493 2,366,403 - 2,366,403

Segment assets

DEEE 1,519,994 18,669 1,538,663 (21,974) 1,516,689
U N 15,761
BEKAR (1,508)
BRI — F 58 14,253
707
Bt AT & F) 1,531,649
FriSH (162,236)
TEERF 1,369,413
Hibh o EEE
e (Miske) 29,934 1,486 31,420 41 31,461
By (HFE7&8) 27,280 769 28,049 - 28,049
B
(Mist6, 758) 168,966 949 169,915 5 169,920
As at 31 March 2010
R-ZB-Z2F=A=+—H
Total
Flavours Fragrances segments Corporate Total
BH AA
ERER BREEH o3BEs 48R et
DEEE 4,638,964 156,316 4,795,280 38,578 4,833,858

Huabao International Holdings Limited BRI BRAR] » 2009-2010 Annual Report ¥R 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-Z—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (B wﬁaREﬂ%M\ AL BENAE T TIIR)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2009 is HEZZZENF=A=1T—HULEFEZHHE
presented below: K25

Year ended 31 March 2009
BEZZTAF=A=+—HL

Total
Flavours Fragrances  segments Corporate Total
®H B A
BERER BREH oEaE HE #Et
Total turnover MEEE 1,883,984 55,748 1,939,732 - 1,939,732
Inter-segment sales DEBEHE (1,289) - (1,289) - (1,289)
Net turnover/Segment sales H& %% /HEU A 1,882,695 55,748 1,938,443 - 1,938,443
Segment result 2 EEE 1,227,421 13,413 1,240,834 (45,382) 1,195,452
Finance income BT UL 19,555
Finance costs BhE A A (7,934)
Finance income — net B — F58 11,621
Share of results of associates J& & B4 A 71 2 7 426
Profit before income tax Rk 75 AT 22 A 1,207,499
Income tax expense Frigi (82,157)
Profit for the year KEEREF 1,125,342
Other segment items Hit o E1EE
Depreciation (Note 6) e (fizke) 27,988 766 28,754 44 28,798
Amortization (Notes 7 and 8)  #8H (Mi7178) 26,409 678 27,087 - 27,087
Capital expenditure (- ZNGIED
(Notes 6, 7 and 8) (MfzEe, 758) 860,772 92,794 953,566 54 953,620
As at 31 March 2009
RZZEZNF=A=+—H
Total
Flavours Fragrances  segments Corporate Total
] HH
EWER  BREN  Hu@i i @it
Segment assets PWEE 3,617,448 135,610 3,753,058 12,598 3,765,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE ISR M

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-"ZT-TZFE=FA=+—HItFEE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)

Segment result represents the profit earned by each segment
without inclusion of unallocated expenses, finance costs,
finance income and share of results of associates. This is the
measure reported to chief operating decision markers for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

The total of non-current assets, other than investments and
deferred tax assets, of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and
2009 are mainly located in the PRC.

Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales
of flavours and fragrances to customers mainly located in the
PRC.

Revenue derived from sales made to one single external
customer amounted to over 10% of the Group's total revenue.
These revenues are attributable to flavours segment.

Huabao International Holdings Limited

SHEERREEH B2 EPILREE
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At 1 April 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2009

Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfers

Combination of Wealthy
King Group

Acquisition of Profit
Fortune Group

Combination of F&G Group

Disposals

Depreciation

Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2009

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2010

Opening net hook amount

Reclassification

Additions

Transfers

Acquisition of Maoming Kebi
Flavour & Fragrance Limited
("Maoming Kebi")

R-BENEMA-H
A
Zithhe

FHEE

HZoEENE
ZB=1-ALEE

ENEEEE

iy

&

AlE24E

hEfREE

APF8GEE
HE

e
B3 %

EREREEE

RZEENE
=A=1-8

A

ZitiE

REFE

Bz-Z-3%
ZB=t-ALEE

ENETEE

ENE

&

gf

WERATRILER
EHERLA
(TEAH®L))

Acquisition of Qingdao Qingda* WEEEE A+
ipe

Disposals
Depreciation
Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2010

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

8
Epan

FREHEE
R-E-Z%
ZA=t-8
A
23t

FHEE

Note
iF3

2

2

Buildings
 E

155,701
(46,992)

108,709

108,709
5,826
26,378

34,540

(9,284)
3,696

169,865

227,69
(57,831)

169,865

169,865
(269)

1,092
8
4,056
(214)

(9,980)
20

164,798

233,810
(69,072)

164,798

Plant and
machinery

BERES

65,119
(23,267)

41,852

100,082
(30,578)

69,504

69,504
269
3,619
2,79

5,005
(41
(9,338)
320

12,132

112,605
(40.473)

12,132

Total
)

315,739
(116,861)

198,878

198,878
46,932

44183

23,567
290
(520)
(28,798)
5317

289,849

438,736
(148,887)

289,849

289,849

32,061

8

9,543
(357)
(31.461)
2,155

301,798

483,948
(182,150)

HE-Z-ZTF=-ZA=+—HItFE
(BREBHBAEN  FTESBEAEETTIR)
Furniture,
Motor fixtures and Leasehold  Construction
vehicles  equipment improvements in progress
RE i RERRE W HESE ERIR
26,498 52,366 4,834 1,17
(15,821) (29,174) (1,607) -
10,677 23,192 3217 1,17
10,677 23,192 3217 1,17
2,017 4937 468 12,273
- 8,089 15 (42,033)
2,740 1,290 - -
- - - 2,770
73 20 - -
(95) (57) - -
(3,647) (6,249) (937) -
264 17 50 3
12,029 31,394 2,873 4184
32,919 68,402 5,453 4184
(20,890) (37,008) (2,580) -
12,029 31,394 2,873 4184
12,029 31,394 2873 4,184
2,180 4,053 1,646 20,563
1,776 624 - (6,286)
341 1M = -
(53) (49) = =
(3,764) (7,305) (1,074) -
(143) 2,174 (448) 12
12,366 31,032 2,997 18,473
36,819 75,720 6,461 18473
(24,453) (44,688) (3.464) -
12,366 31,032 2,997 18473
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

* Short-term borrowing is partly secured by building with a
carrying amount of approximately HKD3,134,000 (2009: Nil)

(Note 19).

Depreciation was expensed in the following categories:

Manufacturing overheads
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Total depreciation

SLEEM
HE LR
THEM

PrE#E

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are

analyzed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong, held on:

iR e R Rk MY L

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILFE

(BRBFHAEIN

P £ FELABE T ITIIR)

EHEXRTAEIBFOREENEE
3,314,000 (ZZ T N 5F - &) (FHEM (e
19) °

FELAT DR

Note
P EE

22

Year ended 31 March

BEZE=H=+—H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETAF
11,019 9,721
1,489 1,145
18,953 17,932
31,461 28,798

AEERLIEREOESSBNLEHS -
HEEFEINET :

EBRABRIMIATFHIFA

Leases between 10 to 50 years 102506 /ML
Beginning of the year 1)

Additions A=
Combination of Wealthy King Group AHEEEE
Acquisition of Profit Fortune Group g AR =
Combination of F&G Group AFFRGEE
Acquisition of Qingdao Qingda* KBS EFK*
Amortization By

Exchange differences B 3 B

End of the year FI

* Short-term borrowing is partly secured by a piece of land with

a carrying amount of approximately HKD2,236,000 (2009: Nil)

(Note 19).

Huabao International Holdings Limited

Note
B EE

28

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2010 2009
—s-2F —TIAS
67,684 58,515

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HEE

2010 2009
—2-2% —TInA
58,515 24,887
= 2,027

= 26,965

= 5,710

= 305
10,415 -
(1.430) (1,384)
184 5
67,684 58,515

EHERTIBRS T HHREELYBK
2,236,0007T (ZET NG - &) B (s
19) °
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At 1 April 2008
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2009

Opening net book amount

Additions

Combination of Wealthy
King Group

Acquisition of Profit
Fortune Group

Amortization

Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2009

Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2010

Opening net book amount
Additions

Acquisition of Maoming Kebi
Acquisition of Qingdao Qingda
Amortization

Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2010

Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Amortization is included in administrative expenses in the

R-2RN\EBA-H
AR
ZitEH

FHAE

HZoEENE
ZB=1-ALEE

ENEEEE

yixy

AlER4E

EHREE

L
EXAE

FRERFE

R-BE0E
Zh=+-A

A

itk

FEFE

HE-E-Z£
ZB=T-ALEE

FNEEEE

e

WA

WEESEA

B

EiA%

FREMHE

REFE

consolidated income statement.

Note fiizF

Goodwill
g
(a)

566,184

566,184

566,184

648,164
49,618

26,282

1,290,248

1,290,248

1,290,248

1,290,248

109,650
244

3915

1,404,057

1,404,057

1,404,057

Trademarks
L
(o)

17,097
(2,807)

14,290

14,290

(1,400)
320

13,210

17,483
(4.273)

13,210

13,210

(1,405)
40

11,845

17,539
(5,694)

11,845

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
FiE & BB T IR

(REBHAEIN
Non-
Customer  competition
relationships ~ agreement
EFEE  FHFHE
129,276 2,329
(12,308) (222
116,968 2,107
116,968 2,107
97,453 2,175
5,905 -
(23,727) (461)
2,592 50
199,191 3871
235,532 4577
(36,341) (706)
199,191 3,871
199,191 381
5,139 82
1,416 194
(24,533) (494)
274 5
181,487 3,658
242,490 4,888
(61,003) (1,230)
181,487 3,658

BEERERARERNITHRERNA -
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Computer
software

BRAf

523
(113)

410
87

625
(215)

410
1,060

(153)

1317

1,687
(370)

1317

Patents
&7

236
(15)

21

21
108

(39

295

345
(50)

295

Total
a

715,409
(15.450)

699,959

699,959
323

47,795
55,523

(25,703)
29,254

1,507,151

1,548,701
(41,550)

1,507,151

1,507,151
1,168
114,871
1,854
(26,619)
4,234

1,602,659

1,671,006
(68,347)

1,602,659
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-_T—ZTF=-A=+—HItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (B ;»jﬁ—" EIN 0 FTBSEUNBEETTYIR)

(a) Goodwill is mainly attributable to the anticipated (a) MEFZHLEFINBEHRZNMR
profitability of operations, the anticipated future T8 HA 9 2R 2R 45 2 16p B 0 P N4 K ) T 455
operating synergies and enlarged market share. Goodwill MERE - AEECHBFERBAE
is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified mainly BAEOEEZERSEESR -
according to the operating segments.

The goodwill is allocated as follows: FESENEEZWT :
As at 31 March
M=ZA=+—H
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Flavours Fragrances Total Flavours  Fragrances Total
&®A AR ‘A BH
BERER BRER @t BRBEEH BREM met
Goodwill [EES 1,353,939 50,118 1,404,057 1,240,288 49,960 1,290,248
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based 1Ifﬁi§$ 5 {32 B A Uy [B] & B8 TH DA
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre- FEEAE BREEBRAEEMNE
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets SRAEET - JUBEIRKER (B

approved by management covering a ten-year period
(2009: ten-year period) as management believes that the
cash flows of the Group are comparatively stable and a
forecasted period longer than five years is feasible. Cash
flows beyond the ten-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates below. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the

BRF) WRESR - LRRBHEER
EEEEHAENTFHMEEEMA
BB REREFE (ZETA
FI05H) - BATFHNRERE
ERAMIEFFEREIIRAT Eii;‘%
TT\@tiﬂiﬁiF$ AL X B
ENRATFHERE -

businesses in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

are as follows:

Gross margin E R R
Growth rate #E &
Discount rate Bh IR &

EREEAENE2/ERNT

As at 31 March

R=A=+—-H
2010 2009

—E-ZfF —EThEF
Flavours Fragrances Flavours Fragrances
=9 H A ' HA
BEREN ERER AR BRRER
75% 40% 34%-75% 40%
5% 5% 3%-8% 5%
13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 13.5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE BT R R M T

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-_ZT-—ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHAEI  TESEUABETTIIR)
(@) (continued) (@) (#&)

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of REFETAREESETNEERS
each CGU within the operating segment. The adoption EEBMNHIITA - RANBT AT B@RE
of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a decrease in the number of R ESHERAMEFNNHRE D BEE
reportable segments presented. In addition, the segments WA e WA M E ST NEREE
are reported in a manner that is more consistent with MERRERBENATREE R -
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating HREETHEEERBSMBOEER
decision-maker. As goodwill is allocated by management TELEMN REDHNEHIFE
to groups of cash-generating units on a segment level, FoEE -

(a)

(b)

the change in reportable segments does not require a
reallocation of goodwill.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based EEERBATNEEREHMISGER
on past performance and their expectations for the RTEEAEE TEET EAE - FTARRLER X
market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax IR R R B8 5 B AV R @ o

and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

After assessing the cash flow projections of the EEZERSEELEMHER S RER
various CGUs, the directors considered that there is no B AEECEERERN-_Z—ZFFR
impairment on the goodwill as at 31 March 2010 and ZETNF=A=T—HHELERE
20009.
Trademarks represent the Peacock and Xinghu (b) PIETIIEILERENEEIE -
trademarks.
Investments in subsidiaries (a) HEBEARZRE
As at 31 March
H=B=+—H
2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
Investments at cost — unlisted shares ALK AE — JE LT 1,245,083 1,245,083
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- (b) MIBARIZEHBIVERE  2ERAR
free and repayable on demand. ERIFER -
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Beginning of the year
Share of profit of associates
Gain on disposal of Weihai Huayuan
Green Industry Co Ltd.
("Weihai Huayuan")
Combination of Wealthy King Group
Proceeds from disposal of Weihai Huayuan
Dividends declared
Exchange differences

End of the year

F1)

FEIE RS N R & A
HERSETARE
EXBRAT]
[BUSETT] &R

A EREEHE
HEBBETTAEK
FIRRE

PEE 3 5 2

FH

The Group's investments in an associate as at 31 March 2010 is

iR e R Rk MY L

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILFE

(B=BHAEIN

Note
P &E

29

29

P £ FELABE T ITIIR)

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLLEE

2010 2009
—g-8% —TInS
9,233 3,663

707 426

740 -

= 5,913

(3,911) -
(512) (679)

(21) (90)

6,236 9,233

RIZ-—ZTF=A=+—H TEEREEAQ

as follows: RIZEEMT -
Country of Net profit % Interest
Name incorporation  Paid-up capital Assets Liabilities Revenues for the year indirectly held Principal activities
REE  BEAEER
£8 EREIAR ARRE BE 8f Wit BEA BAN TTER
Henan Jinrui PRC RMB10,000,000  RMB38,033,000 RMB16,043,000  RMB29,245,000  RMB3,269,000 25% Production and sale of

Flavours Co. Ltd.
("Henan Jinrui")

AasHERER B
ERAF
EEE)

Huabao International Holdings Limited

ARH10,000,000 AK¥38,033,000 ARM16,043,000 AKH29,245,000

BRI IENRER AR » 2009-2010 Annual Report &R

AE%3,269,000

tobacco flavours and
fragrances and fine
chemicals products
5% EERHEERER
EHRBALIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE B TE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASHLBET IIR)

The movement in the deferred income tax is as follows: EIEFTISTEE g T ¢

Deferred
income
tax assets Deferred income tax liabilities
BT
FEHEE EEFBHAE
Withholding
income tax
on dividends
Valuation expected to
Unrealized surplus of  be remitted
profits assets and  from group
arising  recognition entities
from intra- of intangible incorporated
Note group sales assets in the PRC Total
SER
£B8 R S|
RARMEE EEMME LQREHES
FEENEE BHRREN WREFEL
i ARBREN EENRI ZBERHASH st
At 1 April 2008 RZZEENF
mA—AH 12,345 30,701 - 30,701
Combination of Wealthy AHEEELEE
King Group 3,614 30,939 - 30,939
Acquisition of Profit WEENEEE
Fortune Group - 1,551 - 1,551
Recognized in the income MU R R
statement 25 14,709 (4,890) 34,828 29,938
Exchange differences kS 387 684 - 684
At 31 March 2009 RZZZTNF
=A=+—H 31,055 58,985 34,828 93,813
Acquisition of Maoming Kebi W A% 28 - 1,305 - 1,305
Acquisition of Qingdao Qingda W¥#ESFEE KX 28 - 2,673 - 2,673
Recognized in the income U R IR
statement 25 19,341 (5,171) 12,509 7,338
Exchange differences [E 5 7% 148 78 3,663 3,741
At 31 March 2010 RZZ—ZF
=A=+—H 50,544 57,870 51,000 108,870

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for temporary EBRANARBHEEREEANERARNKRERET]
REEEMSHEE BN ERRE
HHEABSEEE SRR R E SR EE

RRRETE °

differences arising from the unrealized intra-group profits from
intra-group sales, and calculated under the liability method
using the tax rate which are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e R Rk MY L

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-" T TZF=FA=+—HItFEE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABE T ILIIR)

Deferred income tax liabilities are arisen from the valuation
surplus of property, plant and equipment and land use rights
and recognition of intangible assets as a result of acquisition/
combination of subsidiaries; and withholding income tax on
dividends expected to be remitted abroad by group entities
incorporated in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Laws of the PRC
approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends remitted
from the PRC entities to overseas investors with effect from 1
January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% is applied
to Hong Kong investors as there is a tax treaty arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong. The directors of the
Company estimated that a portion of profits generated by
the PRC subsidiaries would be distributed to their Hong Kong
immediate parent companies. Therefore, deferred income tax
liabilities had been provided based on 5% of the estimated
profits to be remitted to Hong Kong. The directors of the
Company will review the funding requirements of the Group
from time to time and revise the dividend distribution policy of
its subsidiaries as appropriate.

As at 31 March 2010, deferred income tax liabilities of
HKD43,246,000(31 March 2009: HKD28,532,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the unremitted profits of certain PRC subsidiaries.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities is as follows:

BLEFSHRAET RN AR R WES A OB
REIFTERZYE - Has MR b e A
MG RBRRETVEENERMEL - LEE
N ETEE R D AVA=ONCINERt i s LAN: D) &8
PRES 2 TRIRFIIS T ©

BREZEARKRRGER_ZZTLF=A+RX
HBRBNTBECEMREIE  A—TTENF—
A—Rig HERCEAIIEHRELED KK
B BIEI0% 2 RERUWFTER - ERPE R
EEBEIRBHE  RPEKEERAES
BRELEDIREE  JZAREBENHES%
B - RRBEFTEA S AR LT BN
REZBNKERETEREENEEER
A e Hit  BIEFASHEENREFELES
ZRBNMAS %R EGFE - ARREEH T
BAUAREZESFRALBERBAEMBAR 2
AR SR e

RZFE—ZF=ZA=+—0  ~EBIKK
ETHREAREWNBRARIZAEHLAFNETX
NHERFEHREREEMSHAESE
43,246,0007T (ZZZNF : B%28,532,000
TT) °

BEREFISHEERBBENONAT

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETHhEF
Deferred income tax assets: FEIEFTSTHEE
— to be recovered within 12 months — E+ =1 A AUk B 50,544 31,055
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEEFSHARE
— to be recovered after more than — EBA+ @B BWE D
12 months 53,999 55,357
- to be recovered within 12 months — E+ @A R EE 5 54,871 38,456
108,870 93,813
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE B TE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

At cost: R
Raw materials B
Work in progress 8
Finished goods A T

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold for the year ended 31 March 2010
amounted to approximately HKD544,194,000 (2009:
HKD438,832,000).

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

(B>

BHRPEIN  IBESBRABETTIIR)

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—8H
2010 2009
o
186,578 170,964
4,378 6,135
44,338 34,721
235,294 211,820

HE-_Z-ZETHF=-A=1+—-HILFEE2HFE
ABRABERATTABERNEANSELY
775 #544,194,000c (Z 2T L F : B
438,832,0007T) ©

As at 31 March

R=BR=+—H
Group Company
rEH b NS
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
B sE —E-2F Z—TThF ZE-TE ZTITIF
Trade receivables B Sl zE 13(b) 519,895 409,285 - -
Less: Provision for R FENCRRIERVE
impairment on receivables — #{& (2,215) (1,989) - -
Trade receivables — net B S EGRIE — F58 517,680 407,296 - -
Notes receivable e EE 89,487 85,766 - -
Prepayments and other TE A FRIE K H At
receivables JE U ZR I8 36,727 24,508 473 478
Advances to staff BTN 4,404 4,439 - -
Others Hith 11,819 9,289 - -
660,117 531,298 473 478

(@)  Except for prepayment of HKD13,127,000, the trade and
other receivables balances are financial assets categorised
under “loans and receivables”. All trade and other
receivables are either repayable within one year or on
demand. Accordingly, the fair values of the Group’s and
the Company’s trade and other receivables approximate
to their carrying values.

(a) BIBNBERFZ B 13,127,000 o 0 B
S REMEBGR D BB [ B 3O FE SR
B MBESREMBRFIETIN—F
N RBAGEE - MALEBERARA]
2B RHEMERRBEREEEREAFE
A -
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE ISR M

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLUBET IIR)

The credit period generally granted to customers ranges by ETEFPHEEH—MRABOEI80H - R
from 0 to 180 days. The ageing analysis of the trade HER BZRKTE (BEBEAL

receivables (including amounts due from related parties

WE SRR WREDITAT

which are trade in nature) as at the balance sheet dates

is as follows:
0 — 90 days
91 - 180 days

181 - 360 days
Over 360 days

As at 31 March 2010,

As at 31 March

R=ZA=+-—8H

Group

*EE
2010 2009
—F-%F —EENF
0£90H 457,936 339,187
912 180H 44,546 49,836
1812360H 10,535 10,644
360H LA = 6,878 9,618
519,895 409,285

receivables of

HKD517,680,000 (2009: HKD407,296,000) were fully

performing.

After considering the credit period, trade receivables are
assessed for impairment. As at 31 March 2010, trade
receivables of HKD15,198,000 (2009: HKD18,273,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The ageing analysis of the past due

trade receivables is as follows:

Pass due up to 180 days
Pass due over 180 days

Huabao International Holdings Limited

R-ZEBE-—FBF=FA=1+—H B5rEK
FRE#517,680,0007T (Z BT NE B
#407,296,0007T) E 2= EEBETT ©

EHERE  BEHEZERWGIEETH
BFfH - RZE—ZTF=A=+—8"
E 5 R IE B %15,198,0000T (=&
TR EF  E#18,273,0000T) & E 7 Hf

B ERE - thEX

B R ZAE SR

BHAERREHNBIULES - WEBS
RN R B HRREC D ATIA T

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—T-%F  —TTNF
MmAI=180H 10,535 10,644
EHI180H LA I 6,878 9,618
17,413 20,262
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
AN

BRI ot

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

132

(b)  (continued)
As at 31 March 2010, trade receivables of HKD2,215,000
(2009: HKD1,989,000) were impaired and fully provided.
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
customers which had ceased cooperation with the
Group and were not in a position for repayment. These
receivables are all aged over one year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
(including amounts due from related parties which
are trade in nature) are denominated in the following

currencies:
United States Dollar (‘USD’) E
RMB AR#E

Movements of the provision for impairment on trade
receivables were as follows:

Beginning of the year F9)

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment on BB REBGRE
trade receivables B (E#)

Exchange differences M 5, 3R 2

End of the year FLR

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASHLBET IIR)

(b) (#&)
R-TE—ZTFE=-ZA=+—H BHELK
FEE2,215,000T (ZZEZNF + B
1,989,0007T) & E R E &2 HHEME o 1@
FURERNERFUBEE B R G EE B/ KL
BIEARNMEENRENINER - LilfE
WSRIEBRARII A —F -

REBENE S EYGROEREEE (B
BALTHWEZRUWHIE) ATIEER

BB :
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —TTHhEF
3,039 583
516,856 408,702
519,895 409,285
B RBGREREBNE ST ¢
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
Group
AEE
Note 2010 2009
G o
1,989 2,100
22 119 (62)
107 (49)
2,215 1,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b)

(continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral

iR e R Rk MY L

E-E-FE=A=T—BILFE
BREHBES - FASEUBETIIR)

(&)
HORERUEENRIMERDS S
REGEWRERT TTRER] A - 5tA
BERPTHNBRE-—RSERNEER
Bl ZR 9N R & B o

B REMEURANEMBERNLEE
SEREEE °

EREAY  FEARNRESE LA
AL SREYGRENREE - AEE
TRBEAERERNERR -

as security.

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
Group Company
rEH AT

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTHEF ZEB-BF "—TTNF
Short-term time deposits 52 ERTEERTT R 230,886 - = -
Cash and cash equivalents e RINEEZEY 1,678,640 1,126,735 35,503 11,809
1,909,526 1,126,735 35,503 11,809

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following

RITREFRSATIIINESFEIIR

currencies:
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+—H
Group Company
AEE b NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF ZEB-TF —TITNF
RMB AR 1,845,110 1,103,240 = -
HKD T 58,047 17,916 35,503 11,809
usb e 4,637 4,101 = -
Euro and others BT & E At 1,732 1,478 = -
1,909,526 1,126,735 35,503 11,809
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iRE BRI R
For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-Z—ZTF=A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (& wﬁaREﬂ%M\ PR SRS T TYR)

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s RZZE—ZTF=A=+—H AEEKKQF
maximum exposure to credit risk of short-term time deposits HHHRERMERFRALRE KB SEEY
and cash and cash equivalents is their carrying value. MEeEERBRTEREERE -

Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each
BREEEBYE0I10TZEZER

Number
Note of shares HKD'000
P EE RS EE BT T
Authorized: JETE ¢
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 and RZZTNFMNA—A -
31 March 2010 —EThF=A

—t—-AR-ZT—TF

—A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At 1 April 2008 RZZZENFEA—H 3,069,110,961 306,911
Exercise of share options 17150 B A e 16 15,695,000 1,569
At 31 March 2009 RZZETNF

—A=+—H 3,084,805,961 308,480
At 1 April 2009 RZZZNFMA—H 3,084,805,9611 308,480
Exercise of share options 1TERERR 16 44,015,000 4,402
At 31 March 2010 R-T—FF

=—RA=+—H 3,128,820,961 312,882
On 10 October 2006 and 25 October 2006, the Group granted R-BZERFTATAR-FFAFTA
97,200,000 and 30,400,000 share options with an exercise — Jr ﬁ A & B 5 Bl 197,200,000 %
price of HKD3.09 per share and vesting periods of 0 to 3 years 30'400'000%9‘%%% TR EREER3.09
to employees and directors respectively. On 17 October 2007, LEERAROEIF  TRAERERES -
the Group granted 13,900,000 and 3,600,000 share options &EA FRLFTAT LR ARED BRI
with an exercise price of HKD6.65 per share and vesting periods 13,900,000523,600,0008% &5 it i - 1T1E 18 &
of 0.5 of 3 years to employees and a director respectively. On SREHCSTNEEBBAFFEIF - TR
14 April 2008, the Group granted 10,400,000 share options to BREELR-BES - RR=—FTN\FHA TN
two directors with an exercise price of HKD6.39 per share and B - REBETHRAMAEF10,400,0008H
vesting periods of 0 to 3 years. The options have a contractual B TRE/SREW6 39T IEBH A0
option term of 10 years. The Group has no legal or contractual E3%F - aRAEBBRANMRAE TF - KE
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash. The fair B iR R Bda R ERRARS [ BK
value of the share options was determined using the Black- 12 - IR EM 2 e (BB MBlack-Scholesi 518
Scholes valuation model. Share option compensation expense R - Fir e Wm R RHERORBRERHE
recognised in the consolidated income statement is shown in AR RE22 -
Note 22.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE ISR M

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLUBET IIR)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during REAR - RITFENERESE S REERA 2
the year and their related weighted average exercise prices are IEFEITEBIIRAT -
as follows:

Year ended 31 March

BE=HA=+-—H
2010 2009
—E-BF ZEENF
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise of share exercise of share

price in HKD options price in HKD options

Note per share ("000) per share ("000)

¥  BREHE TS EREHE

TEEET (e 1TRESBT (A%

B sE (BB RF3t) (BARET) LAFET)

Beginning of the year F9] 3.98 108,435 3.63 115,730
Granted fsdun - - 6.39 10,400
Exercised 21T1E 15,16(a) 3.20 (44,015) 3.09 (15,695)
Forfeited e 16(b) 3.09 (2,200) 3.09 (2,000)
End of the year FR 4.57 62,220 3.98 108,435
(@) The weighted average share price immediately before (a) EBEZBRETTE A Z AT INEFHK
the share option exercised dates was HKD7.96 (2009: TEABEIIGT (ZEZTNF : B

HKD6.05) per share. 6.057T) ©
(b) These represented share options forfeited due to (b) FERRMERZEMAE TBEE -

resignation of employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE B TE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Share options outstanding as at 31 March 2010 are analysed as

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASHLBET IIR)

follows:

Exercise
price in HKD
Grantee WEFA per share
TEESER
(|
Directors 5= 3.09
6.65
6.39
Employees == 3.09
3.09
6.65

At 31 March 2010 RZZE-—FF

=A=+—H

Out of the 62,220,000 (2009: 108,435,000) share options
outstanding as at 31 March 2010, 52,645,000 (2009:
62,385,000) share options are currently exercisable.

N_ZE—ZEF-ZA=F+—ARTEBEREZS
Wranr

Number of
share options
('000) Expiry date
BREHE
(REATE) KB H
12,250 24 October 2016
2016%F10H24H
3,600 16 October 2017
20174F10H16H
10,400 13 April 2018
20184 H13H
18,120 9 October 2016
20164 10A9H
5,250 24 October 2016
20165 10H24H
12,600 16 October 2017
2017 10A16H

62,220

WM_ZE-ZEF=A=+—-BRITEY
62,220,000 (20094F : 108,435,000) A% & A%
# & F + 52,645,000 (20094 : 62,385,000)
IREERR A IR A TAT(E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BEEHBEI  FESBUAEETITIIR)
GROUP
rEE
Share-hased
Contributed Merger Share Capital compensation  Exchange Other
Note surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserve reserves Total
NRGRER
i3 AR AURE  RBEE Ehfie  MMERE | AERE Bt Eh
At 1 April 2008 RZZENE
TA-H 288,191 (597,567) 90,481 1,677 48,013 177,700 122,253 130,748
Combination of Wealthy ~ AHEZE
King Group £5 - (15,382) - - - - - (15,382)
Appropriations from BEAE
net profit - - - - - - 5432 5,432
Employee share option ~ (EE % ME
scheme BE
- Value of employee -EERHE
services BE 2 - - - - 30,889 - - 30,889
- Bxercise of share options — — 7EEEE - - 54,721 - (7,793) - - 46,928
Exchange differences o] - - - - - 49,843 - 49,843
At 31 March 2009 RZETNE
=A=t+-H 288,191 (612,949 145,202 1,677 71,109 227,543 127,685 248 458
At 1 April 2009 RIEENE
MA-A 288,191 (612,949) 145,202 1,677 71,109 221,543 127,685 248,458
Combination of F&G Group  A(F4GEE 21(a) - (@21 - - - - = (@.211)
Appropriations from BEMER
net profit - - - - - - 4,496 4,496
Fmployee share option ~ EBHERE
scheme BE
- Value of employee -EERE
services BE 2 - - - - 12,605 - - 12,605
- Bxercise of share options T/ EEAE - - 159,428 - (23,195) - - 136,233
Exchange differences 5 HE - - - - - 12,822 - 12,822
At 31 March 2010 RZE-%£
ZA=t-H 288,191 (617,160) 304,630 1,677 60,519 240,365 132,181 410,403
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4 A

w3 /jﬂv’%i&%ﬁﬁa{

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

138

At 1 April 2008
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee services
- Exercise of share options

At 31 March 2009

At 1 April 2009
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee services
- Exercise of share options

At 31 March 2010

Beginning of the year
Profit for the year

Appropriations from net profit
Combination of F&G Group
Final dividend for the year ended

31 March 2008

Interim dividend for the

six months ended
30 September 2008

Final and special dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2009

Interim and special dividend for

the six months ended

30 September 2009

End of the year

HE-_T—ZTF=A=

(BR=BHBEN -

T—HIEFE

PA FELABE T TIIR)

COMPANY
. UNC|
Share-based
Contributed Share Capital compensation
Note surplus premium reserve reserve Total
BB AHER
iz BEfRs R EE BREE SR E @t
RZZENF
mA—H 288,191 90,481 1,677 48,013 428,362
BEBRIEE
- EERKEE 22 - - - 30,889 30,889
— Tl - 54,721 - (7,793) 46,928
RZEENE
A=+-18 288,191 145,202 1,677 71,109 506,179
RZZETNEF
mA—H 288,191 145,202 1,677 71,109 506,179
EEERIEE
- EERKEE 22 - - = 12,605 12,605
— TP - 159,428 = (23,195) 136,233
RZZE—ZF
=A=1-H 288,191 304,630 1,677 60,519 655,017
Year ended 31 March
BE=ZBA=1+—HLEE
Group Company
KEE AATF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-TF —ZTTHhE =ZB-TF  —ZETNE
F 4] 2,278,879 1,514,572 1,208,384 1,217,784
IF G R A 1,340,085 1,110,324 532,212 329,240
B 40 F A (4,496) (5,432) = -
AHFRGEE - (1,945) = -
BE-TT\F
Z“A=+—HLFE
ZARAR B - (184,540) = (184,540)
BHE_ZTZN\F
NA=Z+BIERNEA
ZHRHARR B - (154,100) = (154,100)
HE_ZZThF
—A=+—HIFE
2 ARH RIS (272,695) - (272,695) -
HE-—ZZThF
NA=Z+BIEAEA
2 PHA R B (274,954) - (274,954) -
FR 3,066,819 2,278,879 1,192,947 1,208,384
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-ZTF-A=+—HIFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB AEHAEI - TESTEUABETITIIR)
The Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March BHEZ—ZF=A=+—HLEFE &K
2010 included approximately HKD549,687,000 (2009: AEIBNFABEANBRAF S EREMSE
HKD366,034,000) which was dividend income from subsidiaries #) 75 549,687,000 (Z T LG A ¥
and eliminated on consolidation. 366,034,0007T) * ZERBERACERES

PR ITETEY -

As at 31 March

R=BA=+-—H
Group Company
rEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTThF ZEB-—ZTF TITIAF

Short-term bank borrowings RERITER

Secured (a) — BiK(a) 10,236 - - -

Unsecured (b) — I (b) 240,000 - 240,000 -

250,236 - 240,000 -

(a) The bank loan is secured by a pledge of certain land (a) EERBITERIASESEAMFTED
(note 7) and building (note 6) located in Qingdao owned RS S (HiE7) REF (MiEe)
by Qingdao Qingda. It is denominated in RMB and is EREH - ZEFAAREREL - I
repayable within one year. During the year, the average ER—FEREE - RFR - ZERTEY
interest rate is 5.84% per annum. FEBFF584E -

(b)  The unsecured bank loan is denominated in HKD and is (b) MERBITERUEBEAEN  UFR
repayable within one year. During the year, the average —FRNEHEE - RFR - ZERFEY
interest rate is 1.63% per annum. FEARETF163E -

The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings REBRERNORRERER L BEMER -

approximate their fair values.
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FRE BITE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

140

Note

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

(BR=BHBEN -

N i

Trade payables B S EMNIA 20(a)
Non-trade payables to IEE 5 e R
related parties ANTLTRIR 31(0)
Wages payable R TE
Other taxes payable HipEATIE
Accrued expenses FEEFI
Customer advance payment BB
Other payables o th AT 3RI8

Except for advances from customers of HKD1,915,000, trade
and other payables balances are financial liabilities categorized
under “financial liabilities measured at amortized cost”. The
fair values of trade and other payables approximate their
carrying values.

(@) The ageing analysis of the trade payables (including
amounts due to related parties) as at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:

0 — 90 days 0290H

91 - 180 days 912 180H
181 - 360 days 181£360H
Over 360 days 360H LA

As at 31 March

PA FELABE T TIIR)

R=A=+-—H
Group Company
rEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—EENF  ZB-BF _—TTNF
237,303 151,251 - -
133,985 488,994 = -
8,913 7,671 - -
42,153 10,850 = -
4,732 5,280 - -
1,915 10,860 - -
57,241 27,337 20,103 2,081
486,242 702,243 20,103 2,081
BrE P IEM G E1,915,0005h - B S R

B AR BRI B R A ENT TR
cBHRHEMEMNRIEN A EEEEERT
(ERIEESH

=
=2

REERESENFKE (BHEBBAL
MBS RN FIR) MERER D
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As at 31 March

R=BR=+—H

Group

AEE
2010 2009
Z2-ZF —ETNEF
185,073 112,843
33,744 19,232
1,094 6,532
17,392 12,644
237,303 151,251



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_Z-—ZTF=A=+—HILFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 20. ESZRHMBENSRE (&)

(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables by AEENEZFENSK (BIEBBALD
(including amounts due to related parties which are trade BHRENRIE) NEEEATIEE R
in nature) are denominated in the following currencies: EVivax

As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H”
Group
KEME
2010 2009
! —E-FF —ZEThEF
EUR BT ' 6,853 453
usD =S 16,372 6,345
RMB AR 214,078 144,453
237,303 151,251
21. OTHER INCOME 21. Htblizs
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEE
2010 2009
ZEB-BF ZEENF

Sales of raw materials H & R4 R / 808 761

Government grants AT 2R 30,751 20,295

Exchange gain — net T 5 s — 55 1,924 13,832

Gain on disposal of an associate k=N P 740 -

Others Hh 2,014 1,318

36,237 36,206
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FRE BITE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-—ZTF-A=-+—HIFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHEAEI  FTESTEUABETITIIR)
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing BRABBREENRAN « HERMISHERSZ KT
expenses and administrative expenses are analyzed as follows: WER - ofwT

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

Note 2010 2009
B —E—ZF —ZTENF

Depreciation, excluding amounts included — #7& (T &3E5t A

in research and development NEREESEE) 6 25,417 23,638
Amortization A 7.8 28,049 27,087
Changes in inventories of finished goods YRR EERTE

and work in progress b=E) (7.860) (21,488)
Raw materials and consumables used B A REME MEFE R 527,615 457,777
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment on B HRWR 2 RE

trade receivables B (E#7) 13(b) 119 (62)
Lease rentals e 4,106 4,954
Auditor's remuneration ZE AN & 5,457 6,269
Travelling expenses ZEIRFA 20,060 18,562
Entertainment expenses IRELER S 19,401 17,176
Employee benefit expenses, excluding share (& & N&F|FZ

option compensation expenses and (T B IEIEARE

amounts included in research and W|ENE A Mt A

development MR E5E) 23 83,063 82,558
Share option compensation expenses A AR A SR M B AR 17,23 12,605 30,889
Research and development R RERE

- Employee benefit expenses —EEREFRZ 23 32,829 31,234

- Depreciation —E 6 6,044 5,160

- Others — Hfth 44,198 15,274
Delivery expenses B 18,743 19,103
Utilities NIEFHEF L 13,309 12,352
Motor vehicle expenses B E MR 8,016 6,956
Others Hih 44,780 41,758
Total cost of goods sold, selling and BIHERK - HHER

marketing expenses and administrative 5 i E R S A

expenses TREA 885,951 779,197
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

RE-T-TF=A=+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBUBET IIR)

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HILLEE

Note 2010 2009
P —E-2F —ETNF
Wages, salaries and bonues TE - HFMKrES 95,143 91,811
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Ek&—TF a2 23(a) 12,457 12,355
Share options granted to directors and EYTEENEEY
employees B % A 22 12,605 30,889
Others Hit 8,292 9,626
128,497 144,681
(a) Retirement scheme benefit (a) BALFTEIER
The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all the eligible REBERERBMBEEEBEERLAE
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme SETE - MBS ECEAEELREEM

are held separately from those of the Group.

BEBISH -

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to RIFRESTE  BREEEKAS
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum 5% (i = £ 5158 = B #651,0007T) 1E
of HKD1,000 per employee and they can choose to B WRLEERIELFEIMER - BETD
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly HIREBEZEEAFHS% (RafREAE
contributions are calculated at 5% of each employee’s #1,0007T) 1B &4 50 (T98 &l g 510) ©
monthly salaries up to a maximum of HKD1,000 (the EBEARATHBREK B TEE
‘mandatory contributions’). The employees are entitled to KITERE N IREVE E1EL 2 2334
100% of the employer's mandatory contributions upon -

their retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total

incapacity.

Moreover, the Group makes defined contribution to o - REBERBEAEEREINEALRY
retirement schemes managed by the local governments © & TE DR B BT E R
in the Mainland China. It is the local governments’ RINSETEWEHERMR - A BNE
responsibility to pay the retirement pension to those staff ERZFRKNESITRIKE o

who retired.

Furthermore, the Group makes contribution at certain SAEEMBREEENBBERNER
percentage of monthly salary to retirement schemes MEBEREIRAFMNETESLRAE
managed by the insurance company in accordance BARBARHELHER - REARIBERE
with German regulation and rules. It is the insurance M5 RINEEB X TRKE -

company’s responsibility to pay the retirement pension to

those retired staffs.
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FRE BITE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLBET IIR)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) E=E=Me
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BEERBE-_T—ZTF=HA=+—H
March 2010 is set out below: IEFEEZMemT :
2010 2009
3-%% ZIINE
Employer's Share Employer's Share
contribution ~ options contribution options
to pension  granted to topension  granted to
Name of director Fees Salaries scheme  directors Total Fees Salaries scheme directors Total
EERBK  BFES EXiEn  BTER
£3:5] ne #&  GHME  cBBE &t ik e EER B &
Executive director: HITEE:
Ms. Chu Lam Yiu fHERT - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Lau Chi Tak (i) ATERE) = 1,500 12 3,338 4,850 - 1438 12 7,145 8,595
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ARELE = 1,319 195 120 1,634 - 1,501 12 440 1,953
Mr. Wang Guang Yu THERE - 370 49 120 539 - 358 43 440 841
Mr. Xia Li Qun EfEEs - 443 24 120 587 - 441 2 440 903
Mr. Xiong Qing ks - 1,430 12 2,818 4,260 - 1,430 12 5992 7434
Independent non-executive B
directors: gz
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FRkfE 180 - - 14 194 180 - - 50 230
Ms. Ma Yun Yan fERt 180 - - 14 194 180 - - 50 230
M. Mak Kin Kwong EEiit 180 - - 14 194 180 - - 50 230
12452 20416
Note: Mz -
() Appointed on 9 April 2008. (i) RZZEZNENANBERE -
No directors waived any emoluments during the years BE-_Z—ZTERZZTTNF=A=+
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. —RIFFE  BEERETANE -
During the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, no HE_Z-ZSFER-ZZFTNF=A=T
emoluments had been paid by the Group to the directors —BIEFE - NREETEMEE A
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as SIEAMARE B K ZE) S (e A BB
a compensation for loss of office. &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE SRR MY

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
(c) Five highest paid individuals () HEEBRSHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FR - EAEBZzRAEZERTHALE
in the Group for the year include 3 (2009: 3) directors = (ZEZNF =) BEE M
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented BEZHMEFBEEHNR L - AFEX
above. The emoluments paid and payable to the NTEBREAL (ZZEZNEF : MA)
remaining 2 (2009: 2) individuals during the year are as ZBlEmT
follows:

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—BHLEFE

2010 2009
—E-TF —ZETHhEF
Basic salaries and allowances BEARF ¢ K2R 4,209 4,260
Contributions to the retirement scheme RIREFIFT B R 118 120
Share options granted T HERR e 743 1,675
5,070 6,055

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BEZMeIELA T HE

Number of employees

EEAH"
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZTTHhEF
Emolument bands I < &5 [E

HKD2,000,001- HKD2,500,000 7B #2,000,001%2,500,0007T 1 1
HKD3,000,001- HKD3,500,000 7 #3,000,001 % 3,500,0007T 1 -
HKD3,500,001- HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 %4,000,0007T - 1

Year ended 31 March

BE=ZBA=1+—HLEE
Note 2010 2009
T —g-2% -—TThf
Interest income on bank deposits SRITIFFF BULA 29 15,761 19,555
Interest expenses FMEER 29 (1,508) (7,934)
Finance income — net B A — JF58 14,253 11,621
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FRE BITE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-_ZT—=
(BR=BHBEN -

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represented:

Note
B
Current income tax RIEA#R 1A
- Hong Kong profits tax — BEMEH (a)
— PRC corporate income tax — B EREH (b)
— Botswana company income tax — BRI EFTEH (d)
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHEARE 1
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS AE 1
(@) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of (a)
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. & o
(b)  PRC corporate income tax has been calculated on the (b)

estimated assessable profit for the year at the tax rates
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FZA=+—RIFE

PA FELABE T TIIR)

SEARR A MEKRZ B S BEIRIT

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2010
—E-BfF

13,742
159,965
532
(19,341)
7,338

162,236

2009
ZETNF

66,928

(14,709)
29,938

82,157

EBMEHREANFE AT ERTREF A
i E16.5% (Z T Z JLF 1 16.5%)%

PR MR EERANEEETBAR
e 1 25 P ZR4F 2 O 22 ) LA L AR A B 3
applicable to respective companies of the Group. %



For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The income tax rates enacted or substantively enacted to
the major subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the

PRC were as follows:

Huabao Food Flavours &
Fragrances (Shanghai)
Company Limited

Shanghai H&K Flavours &
Fragrances Company Limited

Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan
(Shanghai) Company Limited

Wuxi Fuhua Flavour & Fragrance
Company Limited

Wuxi Jiahua Flavour & Fragrance
Company Limited

Qingdao Huabao Flavors &
Fragrances Company Limited

Yunnan Tianhong Flavor &
Fragrance Company Limited

Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Limited

Shanghai Zhezhan Trading Limited

Shenzhen Dongjiang Chuangzhan
Trading Limited

Guangdong Zhaoging Fragrances
Limited

Taicang Wenhua Enterprise
Company Limited

Huashun Fragrance (Shanghai)
Company Limited

Wuxi Huaxin Flavour & Fragrance
Company Limited

Shanghai Yinghua Flavours &
Fragrances Limited

Guangzhou Huabao Flavour &
Fragrances Company Limited

Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Company
Limited

Xiamen Amber Fragrances Co Ltd

Feijia Chuangye Additive
(Shenzhen) Limited

Owada Flavours Technology
(Guangzhou) Limited

Maoming Kebi

Qingdao Qingda

Huabao International Holdings Limited

Note

b
LEANERER
(1) BRAA

LBEELERREEH
BRAF
EERCMRER
(L&) BRAA
EHRETREM
ARAE
EHEEBRREM
ARRE
BEREEEEREM
BRAE
EMAEERAH
BRRAAE
ENERBANEBRAF
LBMRESERAF 0)
AITRTEIERE
BRRAE
BREZEBHR
BRAF
ARXEEX
BRRAA
ZBER (L8)
BRRAA
EHERRRAMN
BRRA
LBRERBEH
BRAF
BMEERREEH
BRAE
EHEBER
BRAF
EFRRARERAR
REzRIZERAE CRIN
BRRA
BEZRRBE (BM)
BRRA
FE2L R (i)
EBEX (i

AN
RIN=

L)

RE-T-TF=A=+—HILER
FiE & BB T TLAIR)

(

BRBFHAEIN

(@]

BRI

THRAEERTEAREEZMZ EED

EHFTSTEMT A

April to
December
2008
—EENE
mAZ+=AH
15%
12.5%
25%
12.5%
12.5%
0%

15%

18%

25%

18%

25%

0%

0%

0%

0%

25%

0%
18%

0%
15%

25%
25%

January to
December
2009
—EENE
—-AZ+Z=AH
15%
12.5%
25%
12.5%
12.5%

0%

15%

25%

25%

20%

15%
12.5%
12.5%
12.5%
12.5%
25%

0%
15%

0%
15%

25%
25%

EEFEEEAR AT o 2009-2010 Annual Report %

January to
March
2010
—B-EF
—RE=H
15%

15%

25%

25%

25%
12.50%
15%

25%

25%

22%

15%
12.50%
12.50%
12.50%
12.50%
25%

12.50%
15%

1%
15%

25%
25%
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BRI T

AN
AN

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

148

(@]

(e)

(continued)
The income tax rates are derived from various preferential
tax policies.

(i)  The Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC stipulates
the applicable income tax rate at 25% for domestic
enterprises in the PRC.

PRC companies established before 16 March 2007 are
entitled to the transitional rules announced by the State
Council Circular [2007] No. 39 which stipulates:

(i)~ From 1 January 2008, the existing tax rate of 15%
applied to some enterprises shall be increased to
18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in
2011 and 25% in 2012.

(iii)  The 'two-year exemption and three-year half rate’
preferential tax policy can be continued to enjoy.
For enterprises that do not benefit from such
preferential policies due to their non-profit making
status, the period of time for which such policies

apply shall be commenced from 1 January 2008.

(iv) Encouraged enterprises of western regions can
continue to enjoy tax rate of 15% until its original
policy expiry (i.e. 2010).

(v)  The CIT Law also stipulates that the Corporate
Income Tax shall be levied at the reduced rate
of 15% for High/New Tech Enterprises that are
specifically supported by the State.

Botswana company income tax has been provided at the
rate of 15% (2009: 15%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

No provision for income tax in other jurisdictions has
been made as the Group has no assessable profit in those
jurisdictions during the year.

HE-T-FHE=A=T-BLEE

=

(BR=BHBEN -

(e)

PA FELABE T TIIR)

(&)
TRIEIFASHM R R A TR EEEE -

(i) DEMEBERES AR
HER SR ER25% -

R-ZZE+F= A+ HZAKIZHF
B oK BE > 2R BB B 2 B IER
[2007]55395% :

(i HZFETNF—A—H HH1
X¥EAREMISRHEFZEME
20084F £918% - 20094F £920% -
20109 8922% ~ 20114F 8924% %
20129F#925% ©

(i) & [MBR=EF] WEERRFE
B bERRBAFNMAER R
RULBEBEN > $#ER-FFTN
F—A—BAFEEMALBEE -

RASNEG BN EREE
ZHE15%MNFH R EE R KD
B (E120104F)

(iv)

() DEMESFREARTECEMSRE
HREZBERZFHS M E
WA15%HFEE o

18 3% L 400 4 22 R 48 B IR AR 4 S 40 f
R EFIUBE15% (CTEAF -
15%) 1 -

AEBRERFEEEMMRDEEEL &
RBERABREA - HE[EMBDE
RERNASHIELERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the tax rates applicable to respective companies of
the Group as follows:

=1

(B>

iR e R Rk MY L

ECT-ZF=A=1T—HILFE

EEREH%M\ ’ Pﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%?ﬁﬁlﬁ)

(f) AEERKASHAEMNMHRIE - 8K
SEETHEARMELERREEE
HIEm AR A P TR - &3

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLFE

Profit before income tax
Less: Share of profit of associates

Tax calculated at tax rate applicable to
respective group companies
Effect of tax holiday

Tax impact of expenses not deductible for

tax purposes
Utilization of previously unrecognized
tax losses

Withholding tax on the earnings anticipated /&2 &) 8 HilE 1 A9R% 5

to be remitted by subsidiaries

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax I EFEZELEFTSTEE

assets were recognized

Income tax expense

2010 2009
—2-®BF =t
B 5 A & 7 1,531,649 1,207,499
B IR N E AR (707) (426)
1,530,942 1,207,073
BAEEFE T HHER A
EARMETTENTIE 371,891 315,478
REHTE (225,740) (271,433)
AR X 2 B
T 1,435 2,690
A B AR BRI
18 (140) (2,306)
FREE A 2 TEIRFT1SHE 12,509 34,828
%S EE 2,281 2,900
gt 162,236 82,157

Due to the fact that the directors are not certain on
whether future taxable profit would be available, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HKD8,292,000 (2009: HKD6,141,000) in respect
of tax losses of certain subsidiaries of the Group
amounting to HKD39,618,000 (2009: HKD14,813,000).
Losses of HKD771,000, HKD581,000, HKD2,025,000,
HKD11,201,000 and HKD5,907,000 will expire on 31
Mar 2011, 31 Mar 2012, 31 Mar 2013, 31 Mar 2014 and
31 Mar 2015 respectively, and losses of HKD19,133,000
do not have an expiry date.

Huabao International Holdings Limited

AREZFEEIRENRKRZE R BHERN
A BRI NEBWEH BRI S
AaELz AR K E 18 #39,618,0007T (=
T T N F B %14,813,0007T) B IE LTS
TREEXBY8,292,000T (ZTETAF :
#6,141,0007C) - AR AIENEESBAEE
771,000t © /& #¥581,0007t & #2,025,000
JC » A #11,201,0007T & 74 #5,907,0007T #%
PRE_E——F=Zf=+—HB K —T—_F
ZA=t+—H —ET—=fF=ZA=+—H =
T—NFE=ZA=+—BRk=-_FT—AF=A=+
— B 819,133,000t AT K E1ER
EEIEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE BITE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASBLBET IIR)

(a) EX
BERERBNTIRBERAEFEARRERTAA
EEEN - RIAFAD BT ERRNINETY

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue HHEE -
during the year.
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —EThEF
Profit attributable to equity holders of KARIREZE A
the Company FEAE B 1,340,085 1,110,324
Weighted average number of ordinary BT 2 LB hnE
shares in issue ("000) T (F&H) 3,105,873 3,077,276
Basic earnings per share BREARZRF (FRRAW)
(HK cents per share) 43.15 36.08
(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
assuming that all dilutive potential ordinary shares have
been converted. For the year ended 31 March 2010,
the Company has one type of dilutive potential ordinary
shares, i.e. share options.

As for share options, the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market price of the Company’s shares)
is determined based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to the outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of share options.

SRHE 2R PTA A EE R B R AR
Winik - RIRC T B0 IR T R B
B -BE-T-TF-A=t—RALFE &
RAA AR B LB (BAE) -

EREAE - ARBRITER BT &) R
MEKER BERATE (BEEAKRRAFAK
MEFEFEETE) IBANBRNDEE - BRI
ERAFENRNBEE - BRJBRETER
FEEBITERM BB (EHLLER -
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For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b) Diluted (continued)

Profit attributable to equity holders of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=) +
iR e s

BRI

RE-T-TF=A=+—HILER
e

BRBFHAEN  MBEZBRABETTIIR)

(b) #% (&)

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—BHLEFE

2010 2009
—E-2fF ZETNF
RATEIRERAA
the Company JEAE &R 1,340,085 1,110,324
Weighted average number of ordinary BT SR EAREF
shares used to calculate basic earnings A 3R R B DN AE 15 £
per share (‘000) (F&H) 3,105,873 3,077,276
Adjustments for: S EE
— exercise of share options ("000) — 1TEREARE (F&D) 41,250 40,105
Weighted average number of ordinary BREE R 8w
shares for diluted earnings per nwEFEHEE (F)
share ('000) 3,147,123 3,117,381
Diluted earnings per share BRRESERT
(HK cents per share) (ZRAEW) 42.58 35.62
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEFE
2010 2009
—E-TF —ETNF
Interim dividend paid of HK6.0 cents BTG+ AR S.6.078 (L
(2009: HK 5.0 cents) per share (ZZZTNF : 5.05810L) 187,469 154,100
Proposed final dividend of HK6.78 cents R TR R EANR 2.6.7878 1L
(2009: HK5.8 cents) per share (ZZZNF : 5.881L) 212,134 179,731
399,603 333,831
Special dividend paid of HK2.8 BN SR RIRE2.87E L
cents (2009: nil) per share (=T NF &) 87,485
Proposed special dividend of HK5.5 B E I RIRE5.5
cents (2009: HK3.0 cents) per share B (ZZ2FAE : 3.05810) 172,085 92,964
259,570 92,964
659,173

Huabao International Holdings Limited

E3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR KT

w3

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

152

During the year ended 31 March 2010, an interim and a
special dividend of HKD187,469,000 (HK6.0 cents per share)
(2009: HK5.0 cents per share) and HKD87,485,000 (HK2.8
cents per share) (2009: nil) have been paid by the Company
respectively. A final dividend of HK6.78 cents per share
(2009: HK5.8 cents per share), HKD212,134,000 in aggregate
(2009: HKD179,731,000), together with a special dividend
of HK5.5 cents per share (2009: HK3.0 cents per share),
HKD172,085,000 in aggregate (2009: HKD92,964,000),
are proposed at the meeting of the Board held on 18 June
2010 which is subject to the shareholders’ approval in the
forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated
financial statements do not reflect these as dividends payable.

(a)

Acquisition of Maoming Kebi

In August 2009, Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Company Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into
an agreement with independent parties to acquire
100% equity interests in Maoming Kebi, a company
incorporated in the PRC, at a cash consideration of
approximately HKD117,209,000.

Maoming Kebi is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of flavours & fragrances in the PRC. Pursuant to
the acquisition agreement, the acquisition was completed
on 1 August 2009 and Maoming Kebi became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group.

The acquired business contributed revenue
of HKD34,023,000 and net profit after tax of
HKD 17,959,000 to the Group for the period from date of
acquisition to 31 March 2010.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009,
consolidated revenue and consolidated net profit
after tax would have been increased by approximately
HKD4,041,000 and HKD612,000, respectively.

HEZ
(Bx

wﬁﬁ%%%’

—ZRF=A=1+—HIFE
PA FELABE T TIIR)

REBEEZZE—ZEF=-RA=+—HLEFERN"
$AEESEHE@EP,HMD%EIJH§%Q | B
187,469,000} & #87,485,0007C (9 B A

FRBBOLE28(ZEZTNF : B
%ﬁ%s.oM&ﬁ) MFERENRPRE AT

B 8 e 78 (2T N E: TR B S8
fill) » 48 #212,134,0007T (ZEESE

#%179,731,000) © REIRZEHFRRE B
ERBESSI (ZZEZNF - ERBEE30
fill) -~ H#)7%8%172,085,0007T (ZEZ N4 -

92,964,000) - FE =T —ZTFXA+/\BETT
MEFREREHRE - BANRIRTHR

RBFERNE LERRIAE - lhERE
RRBRIEBEMAE

BT ¥R KA

WK AR

RZZEZNENR  AEBEZ2EWHB
NE - mBERENERAT  BE=
FEZRE  UHEeWERENAEE
117,209,0007T 45 B — & 5 HR B B 37 B9

NEXKBR T A o

(a)

EKEMEIZETENELAERHEES

%%E%ﬂréu“u - RIBUEB R - ZWBC
RZZBZAFNA-HBHERKREXER L

EJﬂZZ%ZIS%IZiéTWJ%An

ZEKEWEBEE-_T-—ZTF=-A=
+—HIE  EAXREBERG RN BE
34,023,0007T B 88 & W A & £ 8 &
17,959,000 T HIBR TR 1B & F o

MZWER—ZTAFMA—BHAE
REBZEHHEERAMEHBRIHER
F 5 & 12 0 4978 %4,041,0007T M 478
#612,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b)

Acquisition of Qingdao Qingda

In February 2010, Guangzhou Huabao Flavour &
Fragrance Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into an agreement with
independent parties to acquire 51% equity interests in
Qingdao Qingda, a company incorporated in the PRC at a
cash consideration of approximately HKD11,600,000.

Qingdao Qingda is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of flavours & fragrances in the PRC.
Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the acquisition
was completed on 1 March 2010 when Qingdao Qingda
became a subsidiary of the Group.

The acquired business contributed revenue of
HKD4,511,000 and net profit after tax of HKD414,000 to
the Group for the period from date of acquisition to 31
March 2010.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009,
consolidated revenue would have been increased by
approximately HKD23,605,000 and consolidated net
profit after tax decreased by HKD675,000, respectively.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration: R E -
Consideration — cash paid RE—BEIH
Direct expenses relating to WEE > 5EEEH

the acquisition

Total purchase consideration BUFERE

Fair value of identifiable net WHEM HRIFEEZ

assets acquired — shown RNFEBE—FT
below T

Goodwill (Note 8) EE (KI5E8)

Huabao International Holdings Limited

(b)

iR e R Rk MY L

E-E-FE=A=T—BILFE
BREHBES - FASEUBETIIR)

KBEEEX

RN_E—ZTF_F AEHEZ2EBA
Al BENEEERBERERAA - #HE
—HEEHHE URSWERENAS
#11,600,0007T U i — fE 7 R B A 37 B9
NEIBTEBT AR5 % ©

BEBFARIBRETERFLEERHEES
BEMER - REKBHR  ZEEBED
RZE—ZF=ZA-HREEEEESK
ERRAREZHBAR -

ZEKBWBEBEE T -—ZTHE=F1
=+ —HiE - BEAAEBERLE
#4,511,0007C &) §5 & WA K& 495 #&
414,000 BRI B AT

MZBER—_ZEZTNFNA—BEE
AEEZEHHEERAB SN ER
23,605,000 T f& OF B % 12 & 5 45 5k
#)78%675,0007T °
WEEEA 2 FEERBEFBOT

Qingdao

Maoming Kebi
BEERL

117,209

145

117,354

(7,704)

109,650

Qingda
BEEBEX

11,600

"1

11,611

(11,367)

244

Total

128,809

156

128,965

(19,071)

109,894
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE BT RRMITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE
(BABHBESN - AESBABETTIIR)

The fair value and carrying value of assets and liabilities as at
the respective acquisition dates arising from the acquisitions

RUBEmMELEZEERBE (EZENKE
H) WanBEREEENAT

154

are as follows:

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZEERIRZEARGRR AR o 2009-2010 Annual Report F

Fair value Acquiree’s carrying amount
AREE WIS Z BREE
Maoming Qingdao Maoming Qingdao
Kebi Qingda Total Kebi Qingda Total
AR EEEX oY) RENEL BEEEX am
Net assets acquired WEBESE
Intangible assets B EE 5,221 1,610 6,831 - - -
Land use right TR - 10,415 10,415 - 2,240 2,240
Property, plant and mE - BER
equipment B 8 9,543 9,551 8 8,636 8,644
Inventories 78 - 6,452 6,452 - 6,452 6,452
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEY
BHE 4,724 5,473 10,197 4,724 5,473 10,197
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED - 16,795 16,795 - 16,795 16,795
Short-term borrowings HHER - (10,235) (10,235) - (10,235) (10,235)
Trade and other payables BoREMRER
BETNIR (704) (14,979) (15,683) (704) (14,979) (15,683)
Current income tax EHFEHAR
liabilities (240) (113) (353) (240) (113) (353)
Deferred income tax BERFEHAE
liabilities (Note 11) (FzE11) (1,305) (2,673) (3,978) - - -
Net assets acquired Kz EEE 7,704 22,288 29,992 3,788 14,269 18,057
Less: minority interest A DERE R - (10,921) (10,921)
7,704 11,367 19,071
QOutflow of cash to acquire WERER2BE
business, net of cash i (kY
acquired ZERE)
Consideration - cash paid RE-RexH 117,209 11,600 128,809
Direct expenses relating to W ERER
the acquisition 145 " 156
Cash and cash equivalents BARBARZ
in subsidiaries acquired BehBe%E
ED - (16,795) (16,795)
Net cash outflow/(inflow) WiEmFRe
on acquisition i/ ORA) 117,354 (5,184) 112,170



For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br BB HEEIN

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:
— Depreciation
— Amortization
— Interest expenses
— Interest income
— Share of profit of associates
— Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment
on trade receivables
— Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Gain on disposal of an associate
— Share option compensation expenses
— Exchange gain-net
Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
— Trade and other receivables
— Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operations

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=1

—NEEM
— MEMA
— EEBERR AN
— B2 REFIRRE
B/ (BE)
—HEME - HER
RIEEF(EE)
— hEBERRER
—BRIEEM
—EHWE - FE
BERELEE
-8
— B 5 MEbEUGRIA
— 85 REMENTIR

REXBEREFHE

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

FREDFE
HEWE - ez
RiBEF,(EER)

HEME - #ER
A PSR

ECT-ZF=A=FT—HILFE
FTA £ FELABE T ITIIR)

AN
RIN=

BRI

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLLEE

2009

1,207,499

28,798
27,087
7,934
(19,555)
(426)

(62)

61

30,889
(13,832)

(31,668)

156
(94,095)

1,142,786

ReRnERA  HEWE  HRIRRHE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2010
e —z-%F
1,531,649
6 31,461
7.8 28,049
24 1,508
24 (15,761)
10 (707)
13(b),22 119
(249)
10 (740)
23 12,605
21 (1,924)
(17,022)
(114,439)
84,021
1,538,570
NG
Z I ABIE
Note 2010
P —E-BfF
6 357
249
606

2009

459
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE BT RRMITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-—ZTF-A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHAEI  TESTEUABETITIIR)
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet REEHEENEDREEANERFX
date but not yet incurred is as follows: UM

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
Property, plant and equipment: YIE - HES R R
Contracted but not provided for LB RERE 4,234 5,671
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEHESEHIE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under REZERBETATHEEERE - KK
non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet SERENFTBENT -

date are as follows:

As at 31 March

R=ZA=+-—8H
2010 2009
—E-2F “TThF

Land and buildings: T RETF

Not later than 1 year PB4 7,291 5,778

Later than 1 year and not later than @1 FENER

5 years 54 6,159 3,393
13,450 9,171
(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BAHEALTEBIBEERAER

Name Relationship
=L 22RES
Ms. Chu The ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
K+ RN AR RRAR R
Owada International Flavours & A company controlled by Ms. Chu

Fragrances (Guangzhou) Limited

("Owada International ")
REEBBRER (BM) BRAR SRR L

(DREFEEER )
Henan Jinrui An associate indirectly held by the Company
A H NS eSS R R o)t WNG|
Weihai Huayuan An associate indirectly held by the Company and disposed of during

the year

BT RARIREHANBEARRNFAND HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR
For the Year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=+—HILFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31. BBALRS (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEBALINRS
The Group has entered into the following significant RNEE EBBA TETTIERRZS -

transactions with related parties:

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLEE

2010 2009
; —EB-BF —ZETNF
Sales of goods, net of value-added tax, to: $HEEMR @ BRIZEREZ - F -
— Henan Jinrui — A ® i 1,026 550
— Weihai Huayuan — BUSETT 42 42
1,068 592
Purchase of raw materials from: BEMER
— Weihai Huayuan — BUBETT 571 52
- Owada International — REEFEE R - 3,565
571 3,617
Interest expense to: FEZAT
— Ms. Chu — Rzt 319 7,869
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE B TE R MITE

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

(c)

Balances with related parties

Balances due from related parties:

Included in trade receivables
— Henan Jinrui
— Weihai Huayuan

Balances due to related parties:

Included in trade payables
— Owada International
— Weihai Huayuan

Included in non-trade payables
- Ms. Chu

RE-T-TF=AS+—HILER
(B SEHBES - FASHLBET IIR)

() PBABEAL&ES
As at 31 March

R=B=+-—H
Note 2010 2009
ibE=s —Z-EF —ETNF
U AR A AR
FFAE 5 R GRIE
—AmEn 1,798 150
—BBET - 80
1,798 230
FEHRAEE A 458k
FTAE S ERMRIE
— JREEE E R 15,923 16,606
— BUBETT - 37
15,923 16,643
FTAENIER SH50I8
— Kzt 20 133,985 488,994

As at 31 March 2010, all the balances with related parties
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
(2009: amounts due to Ms. Chu of HKD299,050,000

were interest bearing).

M2010F3A31H  FTBE @l A T8 AE
IR B NMARBANEEE (CTTHE
JE 5 2k 22 £ R IE A #5299,050,0007T 5 A E A
g) e

15N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE B ISR M

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_ZT-—ZTF-A=+—HIFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BEEHBEI  FESBUAEETITIIR)
The Group has a 49% interest in a jointly controlled entity, REBRRREHEREREHENBRERS
Yunnan Qing Tian Xiang Keji Fazhan Co. Ltd., which was RARIRIFEAO% R  ZEEE_ZTNF
established on 24 November 2009 and is principally engaged T—AZTMHBRIREEEPEEEEER
in the manufacture and sale of flavours and fragrances in HEBBEHED - UT2BALEELEZHE
the PRC. The following amounts represent the Group’s 49% FEIEHEEHEEMAE  UREEMESET
share of the assets and liabilities, and sales and results of the FE(EHI49% 1058 - WE I ALRE M BIKR KA
jointly controlled entity. They are included in the consolidated Was kA

statement of financial position and income statement.

As at
31 March
2010
R-B—FF
=A=+—8~
Assets: EE
Non-current assets ERMBEE 30
Current assets TENE E 5,207
5,237
Liabilities: 8E&:
Current liabilities nEaE 459
459
Net assets REE 4,778
For the period
from date of
establishment
to 31 March
2010
HRBZE
—E-2F
=A=t+—H
Income & 453
Expenses A (690)
Loss before income tax MREAIE R (237)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s NSRBI % LR I B B A A A N S R AT (]
interest in the jointly controlled entity, and no contingent HEAE MZAREFHEERGTENEE
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity itself. f& -
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AN
AN

For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

160

BRI ot

Name

AREB

Aromascape Development

Centre GmbH

Central Link Inc. Limited ¢

RAERZEBRAFCX

Delight Zone International Limited ¢

LFERERARC

Feijia Chuangye Additive (Shenzhen)

Limited

RERIZRMNE CRI) BRRA

Guangdong Zhaoging Fragrances

Limited

EREZEETHBAERRDA

Guangzhou Huabao Flavour &
Fragrances Company Limited 't *

FNEEERENERAT 20

Hero Ace Limited ¢’
BERRATY

Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Limited ¢!

EFBAERERATW

Place of
incorporation

AR B AL i B

Germany
(e

Hong Kong
E

Hong Kong
E

PRC*
hE

PRC*
ey

PRC*
REx

Hong Kong

N

PRC*
hE*

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

Nominal value

of issued/
registered capital
CRTZER
EMEAREE

EUR25,000
BR7T25,000

HKD1
BT

HKD1
BT

HKD 1,000,000
711,000,000

RMB11, 000,000
AR#11,000,0007T

RMB10, 000,000
AK#10,000,0007T

HKD1

BB

USD4,000,000
714,000,000

(B=BHBEN -

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

ADRERS
RAER

Direct Indirect
HE B
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
100 -

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZEERIRZEARGRR AR o 2009-2010 Annual Report F

PA FELABE T TIIR)

Principal activities

FREK

Research and development
of flavours & fragrances

MEERER

Investment holding,
trading of fine
chemicals

wEER - BHALT

EmE

Investment holding
REER

Production, technical
research &
development,
distribution, import &
export of flavours &
fragrances & related
business

BRERNEE - BT
FE - B EROR
HBREXK

Manufacturing & sale
of food flavours &
fragrances

EERBEEFRER

Research, development,
manufacturing & sale of
flavours & fragrances

e AEREEER
EH

Provision of management
services

RUERRSE

Manufacturing & sale
of tobacco flavours &
fragrances

EERHEERBRER



For the Year ended 31 March 2010
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Name

AR EH

Huabao Flavours & Fragrances (HK)

Limited ¢

ZEEREN (BF) ARRAC

Huabao Food Flavours & Fragrances
(Shanghai) Company Limited " 1. %2

EEAREAEH (L5)
ﬁﬁii\\ﬁjwnxw,xz

Hua Bao Industrial & Trading
Development (HK) Limited ¢!
FEIBER (FF) ARARCX

Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan
(Shanghai) Company
lelted C1, W1, w2, X1

EERCREERE (L8)
ﬁﬁﬁi\\ﬂm,ww,wz, X1

Huashun Flavour (Shanghai)
Limited W1 v, x

EIREH (L&) BRARW v2x

Owada Flavour Technology
(Guangzhou) Limited
REEFFRRE (BM) BRAA

Pacific Top Enterprises Limited ¢'

EROFARAF

Place of

incorporation

AP B 3L i B

Hong Kong
30

PRC*
R

Hong Kong
30

PRC*
P

PRC*
P

PRC*
hE*

Hong Kong
EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e R Rk MY L

RE-T-TF=A=+—HILER
FiE & BB T TLIIR)

(BRBFHAEIN

Nominal value Percentage of equity

of issued/

registered capital

CROTZER/
AMEFEE

HKD3,000,000
#%3,000,0007C

UsD10,000,000
%71,10,000,000

HKD10,000
#110,0007T

UsD2,100,000
%712,100,000

USD1,000,000
%711,000,000

HKD60,000,000
760,000,000

HKD1
BRI

interest attributable
to the Company
RAT
R

Direct

EE

Indirect
kS
100

Principal activities

TRER

Research, development,
manufacturing & sale of
flavours & fragrances

e EEREEER
EHt

Manufacturing & sale
of tobacco flavours &
fragrances

HTERBEERBRER

Investment holding,
trading of fine
chemicals

REZR B IER
g5

Research and development
of flavours & fragrances

mEEREH

Research, development,
manufacture and sale of
fine chemicals

BACTIERME  £E
KHE

Research, development,
production and sale of
flavours & fragrances

- £E MIREE
REAHEBHRER
Em

Investment holding
REER
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AN
AN

FIFS R M T

For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

162

Name

ALIEL

Power Success International
Development Limited ¢!

HEEBRZEREBR AR X

Profit Fortune Holdings Limited ¢’
FEERAR AT

Rich Million Investments Limited ¢

BHEERRARC

Rich Success Investment
Development Limited "X
ERBEERARAFCX

Shanghai H&K Flavours & Fragrances
Company Limited -t wt.x1

PEEEAEFREH
ﬁlﬂE/D\E]LI,LZ,WW,XI

Shanghai Yinghua Flavours &
Fragrances Limited X' *?
HEREERERARAR P

Sino Top Trading Limited ©’
EEBHARAAC

Smart Sino International Limited X!

ERERARATX

Tai Cang Wen Hua Enterprise
Company Limited "' X1 x2
REXEBERRAFW. 2

Place of
incorporation

AP B 3L B

Hong Kong
&0

British Virgin Islands
HBRZS

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
£

PRC*
R

PRC*
hEx

Hong Kong
&0

Hong Kong
E

PRC*
P

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

(B=BHBEN -

Nominal value Percentage of equity

of issued/
registered capital
CRITEER
AMELHEE

HKD1
BEIT

usD2
EyIW)

HKD1
BT

HKD1
BT

RMB 100,000,000
AR®100,000,0007T

HKD 1,000,000
7#1,000,0007T

HKD100
BE1007T

HKD10,000
7 #10,0007T

UsD1,200,000
%711,200,000

interest attributable

to the Company
KREEL
RAfE

Direct Indirect
HE B
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100
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PA £ FELABE T TIIR)

Principal activities

TRER

Investment holding,
trading of fine
chemicals

RERR BB IER
25

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding
REER

Manufacturing & sale
of food flavours &
fragrances

TERBERMBRER

Sale of tobacco flavours &
fragrances

HEERBREH

Trading of fine chemicals
BECIERE

Investment holding,
trading of fine
chemicals

WERK - B IER
g5

Production and sale of
tobacco flavours &
fragrances

EERBEEREREH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE ISR M

For the Year ended 31 March 2010 HE-"ZT-TZFE=FA=+—HItEE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BRBBEHRBPEIN  TESBEABETILIIR)

Nominal value Percentage of equity

Place of of issued/ interest attributable
Name incorporation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
CRITLER, RAREL
ARER AR AR 2 3 B AMEXREE R TEXH
Direct  Indirect
B LiE:3
Winning Right Limited British Virgin Islands usD1 100 - Investment holding
HIERRAFC EBERZS | REER
Wisdom Bright International Hong Kong HKD1 - 100 Investment holding,
Investment Limited ¢ X’ 5 BT trading of fine
BREERRERRA R chemicals
REEKR  BECIER
25
Wuxi Fuhua Flavour & Fragrance PRC* usD7,000,000 - 100  Production and sale of
Company Limited W' W2 X1 e 717,000,000 tobacco flavours &
EHREFRENBRAFW WX fragrances
EERHEEAEREH
Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Company PRC* UsD650,000 - 100  Production and sale of
Limited W, w2 x1 HE* 5£70650,000 tobacco flavours &
EHEFERBRA TN WX fragrances
EEREERREH
Wuxi Hua Xin Flavour & Fragrance PRC* UsD1,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of
Company Limited W' x1. %2 H B %711,000,000 tobacco flavours &
EHERRREHARRRW 0.0 fragrances
EERHEEREREH
Wauxi Jiahua Flavour & Fragrance PRC* RMB60, 000,000 - 100 Production and sale of
Company Limited W w2 x R AR#60,000,0007C tobacco flavours &
EHRERRENERAFW WX fragrances
EEREEEAEREH
Xiamen Amber Fragrances Co., PRC* RMB10, 000,000 - 51 Research, development,
Ltd. 112 B AR #10,000,000 production, distribution
EFRAERAERARY L and retail of fragrances
e E - BEREE
AAtIER
Yunnan Tianhong Flavor & Fragrance ~ PRC* UsD2,250,000 - 60 Production and sale of
Company Limited <! <2 i+ %712,250,000 flavours & fragrances
ERARLEREHARARC EERHERREH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e SRR MR

For the Year ended 31 March 2010

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

Name

ALIEL

Maoming Kebi Flavor & Fragrance
Limited W' W2

KEMLERBEHBRARY W

Qingdao Qingda Product Co., Inc. *
EEHERMERGERDE

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILtFE

Nominal value

Place of of issued/
incorporation registered capital

CRITZER
1A B AL 3t B AMEREE
PRC* RMB6,000,000
I+

AR #6,000,000
PRC* RMB12,244,900
e AR#12,244,900

* All entities incorporated in PRC are identified as “Limited Liability

Company”.

As depicted in Note 2.1(a), merger accounting was adopted for
the common control combination in the current year. Therefore,

the comparative figures of the Group were restated.

(B=BHBEN -

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
KREEL
RAfE

Direct  Indirect

E# B
- 100

Al e
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PA £ FELABE T TIIR)

Principal activities

TRER

Production and sale of
flavours & fragrances

EERHEBRREM

Manufacturing & sale of
flavours

TERHEERRER

ERGEEMRINAREREREER

T EE2. (@) - RAFE - A ST
ZEEAHRBTAMEDE - Bt - A&H
MLBRBFELET -



Five Year Financial Summary

TFEHBERE

RESULTS
E4
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
=N —ETEF ZTT/\F ZFTNF | =2 -FF
Turnover = 779,018 1,013,229 1,419,137 1,938,443 | 2,366,403
Gross Profit ESA 368,482 704,146 1,063,148 1,462,515 1,786,835
Profit before income tax R BI AR 300,025 578,662 904,000 1,207,346 1,531,649
Income tax expenses FRIE (9,968) (1,435) (34,384) (82,157) (162,236)
Profit for the year N E B R 290,057 577,227 869,616 1,125,189 1,369,413
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEER —ZEELFE ZEEN\F ZZETAF :g—gﬁﬁ/
. T
Total assets BEE 875,748 1,462,991 2,477,381 3,765,656 4,833,858
Total liabilities waE (423,810) (322,087) (455,404) (836,050) (915,651)
Shareholders’ funds BEREES 451,938 1,140,904 2,021,977 2,929,606 = 3,918,207
Other Financial Information
Hib B g &R
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—TERF ZTTEF ZFTN\F ZTTNF | =B -BF
Earnings per share, basic ~ GRZEF] - &K )
(HK cents) (B 11.47 19.91 28.13 36.08 43.15
Earnings per share, diluted &RZEF - #58
(HK cents) (P 9.53 18.66 27.65 35.62 42.58
Aggregated dividend BRE2FRRE
per share (HK cents) (P Nil & 5.6 8.3 10.8 12.78
Aggregated special dividend &% 25T4HFHIR B
per share (HK cents) OB Nil 4 Nil4E Nil£E 3.0 8.3
Fiscal year-end share prices B 754 E 4545 H
(HKD) (%) 1.95 4.73 6.40 6.38 9.33
EBIT ratio EBIT=R 39.0% 56.8% 62.7% 61.7% 64.1%
EBITDA ratio EBITDAXR 40.5% 61.0% 67.3% 66.1% 67.1%
ROE ROE N/A 76.7% 56.9% 46.3% 40.3%
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Glossary

AR

ACIS

ACS

AGM
Xiamen Amber

Aromascape R&D

Centre
Board
Bye-laws
CAFFCI

CAGR
Case

CEO

CFO
CG Code

CG Report

China or Mainland

Company or
Huabao

Director(s)

EPS

F&G

F&G Group

FCCA

FCPA

Fejia Chuangye

Group or Huabao

Group

Associate Member of The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators
Associate Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries
Annual general meeting
Xiamen Amber Perfumery Co., Ltd
Aromascape Devlopment Centre GmbH

Board of the Company

Bye-laws of the Company

China Association of Fragrance Flavour
and Cosmetic Industry

Compound annual growth rate

Every master case contains 50,000 sticks
of cigarette

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Corporate Governance Report as set
out on pages 49 to 58 of this annual
report

Mainland of the PRC

Huabao International Holdings Limited

Director(s) of the Company

Earnings per share

F&G (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited

F&G (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited,
Long State International Limited and
Faraway International Limited

Fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants

Fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

Fejia Chuangye Additive (Shenzhen)
Limited

the Company and its subsidiaries

ACIS

ACS

eV kN
EFI3RIA

Aromascapefff 2

iy
EEE
ATA
HEAELHE

CAGR
KA8

RERFFUERITRABRREEER

EERMNELAEEE

BFBFRE

EFERARHARAR

Aromascape Development Centre
GmbH

ARRMERE

NN /NG

TEEHNER AR IEGS

BEARFHER
HFARFEE50,0005% FIE

HE,

M aaE

EEBMARZMBRARES LA
B8R 14PT DI R R EVRE R TR

EARFRFIOEEFSEAMBEER

wE

REARKMEEREA
FEERZERARAT

ZAN/NYS] =3

BRAEF

F&G (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited

F&G (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited *
PR B B A5 PR A B R AR BB B
BRARA

REFHFAREIMAGERGER

AR

REAIZFERME CRY) BRAF

ARw REM B AT

166 Huabao International Holdings Limited #EEEIZARAGR A A » 2009-2010 Annual Report G



Guangdong
Zhaoging

Guangzhou
Huabao

Guangzhou
Huafang

HKAS

HKD

HKFRS

HKICPA

HK(IFRIC)-Int

Hong Kong or
HKSAR

Hongta Tobacco

Group
Huabao
Hong Kong

Huabao Keji

Huabao Shanghai

Huabao Kongque

Huashun Shanghai

INED(s)

Listing Rules

M&A(s)
Maoming Kebi
mg

Model Code

Guangdong Zhaoging Fragrances
Limited

Guangzhou Huabao Flavours &
Fragrances Co Ltd.

Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Ltd.

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations

Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of
China

Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited Liability
Company

Huabao Flavours & Fragrances (HK) Ltd.

Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

Huabao Food Flavours & Fragrances
(Shanghai) Co Ltd.

Shanghai H&K Flavours & Fragrances
Co Ltd.

Huashun Flavour (Shanghai) Limited

Independent Non-executive Director(s)
of the Company

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

Merger and acquisition

Maoming Kebi Flavor Fragrance Ltd.

milligram

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers

BEREE

FENEE

BEMNEF

EBRIER
HKD

BB HmEER

HKICPA

& (BRmERE

EE PR

B

#R L&

BYUIFWITES

ERA

it
AR
mg
fRZEEST R

Glossary
=i
i

RRAEEEHEARAT
BN EEERERNARAT
EFNERABERARAR]
BB E AR

B

EBUBREER
EERHDOE

& (ARKERBEER) 28

i ARANEEBHRTRE

AREE (SE) BRATR
FHEAREHR (FB) BRAF
FERCMEER (LB) BRAF
EFERMAARER (LB) BRAF]
LEEELERRENERAA

FEIgEH (L8) ARAF
RRRZBIIFNITES

EEBMARZMERARES LR

e O BB

AT ERERERAR]

ER

ETBETAESETESKSNREST
El
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Glossary
=k
ARl

Owada

PRC
Qingdao Huabao

Qingdao Qingda

RMB

R&D

Scheme Mandate
Limit

SFC
SFO

SGM
Shanghai Yinghua

Shareholder(s)
Share(s)

Stock Exchange

Taicang Wenhua

usb

Wealthy King
Group

Win New Group

Wuxi Fuhua
Wuxi Huahai
Wuxi Huaxin

Wauxi Jiahua
Yunnan Tianhong

Yunnan Qing Tian
Xiang

Owada Flavours Technology
(Guangzhou) Limited

The People’s Republic of China

Qingdao Huabao Flavours & Fragrances
Co Ltd.

Qingdao Qingda Product Co., Inc.

Renminbi

Research and development

The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which share options may
be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company

Securities and Futures Commission

Securities and Futures Ordinance of the
Laws of HKSAR

Special general meeting

Shanghai Yinghua Flavours & Fragrances
Ltd.

Shareholder(s) of the Company

Ordinary share(s) of HKD0.10 each of
the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Cang Wen Hua Enterprises Co Ltd.

US dollars

Wealthy King Investments Limited and
its subsidiaries

Win New Group Limited and its
subsidiaries

Wuxi Fuhua Flavour & Fragrance Co Ltd.

Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Co Ltd.

Wuxi Hua Xin Flavour & Fragrance Co
Ltd.

Wuxi Jiahua Flavour & Fragrance Co Ltd.

Yunnan Tianhong Flavour & Fragrance
Co Ltd.

Yunnan Qing Tian Xiang Keji Fazhen
Co., Ltd.

R&D
T B ER

S B Gy
A2 & =
f

&7 K E 5P

BRFRIAE
ERE

B 22 PRy
KEXE
E
EE&E
BlEE e
BHRE
EHES

EHER

AR
EWRE

B E

%
i
e
)
W
H
*
W
a
=
5
o

BEEBEAMERNERATR]

AR - PEIEEER

woE R R

BRI AR 8 A E AR RRE
RGBT RE R 2 BIRE B R 2 iR
EE ER

ERRPEEBERZES
& 77 RS 5P

BREREFRIAE
LBREFRERERAF]

KRR ZIEE
ARE AR ESEREESE0.10TH
L5
EBBAZBIBRAT
RKEXEBERRAA
EH
EEREARATRENMBAR
I EEBRARRENB QR
EOREREERERAH
EHESEREHERAH
ERERREEHNERAT

EORERREAERAR
EMREERERAERAT

EREMBENRERARAR

168 Huabao International Holdings Limited = B BR AR  2009-2010 Annual Report F 3k






	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year
	Chairman’s Statement
	CEO’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Investor Relations Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Glossary
	Back Cover


